SPECIAL BOARD MEETING AGENDA
12/17/2021, 1:00 PM

info@creteacademy.org (323-791-1600)
Zoom Conference Link:

https://ucihealth.zoom.us/j/97209503945?pwd=b2grVGhxYk1yWEVMMGFtcnJxYU5jZz09&from=addon

Dial: +1 669 900 9128
Meeting ID: 972 0950 3945/ Passcode: 304220
6103 Crenshaw Boulevard, Los Angeles, CA

1.

Welcome
A welcome from board president was provided- The regular board meeting commenced at 1:05 p.m.

2.

Public Comment info@creteacademy.org (323-791-1600)
No member of the public was present for this meeting.

3.

Adoption of AB361 findings to conduct Board meetings via Teleconference:
Consideration of emergency circumstances due to Covid 19; State and local officials’ continuance of
social distancing recommendation

4.

Review and approval of December Meeting Minutes
Board Review and Vote
December 7, 2021- Regular Board Meeting
Board meeting minutes from December 7, 2021 were approved by unanimous vote.

5.

Educator Effectiveness Grant Spending Plan
Board Vote
The Educator Effectiveness Grant Spending Plan was reviewed by Crete Leadership after discussion and
previous board meetings. The grant spending plan was approved by unanimous vote.

Public Comment: the meeting location is wheelchair accessible. Speakers needing any disability related or
language accommodation should notify the board Secretary a minimum of 24 hours in advance of the
meeting to arrange for accommodations, and inform the staff upon arrival.

Elon N. Mahone
LinkedIn| elonmahone@gmail.com | (626) 639-5989
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
________________________________________________________________________________________
STARBUCKS CORPORATION
Pasadena, CA
Barista
2019-present
Responsible for managing operational procedures; provided support for building a strong team and store culture;
collaborated with team members to solve problems; provided a high level of customer support and service to hundreds
of people daily.
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
Los
Angeles, CA
Research Associate
January 2019-January 2020
Provided community outreach in South Los Angeles; read through peer-reviewed research articles and synthesized
findings for professors; conducted data analyses to identify trends and patterns in the research; provided graphic
design support for various projects; worked with fellow research associates to research, develop and publish, “Beyond
the Board,” study.
COLLEGE ACCESS PLAN
Pasadena, CA
Office Manager
November 2016-January 2018
Coordinated office operations and procedures; served as liaison between the organization and the community;
managed office communication with staff, managers and clients; project-managed staff members and teams of
members to meet critical deadlines; provided customer service to clients while troubleshooting issues that arose;
oversaw all clerical duties and functions of team.
FOOTHILL APPRAISAL
Pasadena, CA
Customer Service Specialist
January 2010 - November 2018
Provided client management support and organization; oversaw daily office procedures to support company logistics;
developed filing system and organized client portfolios; managed administrative calendars; provided data
management; ensured strong communication between clients and the company, while providing quality customer
service.
EDUCATION
_________________________________________________________________________________
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
Major: Communications and Journalism
Angeles, CA
Expected Graduation: Fall 2022
GPA: 3.0
Scholarships: Black Alumni Association; Black College Olsen Warren award

Los

NOTRE DAME HIGH SCHOOL
Sherman Oaks,
CA
Graduation 2018
May 2018
GPA: 3.8
Scholarships and Awards: Scholar Student Athlete, Notre Dame News Anchor, Student Ambassador
AWARDS AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICE
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
CRETE ACADEMY
2017-present

Volunteer
Work with students to provide mentoring, academic support and event planning/community outreach.
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
2018-2020
Volunteer- ReadersPLUS

Work with elementary students in a literacy and math tutoring program under the Joint Education project.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CRETE ACADEMY
A California Public Benefit Corporation
Board Resolution 12
WHERAS, Crete Academy was awarded $42,594 for the Education Protection Account.
WHEREAS, The Crete Academy Board of Directors authorizes the CEO, Hattie Mitchell, to allocate the
EPA funds to an area of school need.
IT IS RESOLVED that the Education Protection Account (EPA) funds to be received by the school in FY
2021-2022 in the estimated amount of $42,594 will be used solely for instructional non-administrative
expenses.

CRETE ACADEMY
2021-2022
Family Handbook
Website: http://www.creteacademy.org/ (Board Approved 12/7/2021)
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WELCOME TO CRETE ACADEMY
This handbook was developed to provide you with information about our school, including
the school structure, program, and policies. Please read this handbook carefully and review
it with your child, family, and friends. We hope that this handbook empowers you to be an
informed and proactive parent* and partner with us in your child’s educational journey.
Thank you for choosing to be a part of the Crete family.
*All references to parents in this handbook also include legal guardians, as we want whoever cares for the
student to consider him/herself the parent in the context of the school.
*Please make sure to read and review the 2021-2022 Safe Return to School Document (P. 59) that has
been added to address changes to the 2021-2022 school year due to Covid-19.

CRETE ACADEMY MISSION AND VISION:
Our Mission
Crete Academy provides a rigorous, college preparatory education to historically
underserved TK-6 students.
Academic Philosophy
An unwavering focus on its mission to prepare student’s mind, body and soul to enter and
succeed in college, serves as the single guiding principle for every aspect of Crete
Academy’s educational program and instructional methodology. Fundamentally, the Crete
Academy community acts upon the belief that all students can learn at high levels and
deserve the opportunity to receive a college preparatory public education. Crete Academy
believes in establishing clear and measurable goals for academic performance for every
leader, teacher and student, and believes that it is ultimately the responsibility of adults at
Crete Academy Schools to do whatever it takes to ensure students meet the high academic
and social standards set for them.
Foundational Beliefs
Crete Academy staff members embody and teach these values:
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•

Character: Crete is dedicated to ensuring students have strong character, which means they
are honest and trustworthy, and have integrity, and a strong sense of perseverance.

•

Responsibility: Crete students will be taught to take responsibility for their actions.
Students will learn humility in times of celebration and acceptance in times of failure.

•

Excellence: Crete students will do all things with excellence, understanding that they are not
perfect, but they are always asked to do their best.

•

Teachability: Crete students will be taught the growth mindset in order to remain life-long
learners. This means students will have an understanding that intelligence is not fixed.
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•

Equality: Crete students will learn to appreciate and embrace the differences of others,
including, but not limited to, individuals of different ethnic backgrounds, religious faiths, sexual
preferences and learning abilities. Students will learn that everyone deserves to experience life
equally and should not be treated differently based on circumstances beyond their control.

Nondiscrimination Statement
Crete Academy does not discriminate against any student or employee on the basis of actual
or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity,
religion, religious affiliation, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in
the definition of hate crimes in the California Penal Code.
Crete Academy adheres to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities,
including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADA”), and the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Improvement Act of 2004 (“IDEIA”).
Crete Academy is committed to providing a work and educational atmosphere that is free of
unlawful harassment under Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (sex); Titles IV,VI,
and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (race, color, or national origin); The Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967; The Age Discrimination Act of 1975; the IDEA;
and Section 504 and Title II of the ADA (mental or physical disability). Crete Academy also
prohibits sexual harassment, including cyber sexual bullying, and harassment based upon
pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, race, religion, religious affiliation, creed,
color, gender, gender identity, gender expression, national origin or ancestry, physical or
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, sexual orientation, or any other basis
protected by federal, state, local law, ordinance or regulation. Crete Academy does not
condone or tolerate harassment of any type, including discrimination, intimidation, or bullying,
including cyber sexual bullying, by any employee, independent contractor or other person with
which Crete Academy does business, or any other individual, student, or volunteer. This
applies to all employees, students, or volunteers and relationships, regardless of position or
gender. Crete Academy will promptly and thoroughly investigate any complaint of harassment
and take appropriate corrective action, if warranted. Inquiries, complaints, or grievances
regarding harassment as described in this section, above, should be directed to the Crete
Academy Uniform Complaint Procedures (“UCP”) Compliance Officer:
Brett Mitchell
Chief Operations Officer
Crete Academy
6103 Crenshaw Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90043
Telephone: (323) 791-1600
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SCHOOL INFORMATION AND PROCEDURES
SCHOOL OFFICE
Hours

Due to Covid please reference the 2021-2022 Safe Return to School Document
regarding office hours and visitors’ office as this document supersede office hours
and visitors during the 2021-2022 Academic School Year
Each school office is open from 7:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m. during the school year. Please respect
the office hours, as parents/visitors will not be able to access the office staff after the office
closes.
Visitors
Parents’ visits to the classroom are welcomed members of the Crete family.
Please read below and familiarize yourself with the policy.
1. Visiting hours are from 7:30 am until 8:15 am daily
2. Check in with the front office
3. Sign In
4. Obtain a Visitor’s badge
5. Sign out upon leaving
6. Return Visitor’s badge to office
All visitors will enter the school through the main entrance at 6103 Crenshaw Blvd. Please ring the
doorbell ONCE or call the office phone – a staff member will open the door for you as quickly as
possible - your patience is appreciated. There will be no entrance from the playground side of the
building by visitors.

Our administrators have an “Open Door” policy; however, if you need dedicated time for a
discussion or concern, you will want to schedule an appointment in advance.
Telephone
Crete Academy – 323-791-1600
Please note: For Students, the office phone is for emergency use only. Forgetting
homework or lunch does not constitute an emergency. However, if there is a special need
or problem, an administrator may allow phone use. Students will not be called out of class
to receive telephone calls. Emergency phone messages will be delivered to a student’s class.
Messages
Parents and visitors will not be able to call classrooms/teachers directly during school
hours, but may leave a message with an office staff member or on the school’s voicemail.
Messages will be delivered to staff as soon as possible. All calls and messages will be
returned within 24 hours.
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Picking Up Students During School Hours

Please reference the 2021-2022 Safe Return to School Document

Parents must come to the office to sign a student out when official circumstances require
the child to miss any portion of the school day (e.g., doctor/dentist appointments). We
respectfully request that children are not picked up in the last 30 minutes before school
dismissal, as it disrupts the end of the day procedures and practices for the teacher
(including discussion of homework assignments).

SCHOOL DAY SCHEDULE
8:00 AM - Morning supervision begins (please follow this timeline, as there is No
Supervision before this time).
8:30 AM Instructional day begins
1:30 PM Enrichment
2:30 Dismissal
ARRIVAL/DISMISSAL PROCEDURES
Entrances and Gates
Please adhere to the procedures set forth for everyone’s safety. In order to keep traffic
running smoothly, parking is not allowed in the staff parking lots or in the driveway to the
parking lot. Please adhere to the school area speed limit. After morning entry, the main
gates will be closed and locked.
Drop-Off and Dismissal Times
Students may arrive at 8:00 a.m. Please be advised that dropping your child before 8:00 a.m.
creates a safety hazard for your child, as the school is not yet open for students. For
dismissal at the end of the day, students not participating in the After-School Program
MUST be picked up from the Pick-up Area located in the front of the school. PLEASE DO
NOT DRIVE YOUR CAR INTO THE PARKING LOT AND BLOW THE HORN
FOR YOUR CHILD TO COME OUT OR EXPECT YOUR CHILD TO WALK OUT
OF THE GATES, ALONE, TO MEET YOU AT THE CAR.
Appropriate measures, including placement into the After School Program, at the parent’s
expense, or notification to the police department, will be taken to ensure a child’s safety in
the event he or she remains on the school grounds 30 minutes or more beyond dismissal
without participation in our After School Program or notification of an emergency
situation.
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Crete Academy Volunteers (please reference the 2021-2022 Safe Return to School Document
Crete Academy embraces its parents as partners in the academic, emotional and social
growth of their children. With their contributions at school and in the home, students will
have a powerful educational experience that demonstrates how people work together for
important efforts. While there is no volunteer requirement, we encourage our parents to be
Crete Volunteers in classrooms, on the playground and even from home. For our parents
who can be on site, we will train several to provide tutoring in reading and mathematics.
Others who prefer to help on site, but not in the classroom, will be trained to monitor the
playground, act as crossing guards and safety monitors and lead after-school program
activities contributing their expertise in a relevant area of knowledge and skills (e.g., Ballet,
yoga, soccer, knitting, drawing/painting, cooking, singing, etc.).
Volunteers are valued and welcomed members of the Crete family. Please read below and familiarize
yourself with the policy.
The following volunteer clearance must be provided prior volunteering at Crete Academy:
· Completed Volunteer Application
· Clearance for tuberculosis (TB)
· DOJ and FBI Clearance
· Megan’s Law/Sex Offender Clearance
An Administrator will notify you when you have been approved to participate as a volunteer.
Volunteer times must be approved by the teacher and the front office must be notified 24 hours in advance.
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SCHOOL PROGRAMS
After School Programs
Crete Academy will continue to explore the option for additional programs that can
provide enrichment opportunities to our students. These opportunities will be posted on
our Parent Information Boards in the school office and on our website.
Daily classroom and minimum day schedules
REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Transitional Kindergarten
Time

Tuesday

Thursday

8:30-9:00(30
minutes)

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values

9:00-9:20 (20
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess

9:20-10:00 (40
minutes)

Calendar/Math

10:00-11:00 (60
minutes)

English Language Arts (ELA)

11:00-11:30 (30
minutes)

Lunch

11:30-12:15 (45
minutes)
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Monday

Friday

Read Aloud, Yoga

12:15-1:15 (60
minutes)

STEAM Free choice Centers, Art, Dramatic Play, Puzzles, Legos, Building
Set, Tinker Toys, Computers

1:15-1:30 (15
minutes)

Closing Circle and Dismissal

1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment
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REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Kindergarten
Time

Monday

Tuesday

Thursday

Friday

8:30-9:00 (30
minutes)

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values/Calendar/Read Aloud

9:00-9:20 (20
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess

9:20-10:00 (40
minutes)

Math

10:00-11:00 (60
minutes)

English Language Arts (ELA)

11:00-11:30 (30
minutes)

Lunch
Small Groups

11:30-12:30 (60
minutes)
12:30-1:15 (45
minutes)

Writers Workshop

1:15-1:30 (15
minutes)

Closing Circle/ Dismissal

1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment

REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
1st Grade
Time

Tuesday

Thursday

8:30-8:45(15
minutes)

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values

9:00-9:25 (25
minutes)

Math

9:25-9:45 (20
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess

9:45-11:00 (75
minutes)
11:00-11:30 (30
minutes)
2/4/2022

Monday

Reading/ Math Centers
English Language Arts (ELA)
9

Friday

11:30-12:00 (30
minutes)

Lunch
Writers Workshop

12:00-12:30 (30
minutes)
12:30-1:15 (45
minutes)

Math

1:15-1:30 (15
minutes)

Dismissal

1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment

REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Second Grade
Time
8:30-8:50 (20
minutes)

Monday

Tuesday

Thursday

Friday

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values
Math

8:50-9:50 (60
minutes)
9:50-10:10 (60
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess

10:10-11:10 (60
minutes)

Reading

11:10-11:30 (20
minutes)

Science/Social Studies and Wellness

11:30-12:00(30
minutes)

Lunch

12:00-1:15 (75
min)

Writers Workshop/ Small groups

1:15-1:30 (15

Dismissal

minutes)
1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)
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Enrichment Programs (Rotation between Music, Foreign
Language, Performing Arts, and Visual Arts)
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REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Third Grade Class 1
Time

Monday

Tuesday

Thursday

8:30-8:50 (20
minutes)

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values

8:50-9:50 (60
minutes)

Math

9:50-10:10 (20
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess

10:10-11:20 (70
minutes)

English Language Arts

Friday

Writers Workshop

11:20-12:00 (40
minutes)
12:00-12:30 (30
minutes)

Lunch

12:30-1:15 (45
min)

Reading Groups

1:15-1:30 (15

Dismissal

minutes)
1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment Programs (Rotation between Music, Foreign
Language, Performing Arts, and Visual Arts)
REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Third Grade Class 2

Time
8:30-8:50 (20
minutes)
8:50-9:50 (60
minutes)
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Monday

Tuesday

Thursday

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values
English Language Arts

9:50-11:05 (75
minutes)

Math

10:15-10:35 (20
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess

11

Friday

Reading groups/ Read aloud

10:35-12:00 (85
minutes)
12:00-12:30 (30
minutes)

Lunch

12:30-1:15 (45
min)

Writers Workshop

1:15-1:30 (15

Dismissal

minutes)
1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment Programs (Rotation between Music, Foreign
Language, Performing Arts, and Visual Arts)
REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Fourth Grade

Time
8:30-8:50 (20
minutes)
8:50-9:50 (60
minutes)

Monday

Tuesday

Thursday

Friday

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values
English Language Arts

9:50-10:15 (25
minutes)

Reading Groups

10:15-10:35 (20
minutes)

Snack/PE/Recess
Math

10:35-12:00 (45
minutes)
12:00-12:30 (30
minutes)

Lunch

12:30-1:15 (45
min)

Writers Workshop

1:15-1:30 (15

Dismissal

minutes)
1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)
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Enrichment Programs (Rotation between Music, Foreign
Language, Performing Arts, and Visual Arts)
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REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Fifth Grade
Time

Monday

Tuesday

Thursday

8:30-8:50 (20
minutes)

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values

8:50-9:50 (60
minutes)

Math

9:50-10:40 (50
minutes)
10:40-11:00
(20 minutes)

English Language Arts
Snack/PE/Recess

11:00-12:05 (65
minutes)

Science/ Social Studies

12:05-12:30 (25
minutes)

Writing Workshop

12:30-1:00 (30
minutes)

Lunch

1:00-1:15 (15
minutes)

Reading Centers

1:15-1:30 (15
minutes)

Dismissal

1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment

REGULAR DAILY SCHEDULE
Sixth Grade
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Friday

Time
8:30-8:50 (20
minutes)
8:50-9:50 (60
minutes)
9:50-10:40 (50
minutes)
10:40-11:00
(20 minutes)

Monday

Tuesday

Morning Routine/Crete Core Values
English Language Arts
Brain Busters/ Science
Snack/PE/Recess

11:00-12:05 (65
minutes)

Math

12:05-12:30 (25
minutes)

Writing Workshop

12:30-1:00 (30
minutes)
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Thursday

Lunch

1:00-1:15 (15
minutes)

Reading Groups

1:15-1:30 (15
minutes)

Dismissal

1:30-2:30 (60
minutes)

Enrichment
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Friday

CRETE ACADEMY POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND
EXPECTATIONS
DRESS CODE POLICY

Parents and staff have agreed that uniforms would benefit the students, families and the
Crete community. Uniforms promote a team spirit and the idea that the mind and body are
more important than clothes. Evidence suggests that uniform policies, if applied fairly,
instill a sense of unity, pride, and discipline while reducing jealousy and peer pressure. State
law prohibits Crete from requiring uniforms with the Crete logo, as we cannot provide each
student with them; however, we strongly encourage our children to share their school pride
through wearing attire with the logo.
* White or Grey polo
* Navy blue cotton twill pants * Navy
blue shorts or skirts.
* Navy blue plaid pleated skirt with shorts
underneath (heather plaid)
* Dark (Black, brown, blue) Shoes with
flat, rubber soles – NO OPEN TOED
SHOES
*No sweats or jeans (Jeans acceptable on
College Day w/College shirt/sweater
* No layered shirts over shirt – all shirts worn
under the required white or grey. Undershirts
MUST be white or a complimentary color
Prefer navy blue, or white jackets, sweaters
or sweatshirts.
In addition to the above, please note that the following expectations are part of our dress
code policy:
* All pants, shorts, skirts, and skorts will be worn at the waistline and secured to prevent
any sagging. Shirts must be tucked in at the waistline.
* All shorts, skirts and skorts will be worn at the appropriate length, no more than 2” above
the knee.
* Students should refrain from wearing any hats, bandanas, scarves, caps, gloves or string
belts. Headgear or accessories worn as part of a religious practice are permitted.
* All earrings must be small posts (hanging earrings, large zirconia or diamonds are not
acceptable).
* Haircuts and hairstyles must not be distracting to the learning environment, as determined
by the school administration.
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DRESS CODE VIOLATIONS
When a child is not dressed according to code, he or she will be required to change and/or
make adjustments before entering the classroom. Parents will receive a “Dress Code
Violation” notice each time the child is not adhering to the dress code. The notice should be
returned to the school with the parent’s signature. If this becomes a habitual problem, the
Crete Staff will hold a meeting with the child and his/her parent to determine a resolution
that remains beneficial to the entire Crete family.
LOST AND FOUND
ANY ITEMS FOUND ON CAMPUS SHOULD BE TAKEN TO THE LOST AND
FOUND IN THE MAIN OFFICE. The item(s) found on campus may belong to someone
else. It does not automatically belong to the person who found it. The lost and found will be
cleaned out every 2 weeks. Items not claimed will be donated or discarded. All items brought
to school should be clearly labeled with the child’s name. The school is not responsible for
replacing any lost or damaged student belongings.
SNACK POLICY
Crete Academy respectfully requests that children not bring snacks to school since we do
provide a healthy breakfast AND lunch, which everyone is welcome to eat. We do not feel
that snacks from home are necessary. However, if a child has become accustomed to eating a
snack at home between breakfast and lunch, parents may provide only the healthy snacks
from this list:
Fruits (fresh, dried or in cups), vegetables, granola, cereal bars, muffins, crackers, yogurt,
cheese, or baked chips/pretzels. Please do not send your child to school with pre-packaged
chips that contain flavors that are considered detrimental to their health (e.g., “flaming’ hot”).
Please contact your child’s teacher or an administrator, if you have any questions or want to
check the nutritional appropriateness of a snack not listed. Finally, please tell your child that
he/she should NOT share his/her snack with another child.
Crete Academy may make individual exceptions to this policy based on a child’s dietary
needs.
ATTENDANCE POLICY
No Show Students at the Beginning of the School Year
When students are not in attendance on the first five (5) days of school, the Crete Academy
will attempt to reach the parent/guardian on a daily basis for each of the first five days to
determine whether the student has an excused absence, consistent with the process outlined
in the Attendance Policy. If the student has a basis for an excused absence, parents must notify
the school of the absence and provide documentation consistent with this policy. However,
consistent with process below, students who are not in attendance due to an
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unexcused absence by the fifth day of school will be disenrolled from the school roster, as it
will be assumed that the student has chosen another school option.
1. Students who are not in attendance on the first day of school will be contacted by
phone to ensure their intent to enroll.
2. Students who have indicated their intent to enroll, but have not attended by the third
day will receive a letter indicating the student will be disenrolled after the fifth day of
school if the student has not attended school without valid excuse.
3. Students who have indicated their intent to enroll, but have not attended by the fifth
day will receive a phone call reiterating the content of the letter.
4. Students who have not attended by the sixth day, and do not have an excused absence
as defined above for not being in attendance will be disenrolled from the roster.
5. The School will use the contact information provided by the parent/guardian in the
registration packet.
The District of Residence will be notified of the student’s failure to attend Crete Academy
and the disenrollment.
Absence Notification
School administration must be contacted for students with extenuating circumstances and
cases will be reviewed on an individual basis. As parents, you are a vital part of your child’s
success and future achievement. We encourage all parents to support their children in
attending school daily and on time. Students who are absent from school miss important
instruction and assignments. Students who develop patterns of good attendance are much
more likely to be successful both academically and socially, as well as later in life in the
workforce. Please call the appropriate school office, no later than 9:00 AM to report an
absence, when you know your child will be absent.
Excused Absences for Classroom Based Attendance
Absence from school shall be excused only for health reasons, family emergencies and
justifiable personal reasons, as permitted by law or Board policy.
A student's absence shall be excused for the following reasons:
1. Personal illness;
2. Quarantine under the direction of a county or city health officer;
3. Medical, dental, eye or chiropractic appointments;
4. Attendance at funeral services for a member of the immediate family:
a. Excused absence in this instance shall be limited to one day if the service is conducted
in California or three days if the service is conducted out of state.
b. "Immediate family" shall be defined as mother, father, grandmother, grandfather,
spouse, son/son-in-law, daughter/ daughter-in-law, brother, sister, step-brother, stepsister or any relative living in the student's immediate household.
5. Jury duty in the manner provided by law;
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6. Spending time with a member of the pupil’s immediate family, who is an active-duty
member of the uniformed services and has been called to duty for, is on leave from, or has
immediately returned from, deployment to a combat zone or combat support position.
7.Attending the pupil’s naturalization ceremony to become a Unite States citizen.
8. Justifiable personal reasons, with advance written request by the parent/guardian and
approval of the Chief Operations Officer or designee including, but not limited to:
a. Appearance in court;
b. Attendance at a funeral;
c. Observation of a holiday or ceremony of his/her religion;
d. Attendance at religious retreats (not to exceed four hours per semester)
Method of Verification
When students who have been absent return to school, they must present a satisfactory
explanation verifying the reason for the absence. The following methods may be used to
verify student absences:
1. Written note from parent/guardian;
2. Conversation, in person or by telephone, between the verifying employee and the
student's parent/guardian. The employee shall subsequently record the following:
a. Name of student;
b. Name of parent/guardian;
c. Name of verifying employee;
d. Date or dates of absence; and
e. Reason for absence.
3. Visit to the student's home by the verifying employee, or any other reasonable method,
which establishes the fact that the student was absent for the reasons stated. A written
recording shall be made, including information outlined above.
4. Physician's verification
a. When excusing students for confidential medical services or verifying such
appointments, School staff shall not ask the purpose of such appointments but may
contact a medical office to confirm the time of the appointment.
b. When a student has had 11 absences in the school year for illness verified by methods
listed in #1-#3 above, any further absences for illness must be verified by a physician.
Insofar as class participation is an integral part of students' learning experiences,
parents/guardians and students shall be encouraged to schedule medical appointments
during non-school hours.
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Attendance Tips for Parents/Guardians
•
•
•
•
•

Plan vacations for non-school days only.
Schedule all appointments for your child after school, on weekend days or during your
child’s vacation.
Make sure your child’s school has your accurate daytime contact information,
including cell phone number and/or email address.
Communicate with your child’s school often and monitor your child’s attendance and
school progress online Illuminate.
Make the school aware of any problems that may be causing your child to miss school.

Punctuality
Students should arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of each school day. Tardiness is
disruptive to the class and places a burden on the teacher as well as the student who is
entering class after morning activities have begun. Anytime a student arrives late to class,
valuable instructional time is lost. School campus supervision begins at 7:30 a.m. and
students should not arrive before that time.
Unexcused Absences/Truancy for Classroom Based Attendance
The Chief Operations Officer, or designee, shall implement positive steps to reduce truancy.
Students who are habitual truants may be referred to the appropriate law enforcement
agency. When the student's attendance problems cannot be resolved or the student and
parent/guardian have failed to respond to directives to correct the problem, a student who
has been classified as truant may be referred to the district attorney or probation officer for
truancy mediation. Further, the school attendance review board or probation officer may
request a juvenile court petition on behalf of the student. A student's grades may be affected
by excessive unexcused absences in accordance with Board policy.
A student shall be classified as a habitual truant if he or she is absent from school without a
valid excuse three full days in one school year, or tardy or absent for more than any 30minute period during the school day without a valid excuse on three occasions in one school
year, or any combination thereof. Such students shall be reported to the Chief Operations
Officer or designee.
The parent/guardian of a student classified as a truant shall be notified of the following:
a. The student is truant;
b. The parent/guardian is obligated to compel the student to attend school;
c. The parent/guardian who fails to meet this obligation may be guilty of an infraction of
the law and subject to prosecution;
d. The parent/guardian has the right to meet with appropriate school personnel to
discuss solutions to the student's truancy;
e. It is recommended that the parent/guardian accompany the student to school and
attend classes with the student for one day.
A habitual truant may be referred to a school attendance review board or to the probation
department. When a student is referred to a school attendance review board or to the
probation department, the Chief Operations Officer or designee shall provide the student
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and parent/guardian, in writing, the name and address of the school attendance review
board or probation department and the reason for the referral. This notice shall indicate that
the student and parent/guardian will be required, along with a school staff member, to meet
with the school attendance review board or probation officer to consider a proper
disposition of the referral. If the school attendance review board or probation officer
determines that available community services can resolve the problem of the truant or
insubordinate students, then the school attendance review board or probation officer shall
direct the student and/or the student’s parents/guardians to make use of these resources. If
the school attendance review board or probation officer determines that available
community services cannot resolve the problem of the truant or insubordinate student or if
the student and/or student’s parents/guardians have failed to respond to the directives of
the school attendance review board or probation officer or to services provided, the school
attendance review board and/or probation officer may notify the county district attorney.
Tardy Policy
School begins at 8:00 a.m., and students who are not in their classroom, when instruction
begins will be considered tardy. Tardies are marked as excused, unexcused or truant.
Parents/guardians shall write a note of explanation when they have knowledge of their
child’s tardiness. Any unexcused tardy in excess of 30 minutes will be counted toward
truancy.
Attendance Intervention
Education is a partnership between parents, students and the school. The attendance policy
is not intended to be punitive for the parent or student. The school will work with you to
address issues or concerns, which may be preventing your child from attending school
regularly. The school will perform due diligence in addressing students with attendance
problems and will work collaboratively with students, parent/guardian(s) and school officials
in order to decrease barriers to regular school attendance. Attendance interventions that may
be used by the school in order to reduce barriers to regular school attendance may include:
a. Phones calls
b. Letters home
c. Parent Conferences
d. Home visits
e. Parent Attendance Assemblies
f. Case management services
g. Referral to school and community resources
Attendance Incentives
Crete Academy acknowledges students with good attendance. Perfect Attendance
Certificates, participation in special activities, attendance assemblies and other rewards and
special recognitions are used to motivate all students and reward those with good
attendance. At the end of the school year Crete Academy will identify and announce the
special Perfect Attendance reward for the school year.
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Students Leaving Early from School
When picking up a student early, the parent or authorized adult must sign the student out in
the main office. Parents may not enter the classroom without approval from the office. In
the event that a parent would like to take a student home early from a field trip, the parent
must sign the student out of school and into parental care prior to leaving for the trip.
Homework Policy
Crete Academy believes homework is an integral part of our instructional program. It is a
valuable extension of our classroom teaching and should reinforce, extend, or enrich the
concepts that our students have been taught in class.
Homework is assigned in all grades and should be returned per the instructions from your
child’s teacher. Students will be expected to turn in all homework assignments in a neat and
legible manner. You can help your son/daughter by being aware of what their homework
consists of and looking over the assignments when completed. Students should attempt to
complete their homework independently, but may need assistance. If your child needs
assistance, PLEASE DO NOT COMPLETE THE HOMEWORK FOR HIM/HER. As a
parent, please guide your child(ren), allowing them every opportunity to do their own work.
We encourage you to speak with the teacher, if your child is experiencing consistent and
continuous difficulty.
Textbooks and School Materials Policy
Students will receive books and materials required for instruction. These textbooks and
materials become the responsibility of the student and will be returned at the end of the
school year. Parents will be charged for a lost, damaged, or stolen book limited to the value
of the book at the time of its loss or damage or the cost to repair the book, whichever is less.
Loss or Damaged School Property Policy
Parent(s)/Guardian(s) will be charged for any items lost or damaged by their child/children
limited to the value of the property at the time of its loss or damage or the cost to repair the
book, whichever is less. This applies to property on the campus that may need to be replaced
or repaired due to damage incurred through the irresponsible and/or destructive behavior of
a child.
Electronic Devices and Non-School Related Property
Personal property not related to the school’s programs is not to be brought to school and
may be confiscated by staff. Personal property not related to the school’s programs may
include, but are not limited to, Fidget Spinners, cell phones, IPods, CD’s, cameras, pagers,
card collections, marbles, toys, hand-held video game systems, video games, laser pointers,
permanent markers. If you are not sure about any other items, please ask. Devices, including
those from the list above that are related to accommodations, modifications, or services
provided by student’s Individualized Education Program or Section 504 Plan are permitted
to the extent they are used in accordance with that accommodation, modification, or service.
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Crete Academy is not responsible for any personal property items brought on campus. The
loss of items or stolen property will not necessarily be investigated. This is at the discretion
of administration. Confiscated personal properties will require a parent to come in for
conference and retrieval. Teachers, yard supervisors, administrators and other adult staff will
confiscate electronic devices being used or played with on campus. As stated above, a device
that is confiscated, will not be returned until a parent conference has been scheduled. If the
behavior continues, a behavior contract will be instituted to address the problem. If a
student refuses to comply with the staff member’s request to physically hand over the
electronic device, this will be considered an act of defiance and an appropriate consequence
will follow.
Birthday Celebrations Policy
Crete Academy respects the importance of celebrating our student’s birthdays; however,
protecting instructional time is our top priority. We do allow a parent to celebrate their
child’s birthday by visiting during the final ten minutes of class, in agreement with the
classroom teacher, engaging in an appropriate celebration of his/her choosing. Due to
student allergy and health concerns, if a parent is interested in bringing food or treats for the
celebration, the parent must first get approval of the treat from the Chief Operations
Officer.
Treatment and School Related Injuries Procedures
It is the policy of the school to treat minor injuries/administer first aid (scrapes, paper cuts,
bumps) with ice packs, compresses, or band aids as needed. The school staff will contact the
parent or guardian when more serious injuries occur. If a student needs further treatment,
the parent, or ambulance will transport the student to the doctor or hospital. In the event
that a parent/guardian cannot be reached, the school will contact the physician listed on the
emergency card to make whatever arrangements necessary to provide health service to the
student. It is very important that parents/guardians fill out the emergency card. A new card
is sent home at the beginning of each school year. Any change during the year should be
forwarded to the school’s office. The emergency numbers (someone who can be responsible
for a student in the absence of the parent/guardian) should be local numbers.
In the event of an emergency, as deemed by the Chief Operations Office or his or her
designee, Crete Academy will contact emergency services for treatment. If you do not wish
for your child to receive medical treatment other than first aid, you must submit a written
objection to medical services to the Chief Operations Officer.
Report Cards & Progress Reports
Students will receive report cards two (2) times per year with progress reports after each
benchmark period (4 times per year). Parents are encouraged to review these reports with
the child; then sign and return one copy within the noted time frame. To ensure parents are
aware of their child’s progress, parents will be contacted should the student not return the
report card.
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California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (“CAASPP”)
The School shall annually administer required state testing to the applicable grades (e.g., the
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress.) Notwithstanding any other
provision of law, a parent’s or guardian’s written request to School officials to excuse his or
her child from any or all parts of the state assessments shall be granted.
Meeting with Teachers
Parents/guardians are encouraged to meet with their children’s teachers. Meetings can be
scheduled through the Main Office, emailing your child’s teacher or by speaking with your
child’s teacher during non-instructional hours. Please let the Main Office know if translation is
needed.
Teacher Qualification Information
All parents may request information regarding the professional qualifications of classroom
teachers and/or paraprofessionals.
Crete Academy - School Wide Discipline Plan
At Crete Academy, we believe that discipline is not about punishment, but rather about
behavior adaptation, redirection and the development of personal accountability. Students
experience various developmental stages during the growing years. The school community is
an informed community, which promotes among its staff, an understanding of ageappropriate behaviors. In order to support personal responsibility and positive social
interactions school-wide, Crete Academy has developed a school wide plan for positive
behavior intervention and support. Together, students, staff, and families will build a
foundation that students will need in order to function harmoniously throughout the school
day with their peers and teachers. The effectiveness of the school-wide plan requires the
participation and support of all staff members and families. In order to be truly effective,
there must be continuity in the home environment.
Components of CRETE ACADEMY’s DISCIPLINE Plan
Crete Academy Discipline Plan
School Wide Expectations
Crete Academy is instituting a school wide behavior expectation plan that focuses on a
student first approach. Our staff is committed to serving our students with the finest
performance character education possible. The Crete staff will exhibit and teach these
desired behaviors and attitudes through the Crete Core Value System.
We expect students to exhibit high Character in all that they do, take Responsibility for their actions,
appreciate everyone’s differences and treat them Equally, approach each day with a Teachable growth
mindset, while demonstrating Excellence at all times.
The enclosed chart provides the specific behaviors that students must exhibit while they are
in the office, hallways, and bathrooms, assemblies, eating areas and on the playground. To
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create a productive and safe learning environment for all learners, it is also important to have
clear policies and consequences for behavior that is not consistent with good citizenship or
interferes with the creation of a positive and safe learning environment. Students who do not
adhere to the expectations and/or who violate them repeatedly may expect consequences for
their behavior, including but not limited to the following:
• Warnings
• Loss of privileges such as time outs, detentions, restrictions from field trips and
student activities
• Notices to parents/guardians by telephone or letter Request for parent conference
• Suspension
• Expulsion
Discipline Policy
Crete Academy will create a safe, peaceful and nurturing environment where learning is
paramount. To achieve this, we have adapted the LAUSD Discipline Foundation Policy
adopted by the district in February 2007. With the guiding principles of the policy as a
foundation, teacher leaders and administration have crafted a formal discipline policy with an
effective school-wide positive behavior support system.
Crete Academy teachers and staff members will engage in conscious classroom management
strategies to ensure scholarly student behavior and on task learning each day. Professional
development will be provided before school begins each summer with ongoing
opportunities for additional techniques. It is the goal of Crete Academy to have at least 95%
of all students in school, every day, because the environment is conducive to learning. We
will also develop a tiered approach to ensuring that the emotional and social needs of
students are met through universal, selected and intensive strategies.
At Crete Academy, we will make every effort to avoid suspensions and expulsions, but in the
event a suspension or expulsion is necessitated, all state and federal laws pertaining to
suspensions and expulsions will be upheld. Students who present an immediate threat to the
health and safety of others will be suspended or expelled. A written remediation plan will
clearly describe progressive discipline measures, grounds for suspension and expulsion,
minimum/maximum number of consecutive days of suspension, notification process to
parents of suspension, reasons for suspension, appeal process, and provision for student’s
education while suspended.
Grounds for Suspension & Expulsion
A student shall not be suspended from school or recommended for expulsion unless the
Chief Executive/Academic Officer or Dean of Students of Crete Academy determines that
the student has:
• While on school grounds;
• While going to or coming from school;
• During lunch period, whether on or off the school campus; or
• During, or while going to or coming from, a school-sponsored activity,
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1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another
person.
2. Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except in self- defense.
3. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous
object, unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the pupil had obtained
written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, which is
concurred in writing by the Chief Executive/Academic Officer or designee
4. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, or otherwise furnished, or been under the influence
of, any controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of
Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, an alcoholic beverage, or an intoxicant of
any kind.
5. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance listed in
Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety
Code, alcoholic beverage, or an intoxicant of any kind and either sold, delivered or
otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or material and represented
the liquid, substance, or material as a controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or
intoxicant.
6. Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.
7. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property
(includes, but is not limited to, electronic files and databases).
8. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property (includes, but is not
limited to, electronic files and databases).
9. Possessed or used tobacco, or any products containing tobacco or nicotine products
including, but not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes,
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel (exception may be made for use or
possession by a pupil of his or her own prescription products).
10. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
11. Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug
paraphernalia, as defined in Section 1104.5 of the Health and Safety Code
12. Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors,
teachers, administrators, school officials or other school personnel engaged in the
performance of their duties. (SB419 exempts students in grades 4-6 from being suspended
for this violation).
13. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.
14. Possessed an imitation firearm.
15. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault or committed a sexual battery.
16. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a pupil who is a complaining witness or a witness in a
school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of either preventing that pupil from being
a witness or retaliating against that pupil for being a witness, or both.
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17. Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription
drug Soma.
18. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing.
19. Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying, committed by means
of an electronic act, directed specifically toward a pupil, group of pupils or school
personnel that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one of more of
the following:
20. Placing a reasonable pupil, group of pupils, or school personnel in fear of harm to
that pupil or those pupil’s person or property;
21. Causing reasonable pupil or school personnel to experience a substantially detrimental
effect on his or her mental health;
22. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with his or her
academic performance;
23. Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with his or her ability
to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by the
school.
24. Aided or abetted the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury to another person,
(suspension only),
25. Committed sexual harassment, grades (only students in grades 4-6).
26. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate
violence, (only students in grades 4-6)
27. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats or intimidation directed against school
personnel or pupils (only students in grades 4-6).
Students will immediately be suspended and recommended for expulsion, without discretion, for
any of the following that occur at the school or at a school activity off campus:
1. Possessing, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm if an employee of the charter school
verifies the possession.
2. Brandishing a knife at another person.
3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section
11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code.
4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery
5. Possession of an explosive.
Process for Suspension and/or Expulsion
Notice to Parents
Parents and students will have due process rights with regards to suspensions and
expulsions. At the time of a student’s suspension, the Dean of Students (“DS”) shall make a
reasonable effort to contact the parents by telephone or in person. Initial contact will be followed
by written notice. This notice will state the specific offense committed by the student. In
addition, the notice will also state the date and time the student may return to school.
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Informal Conference
An informal conference conducted by the Chief Executive/Academic Officer (“CEO”) and/or
DS will be held, with the student and the student’s parent to discuss the circumstances relevant to
the suspension. This conference may be omitted if the CEO and/or DS determine that an
emergency situation exists. An emergency situation involves a clear and present danger to the
lives, safety or health of students or school personnel. If the student is suspended without a
conference, the parents will be notified of the suspension and a conference will be conducted
when the parent comes to pick up the student from school. If the school is unable to reach a
parent or guardian after all avenues are exhausted, a notice may inform the parents that they are
required to respond without delay.
Determination of Length of Suspension
The CEO will determine the length of the suspension and/or DS based on the severity of the
offense(s), as evidenced by witness statements, physical evidence, and other relevant factors. The
length of suspension for students may not exceed a period of 5 consecutive school days unless
the suspension is extended pending an expulsion hearing. A student may be suspended from
school for not more than 20 school days in any school year; this restriction on the number of
days of suspension does not apply, however, when the suspension is extended pending an
expulsion.
Arrangements shall be made to provide the student with classroom material and current
assignments to be completed at home during the length of the suspension or pending an
expulsion hearing. These materials will include in-class written assignments and homework;
however, any written assessments missed by the student must be made up within a reasonable
amount of time, determined by the teacher, if and when the student returns to his/her classroom.
Recommendations for Expulsion
If the CEO and/or DS recommends expulsion, the student and the student’s parents will be
invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the student should be extended
pending an expulsion hearing conducted by an Administrative Panel. The CEO and/or DS will
make this determination upon either of the following findings:
•
•

The student’s presence will likely be disruptive to the educational process
The student poses a threat or danger to others

Upon this determination, the student’s suspension will be extended pending the results of an
expulsion hearing.
Expulsion Hearing
Students recommended for expulsion will be entitled to a hearing before an Administrative Panel
to determine whether or not the student should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause,
the hearing will be held within 30 days after the CEO and/or DS determines that the student has
committed an expellable offense. A student may be expelled following a hearing before an
Administrative Panel to be assigned by the Board. The Administrative
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Panel will consist of 3-5 certificated administrators from other charter schools or teachers from
the school site who are not teachers of the pupil or teachers involved in the incident, and 1-2
Board members of the Charter School Board of Directors. The hearing shall be heldin closed
session (complying with all pupil confidentiality rules under FERPA) unless the Pupil makes a
written request for a public hearing three (3) days prior to the hearing. Written notice of the
hearing will be forwarded by the CEO/DS to the student and the student’s parents, by email and
certified mail, at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing. This notice will include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The date and place of the hearing;
A statement of the specific facts, charges and offense upon which the proposed expulsion
is based;
A copy of the disciplinary rules that relate to the alleged violation;
Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information
about the student’s status at the Charter School to any other school district or school to
which the student seeks enrollment;
Notice of the opportunity for the student and/or the student’s parents to appear
in person at the hearing;
Notice of the opportunity for the student to be represented by legal counsel or a nonattorney advisor;
Notice of the right to examine and acquire copies of all documents to be used at the
hearing;
Notice of the opportunity to confront and question all witnesses that testify at the
hearing; and
Notice of the opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and
documentary evidence and witnesses on behalf of the student.

Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses
Crete Academy may, upon a finding of good cause, determine that the disclosure of either the
identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would subject
the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this determination,
the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of sworn declarations
that shall be examined only by the CEO and Administrative Panel.
Copies of these sworn declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be
made available to the pupil.
1. The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a
copy of the applicable disciplinary rules and advised of his/her right to receive a fiveday notice of his/her scheduled testimony,
2. have up to two (2) adult support persons of his/her choosing present in the hearing
at the time he/she testifies, which may include a parent, guardian, or legal counsel,
and elect to have the hearing closed while testifying.
3. Crete Academy must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room for
the complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony.
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4. At the discretion of the person or panel conducting the hearing, the complaining witness
shall be allowed periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which
he or she may leave the hearing room.

5. The person or panel conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within
the hearing room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining
witness.
6. The person or panel conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the
testimony of the complaining witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there
is no good cause to take the testimony during other hours.
7. Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that
the hearing is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the person or panel presiding
over the hearing from removing a support person whom the presiding entity finds is
disrupting the hearing. The entity conducting the hearing may permit any one of the
support persons for the complaining witness to accompany him or her to the witness
stand.
8. If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, Crete Academy must present
9. Evidence that the witness ‘presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to
Crete Academy. The person or panel presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness
to stay unless it is established that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the
complaining witness would be influenced by the support person, in which case the
presiding official shall admonish the support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or
influence the witness in any way. Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer from
exercising his or her discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom he or she
believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing the witness.
10. The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the
complaining witness and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the
courtroom during that testimony.
11. Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted
in the public at the request of the pupil being expelled, the complaining witness shall have
the right to have his/her testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public
meeting would threaten serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there
are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm. The alternative procedures
may include videotaped depositions or contemporaneous examination in another place
communicated to the hearing room by means of closed-circuit television.
12. Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is
presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard absent a determination by the person or
panel conducting the hearing that extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the
evidence be heard. Before such a determination regarding extraordinary circumstance can
be made, the witness shall be provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition
to the introduction of the evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence,
the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by a parent, legal counsel, or
other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of
the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose.
Record of Hearing
A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, including
electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of
the proceedings can be made.
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Presentation of Evidence
While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be
admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons
can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. A recommendation by the Administrative Panel to
expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable
offense. Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay
evidence is admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay. Sworn
declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of whom the Board, Panel or
designee determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject
them to an unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.
If, due to a written request by the expelled pupil, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and
the charge is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual
battery as defined in Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the
right to have his or her testimony heard in a session closed to the public.
The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and
a written recommendation to the Board of Directors, which will make a final determination
regarding the expulsion. The final decision by the Board of Directors shall be made within
ten (10) school days following the conclusion of the hearing. If the Board of Directors
decides not to expel, the pupil shall immediately be returned to his/her educational program.
Written Notice to Expel
The CEO or administrative designee, following a decision of the Board of Directors to
expel, shall send written notice of the decision to expel, including the Board of Director’s
adopted findings of fact, to the student or parent/guardian. This notice shall also include the
following:
a. Notice of the specific offense committed by the student;
b. Notice of appeal rights/procedures
c. Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian ‘s obligation to inform any new district
in which the student seeks to enroll of the student ‘s status with the Charter School;
Notice of any appeal options; information about alternative placement options; the
reinstatement eligibility review date and a copy of the Rehabilitation Plan.
Upon expelling any student, Crete shall notify the Charter Schools Division by submitting an
expulsion packet to the CSD immediately or as soon as practicable, which shall contain:
• Completed “Notification of Charter School Expulsion” [form available from the CSD
website or office], including attachments as required on the form
• Documentation of the expulsion proceeding, including statement of specific facts
supporting the expulsion and documentation that Crete’s policies and procedures
were followed
• Copy of parental notice of expulsion hearing
• Copy of expulsion notice provided to parent stating reason for expulsion, term of
expulsion, rehabilitation plan, reinstatement notice with eligibility date and instructions
for providing proof of student’s compliance for reinstatement, appeal process, options
options for enrollment
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• If the student is eligible for Special Education, documentation related to expulsion in
compliance with IDEA and the MCD, including the Expulsion Analysis page of the
pre- expulsion IEP
• If the student is eligible for Section 504 accommodations, documentation that
Charter School conducted a Link Determination meeting to address two questions:
A. Was the misconduct caused by, or directly and substantially related to the
student’s disability?
B. Was the misconduct a direct result of Charter School’s failure to implement 504
Plan?
Notwithstanding the documentation sent to the Charter Schools Division as indicated
above, if the student is a resident of a school district other than LAUSD, Charter School
must notify the superintendent of the student’s district of residence within 30 days of the
expulsion. Additionally, upon request of the receiving school district, Charter School shall
forward student records no later than 10 school days from the date of the request as stated
in Education Code section 49068 (a) and (b).
Disciplinary Records
The Charter School shall maintain records of all student suspensions and expulsions at the
Charter School. Such records shall be made available to the authorizer upon request.
Appeals Process
Parents/Guardians may appeal the expulsion decision of the Administrative Panel by making
a written request and submitting it to the Board within fifteen (15) school days of the
expulsion decision. The student will be considered suspended until a Board meeting is
convened [within thirty (30) days] at which time the parent(s)/guardian(s) (or student aged
18 or over) must attend to present their appeal. Hearing procedures will be substantially
similar to those offered during the original hearing. Reasonable accommodations will be
made, and language support offered, for students and parents/guardians who wish to appeal.
Following the appeal hearing, the Board will make a final decision based on the information
presented at the appeal hearing by the parent(s)/guardian(s) (or student aged 18 or over) and
information from the original expulsion hearing. The Principal or designee will send written
notice to the student or parent/guardian of the Board’s decision within seven (7) calendar
days of the appeal hearing. The Charter School Board’s decision to uphold the
administrative panel’s decision to expel shall be final. If the Board overturns the expulsion,
the pupil shall immediately be returned to his/her educational program.
Special Education Students
Crete shall establish and implement policies and procedures to ensure full compliance with
federal and state laws and regulations regarding the discipline of students with disabilities. If
a student is recommended for expulsion and the student receives or is eligible for special
education, Crete shall identify and provide special education programs and services at an
appropriate interim educational placement, pending the completion of the expulsion process,
to be coordinated with the LAUSD Special Education Service Center.

2/4/2022

31

In the case of a student who has an IEP, or a student who has a 504 Plan, Crete Academy
will ensure that it follows the correct disciplinary procedures to comply with the mandates of
state and federal laws, including the IDEA and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Plan of
1973. As set forth in the MOU regarding special education between the District and Crete
Academy, an IEP team, including a district representative, will meet to conduct a
manifestation determination and to discuss alternative placement utilizing the Crete’s
Policies and Procedures. Prior to recommending expulsion for a student with an IEP or 504
Plan, Crete Academy administrator will convene a Manifestation Determination Meeting to
ask the determine:
A) Was the misconduct caused by, or directly and substantially related to the student’s
disability?
B) Was the misconduct a direct result of Crete Academy failure to implement the 504 Plan?
Homeless Students
The term “homeless children and youth” means individuals who lack a fixed, regular and
adequate nighttime residence due to economic hardship. It includes children and youths who:
1. Are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship,
or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due
to the lack of alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or
transitional shelters; or are abandoned in hospitals;
2. Have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for
or ordinarily used as regular sleeping accommodations for human beings;
3. Are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus
or train stations, or similar settings; and
4. Migratory children and unaccompanied youth (youth not in the physical custody of a
parent or guardian) may be considered homeless if they meet the above definition of
“homeless.”
Homeless status is determined in cooperation with the parent or guardian. In the case of
unaccompanied youth, the School Liaison determines status.
School Liaison: The CEO or designee designates the following staff person as the School
Liaison for homeless students:
Hattie Mitchell
Chief Executive Officer
Crete Academy
6103 Crenshaw Blvd. Los
Angeles, CA 90043
Telephone: (323) 791-1600_______________

The School Liaison shall ensure that:
1.
Homeless students are identified by school personnel and through coordination
activities with other entities and agencies.
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2.

Homeless students enroll in, and have a full and equal opportunity to succeed at
Crete Academy.

3.

Homeless students and families receive educational services for which they are
eligible, including services through Head Start programs (including Early Head
Start programs) under the Head Start Act, early intervention services under part C
of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, any other preschool programs
administered by Crete Academy, if any, and referrals to health care services, dental
services, mental health services and substance abuse services, housing services, and
other appropriate services.

4.

Parents/guardians are informed of the educational and related opportunities
available to their children and are provided with meaningful opportunities to
participate in the education of their children.

5.

Public notice of the educational rights of homeless children is disseminated at
places frequented by parents or guardians of such youths, and unaccompanied
youths, including schools, shelters, public libraries, and soup kitchens, and in a
manner and form understandable to the parents and guardians of homeless youth
and unaccompanied youth.

6.

Enrollment/admissions disputes are mediated in accordance with law, Crete
Academy charter, and Board policy.

7.

Parents/guardians and any unaccompanied youth are fully informed of all
transportation services, as applicable.

8.

School personnel providing services receive professional development and other
support.

9.

The School Liaison collaborates with State coordinators and community and
school personnel responsible for the provision of education and related services
to homeless children and youths.

10.

Unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school; have opportunities to meet the same
challenging State academic standards as the State establishes for other children and
youth; and are informed of their status as independent students under section 480
of the Higher Education Act of 1965 and that the youths mayobtain assistance from
the School Liaison to receive verification of such status for the purposes of the
Free Application for Federal Student Aid described in section 483 of the Act.

For any homeless student who enrolls at the School, a copy of the School’s complete policy
shall be provided at the time of enrollment and at least twice annually.
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SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY
Crete Academy desires to maintain an academic and work environment in which all
employees, students, and volunteers are treated with respect and dignity. A vital element of
this atmosphere is the School’s commitment to equal opportunities and the prohibition of
discriminatory practices. The School’s prohibition against discriminatory practices includes
prohibitions against sexual harassment, or any other form of harassment based on actual or
perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity,
religion, religious affiliation, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained
in the definition of hate crimes in the California Penal Code. The School forbids sexual
harassment, or any other form of illegal harassment, of any employee, student, volunteer or
visitor. The School will not tolerate sexual harassment, or any other form of illegal
harassment by any of its employees, students, volunteers or agents.
Educational Environment
Within the educational environment, sexual harassment is prohibited between students, and
between employees or agents/non-employees (such as contract employees, service
providers, or volunteers) and students.
Work Environment
Within the work environment, sexual harassment is prohibited between supervisors and
employees, between employees, and between agents/non-employees (such as contract
employees, service providers, or volunteers) and employees.
DEFINITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT
Sexual harassment occurs when unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and
other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature are:
1. made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual's
educational status or employment;
2. used as a basis for educational or employment decisions affecting such individual;
or
3. has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's
educational or work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive
educational or working environment.
The following acts are considered sexual harassment, may be unlawful and will not be
tolerated at Crete Academy:
1. Making unsolicited written, verbal, physical and/or visual contact with sexual
overtones.
• Written examples include but are not limited to: suggestive or obscene letters,
notes, and invitations.
• Verbal examples include, but are not limited to: derogatory comments,
innuendos, slurs, jokes, and epithets.
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•

Physical examples include, but are not limited to: assault, touching, impeding,
or blocking movement.

•

Visual examples include, but are not limited to: leering, gestures, display of
sexually suggestive objects or pictures, cartoons, or posters.

2. Continuing to express sexual interest after being informed that the interest is
unwelcome.
• Reciprocal attraction between appropriate parties is not considered sexual
harassment
3. Making reprisals, threats of reprisal, or implied threats of reprisal following a
negative response.
• For example, within the work environment, either implying or actually
withholding support for an appointment, promotion, or change of
assignment; suggesting a poor performance report will be prepared, or
suggesting probation will be failed.
• For example, within the educational environment either implying or
actually, withholding grades earned or deserved; suggesting a “bad” report
card; or suggesting a call will be made or letter sent home to the parent
alleging “bad” behavior
4. Within the work environment, engaging in implicit or explicit coercive sexual
behavior, which is used to control, influence, or affect the career, salary, and/or
work environment of another employee.
5. Within the educational environment, engaging in implicit or explicit coercive
sexual behavior that is used to control, influence, or affect the educational
opportunities, grades, and/or learning environment of a student.
• Offering favors or educational or employment benefits, such as grades or
promotions, favorable performance evaluations, favorable assignments,
favorable duties or shifts, recommendations, reclassification, etc. in exchange
for sexual favors.
• Any expression of sexual interest between adults and students, regardless of
reciprocity is considered inappropriate and shall be subject to discipline
under applicable state law.
COMPLAINT AND REPORTING PROCEDURE
Process
Any student, employee, or agent who believes he or she has been sexually harassed by an
employee, agent, or student of the School, should promptly report the facts of the
incident(s) and the name of the individual involved to an adult staff member with whom
they feel comfortable, and that person shall report the incident to the Chief Operations
Officer (“COO”). If the alleged harasser is the COO, the person can report the incident to
the Chief Executive Officer. A written report of the alleged incident will be developed by the
COO or by the Chief Executive Officer. A copy of the report, along with a copy of this
policy, shall be mailed to the parent of the student who initiated the complaint. All staff,
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upon personal knowledge of an incident of sexual harassment, are obligated to report it to
the COO, or if the harasser is the COO, the report shall be made to the Chief Executive
Officer. Failure to do so is a violation of this policy. Failure of staff to report student
allegations of sexual harassment within three (3) school days is a violation of this policy.
Students who feel aggrieved because of unwelcome conduct that may constitute sexual
harassment are not required to inform the person engaging in such conduct that the conduct
is unwanted, offensive and must stop, but are encouraged to do so. Students are not required
to complain to his or her teacher if that teacher is the individual who is harassing the
student. Any individuals making a report may bring an advocate to assist them.
Filing Complaints with State and Federal Agencies
Aggrieved parties may wish to file complaints with other appropriate state and federal
agencies, including:
U.S. Office for Civil Rights
50 United Nations Plaza, Room 239, San Francisco, CA 94102 (415) 556-7000
The State Fair Employment and Housing Commission
30 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102, (415) 557-2005.
Confidentiality
An allegation of sexual harassment and the results of the investigation shall be kept
confidential to the extent reasonably possible under the investigative process. Witnesses and
those interviewed shall be informed of the confidential nature of the issues and the
investigation, and shall be informed that it will be a violation of this policy to disclose the
allegation or the nature of the investigation to others and shall be subject to disciplinary
action as defined in this policy.
Retaliation is Prohibited
The initiation of an allegation of sexual harassment, will not cause any reflection on the
individual reporting the incident or witnesses nor will it affect such persons’ future business
dealings with the School, his or her employment, compensation or work assignments, or, in
the case of students, grades, class section or other matters pertaining to his or her status as a
student of any School programs. It shall be a violation of this policy to engage in such
retaliation. An allegation of retaliation shall be considered as a separate incident, shall be
investigated, and shall be subject to disciplinary action.
Time Limits
The complainant shall report allegations of sexual harassment as soon as reasonably possible
after the conduct in question has taken place. Students, employees, or agents of the school
wishing to report allegations to additional agencies, such as the U.S. Office for Civil Rights,
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should know that this agency follows a 180-day time limit for reporting alleged incidents of
sexual harassment.
Disciplinary Action
When an allegation of sexual harassment is supported by the investigation and disciplinary
action is necessary, the Chief Executive Officer will determine what course of action is
appropriate, depending upon whether the harasser is a student, staff member, or agent of the
School. Employees who violate this policy may be subject to discipline up to and including
dismissal. Such disciplinary action shall be in accordance with applicable policies, laws, state
or federal. Students who violate this policy may be subject to discipline up to and including
expulsion. Such disciplinary action shall be in accordance with board policy and state law.
Agents of the School who violate this policy may be subject to penalties and sanctions as
may be available to the School, including termination of business relationships and contracts
or the privilege of volunteering on campus.
Appeal Procedures
Either the complaining party or the accused may appeal the findings of an investigation to
the Governing Board of the School. Appeals shall be made in writing within ten (10)
business days from the date of a finding.
Training
To implement this policy, Crete will provide appropriate training programs for staff.
Teachers will be instructed to discuss the topic in a pedagogically and age-appropriate way
with their students.
Notification
There will be adequate notification of the policy to include permanent posters in public
areas, offices, and hallways. The policy will be published in the Employee Handbook and
described in the Family Handbook. Copies will also be available upon request in the School
office.
Administrative Regulation
School administration shall adopt, and from time to time may revise, further procedures as
may be necessary to implement this policy and provide for a means of enforcing this policy.
Such further procedures may include the following: posting and other means of distributing
the policy; a process under which complaints will be handled, formally or informally, an
explanation of possible civil proceedings and potential legal consequences of sexual
harassment. The school administration will initiate training and education programs to
enable all persons, and in particular, supervisors, to better understand the problem of sexual
harassment.
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Special Assistance
It is expected that questions may arise concerning the interpretation of the prohibition
against sexual harassment, the methods and procedures to be following in the investigation
of complaints, and the appropriateness of specific solutions in disposition of complaints. For
assistance in these matters, individuals may contact the Chief Executive Officer.
CRETE ACADEMY MODEL ANTI-BULLYING POLICY
Crete Academy believes that all students have a right to a safe and healthy school environment.
The district, schools, and community have an obligation to promote mutual respect, tolerance, and
acceptance. Crete Academy Board of Directors’ recognizes that a school that is physically and
emotionally safe and secure for all students promotes good citizenship, increases student attendance
and engagement, and supports academic achievement. To protect the rights of all students and
groups for a safe and secure learning environment, the Board of Directors prohibits acts of bullying,
harassment, and other forms of aggression and violence. Bullying or harassment, like other forms of
aggressive and violent behaviors, interferes with both a school’s ability to educate its students and a
student’s ability to learn. All administrators, faculty, staff, parents, volunteers, and students are
expected to refuse to tolerate bullying and harassment and to demonstrate behavior that is respectful
and civil. “Bullying” or “harassment” is any gesture or written, verbal, graphic, or physical act
(Including electronically transmitted acts – i.e., cyber bullying, through the use of internet,
cell phone, personal digital assistant (pda), computer, or wireless handheld device, currently
in use or later developed and used by students) that:
•
•
•
•
•

is reasonably perceived as being dehumanizing, intimidating, hostile,
humiliating, threatening, or otherwise likely to evoke fear of physical harm or
emotional distress; n is directed at one or more pupils;
is conveyed through physical, verbal, technological or emotional means;
Substantially interferes with educational opportunities, benefits, or programs
of one or more pupils;
adversely affects the ability of a pupil to participate in or benefit from the school
district’s or public school’s educational programs or activities by placing the pupil
in reasonable fear of physical harm or by causing emotional distress; and,
is based on a pupil’s actual or perceived distinguishing characteristic (see
above), or is based on an association with another person who has or is
perceived to have any of these characteristics.

Crete Academy will not tolerate behavior that infringes on the safety of any student. A student
shall not intimidate, harass, or bully another student through words or actions. Such behavior
includes: direct physical contact, such as hitting or shoving; verbal assaults, such as teasing or
name-calling; and social isolation or manipulation. Any electronic forms of the above behavior
through means of phone, computer or social media is considered cyber-bullying and will be
treated the same as in-person bullying.
Crete Academy expects students and/or staff to immediately report incidents of bullying to the
principal or designee. Staff who witness such acts take immediate steps to intervene when safe to
do so. Each complaint of bullying should be promptly investigated. This policy applies to students
on school grounds, while traveling to and from school or a school-sponsored activity, during the
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lunch period, whether on or off campus, and during a school-sponsored activity.
To ensure bullying does not occur on school campuses, Crete Academy will provide staff
development training in bullying prevention and cultivate acceptance and understanding in
all students and staff to build each school's capacity to maintain a safe and healthy learning
environment.
Teachers should discuss this policy with their students in age-appropriate ways and should assure
them that they need not endure any form of bullying. Students who bully are in violation of this
policy and are subject to disciplinary action up to and including expulsion.
Crete Academy has a Student Code of Conduct to be followed by every student while on school
grounds, or when traveling to and from school or a school-sponsored activity, and during lunch
period, whether on or off campus.
The Student Code of Conduct includes, but is not limited to:
•
•
•
•

Any student who engages in bullying may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
expulsion.
Students are expected to immediately report incidents of bullying to the principal or designee.
Students can rely on staff to promptly investigate each complaint of bullying in a thorough and
confidential manner.
If the complainant student or the parent of the student feels that appropriate resolution of the
investigation or complaint has not been reached, the student or the parent of the student should
contact the principal or the Office of Student Services. The school system prohibits retaliatory
behavior against any complainant or any participant in the complaint process.

The procedures for intervening in bullying behavior include, but are not limited, to the following:
•

•
•

All staff, students and their parents will receive a summary of this policy prohibiting intimidation
and bullying: at the beginning of the school year, as part of the student handbook
and/or information packet, as part of new student orientation, and as part of the school system's
notification to parents.
The school will make reasonable efforts to keep a report of bullying and the results of
investigation confidential.
Staff who witness acts of bullying shall take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so.
People witnessing or experiencing bullying are strongly encouraged to report the incident;
such reporting will not reflect on the target or witnesses in any way.

Consequences for a student who commits an act of bullying and harassment shall vary in
method and severity according to the nature of the behavior, the developmental age of
the student, and the student’s history of problem behaviors and performance, and must
be consistent with the Governing Board’s approved discipline policy. Remedial measures
shall be designed to: correct the problem behavior; prevent another occurrence of the
behavior; and protect the victim of the act. Effective discipline should employ a schoolwide approach to adopt a rubric of bullying offenses and the associated consequences.
The consequences and remedial measures may include, but are not limited to, the
examples listed below:
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Examples of Consequences
• Participation in a guided reflection process designed to teach alternative behavior
• Temporary removal from the classroom
• Loss of privileges
• Classroom or administrative detention
• In-school suspension during the school week
• Out-of-school suspension
• Legal action
• Expulsion
The Crete Academy Board of Directors prohibits any person from falsely accusing
another as a means of bullying or harassment. The consequences and appropriate
remedial action for a person found to have falsely accused another as a means of bullying
or harassment may range from positive behavioral interventions up to and including
suspension or expulsion.
Student Conflict Resolution Policy
Crete Academy believes that all students have a right to a safe and healthy school environment. Part
of a healthy environment is the freedom to openly disagree. With this freedom comes the
responsibility to discuss and resolve disagreements with respect for the rights and opinions of others.
To prevent conflict, Crete Academy will incorporate conflict resolution education and
problem-solving techniques into the curriculum and campus programs. This is an important
step in promoting respect and acceptance, developing new ways of communicating,
understanding, and accepting differing values and cultures within the school community
and helps ensure a safe and healthy learning environment
Crete Academy will provide training to develop the knowledge, attitudes, and skills students
need to choose alternatives to self-destructive, violent behavior and dissolve interpersonal and
intergroup conflict. Each school will adopt a Student Code of Conduct to be followed by
every student while on school grounds, when traveling to and from school or a
school-sponsored activity, and during lunch period, whether on or off campus.
The Student Code of Conduct includes, but is not limited to, the following:
•
•
•
•
•

•
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Students are to resolve their disputes without resorting to violence.
Students, especially those trained in conflict resolution and peer mediation, are encouraged
to help fellow students resolve problems peaceably.
Students can rely on staff trained in conflict resolution and peer mediation strategies to
intervene in any dispute likely to result in violence.
Students needing help in resolving a disagreement, or students observing conflict may
contact an adult or peer mediators (classroom, wellness center, support staff, main office).
Students involved in a dispute will be referred to a conflict resolution or peer mediation
session with trained adult or peer mediators. Staff and mediators will keep the discussions
confidential.
Conflict resolution procedures shall not supplant the authority of staff to act to prevent violence,
ensure campus safety, maintain order, and discipline students.
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Section 504
The School recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with a disability
shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of, or
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program of the School. Any student who has
an objectively identified disability which substantially limits a major life activity, including, but
not limited to learning, is eligible for accommodations by the School. The parent of any
student suspected of needing or qualifying for accommodations under Section 504 may make
a referral for an evaluation to Chief Operating Officer. A copy of the School’s Section 504
policies and procedures is available upon request.
SPECIAL EDUCATION POLICIES & PROCEDURES
We are dedicated to the belief that all students can learn and must be guaranteed equal
opportunity to become contributing members of the academic environment and society. The
School provides special education instruction and related services in accordance with the
Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act (“IDEA”), Education Code
requirements, and applicable policies and procedures of the Los Angeles Unified School
District These services are available for special educations students enrolled at the School. We
offer high quality educational programs and services for all our students in accordance with
the assessed needs of each student. The School collaborates with parents, the student,
teachers, and other agencies, as may be indicated, in order to appropriately serve the
educational needs of each student.
The special education process determines whether or not your child is eligible for special
education and related services and, if so, what special education services are most
appropriate for your child.
There are four (4) basic steps in the special education process:
1. Referral for Assessment
2. Assessment
3. Development and Implementation of an INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION
PROGRAM (“IEP”)
4. IEP Review
Step 1: Referral for Assessment
In many cases, parents or guardians refer their child for assessment for special education
services. Teachers, other school personnel, and community members may also refer a child
for assessment. Within fifteen (15) days, not counting school vacations greater than five (5)
days, of the receipt of a referral for assessment, you will receive a written response from the
school. If the school determines that an assessment of your child is not appropriate, you will
receive a written notice of this decision. If the school determines that an assessment is
appropriate, you will receive an Assessment Plan. An Assessment Plan describes the types
and purposes of the assessments that may be used to determine your child's eligibility for
special education and related services. Before your child can be assessed, you must consent
to the assessment by signing the Assessment Plan. You have at least fifteen (15) days from
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the receipt of the Assessment Plan to consent to and sign it. The school has sixty (60) days,
not counting school vacations greater than five (5) days, from the receipt of your signed
Assessment Plan to complete the assessment and hold an Individualized Education Program
(“IEP”) team meeting.
Step 2: Assessment
An assessment involves gathering information about your child to determine whether your
child has a qualifying disability and, if he or she is eligible, the nature and extent of special
education services that your child may need. Assessments may include individual testing,
observation of the child at school, interviews with the child and school personnel who work
with the child, and review of school records, reports and work samples.
Guidelines for Assessment
When your child is assessed, the following guidelines will be followed:
• Your child will be assessed only after you consent to the Assessment Plan. n
Your child will be assessed in all areas related to his/her suspected disability.
• The Assessment will be administered in your child's primary language or a
qualified interpreter will be provided.
• The assessment will include a variety of appropriate tests to measure your
child's strengths and needs. The persons administering these tests will be
qualified to do so.
• The assessment will be adapted for students with impaired sensory, physical
or speaking skills.
• A multidisciplinary team, including at least one teacher or other specialist
with knowledge in the area of your child's suspected disability, will assess
your child.
• Testing and assessment materials and procedures must not be racially,
culturally or sexually discriminatory.
Step 3: Development and Implementation of an IEP
After your child has been assessed, an IEP meeting will be held. The IEP meeting must be
held at a time and place convenient for both you and the school's representatives. At this
meeting, the IEP team will discuss the assessment results and determine whether your child
is eligible for special education and related services. If your child is eligible, the IEP will be
identified during the meeting. The following people are members of the IEP team:
• you, as the child's parent or guardian, and/or your representative;
nan interpreter, if requested and your native language is not
English; n a school administrator or qualified representative from
Crete who is knowledgeable about the program options
appropriate for your child;
• no less than one regular education teacher. This will usually be your child's present
teacher. If your student does not presently have a teacher, a teacher with the most
recent and complete knowledge of the student and who has observed the
student's educational performance will participate as an IEP team member;
• an individual who can interpret the instructional implications of evaluation
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results; n at the discretion of the parent or the agency, other individuals who have
knowledge or special expertise regarding the child, including related services
personnel as appropriate.
What is an IEP?
The IEP is the written plan that describes a child's abilities and needs, and the placement and
services designed to meet the child's unique needs. Your child must have an IEP before he
or she receives special education services. Your child's IEP must be implemented as soon as
possible after the IEP meeting. In addition, your child's IEP must be reviewed and, if
necessary, revised once a year or more often upon request. If your child is found to be
eligible for special education services, the IEP will contain:
• your child’s “present levels of performance” in the specific areas affected by his or
her disability;
• appropriately ambitious annual goals and short-term objectives in specific areas
affected by your child’s disability;
• the services, accommodations and modifications designed to assist your child in
meeting those objectives;
• when services will begin, how often they will be provided, and for how
long;
• the instructional setting in which these services will be delivered;
• the amount of time your child will spend in general education;
• how the school will measure your child's progress; and
• notes from the IEP meeting.
You will receive a copy of the IEP at the IEP meeting. If you do not attend the IEP
meeting, a copy will be mailed to you. You have the right to agree or disagree with any part
of the IEP. The school is required to get your consent to the IEP before your child receives
special education services. Upon your request, you will be given a copy of the IEP in your
primary language.
Will I Receive Notice of the IEP Meeting?
The school must provide you with notice of the IEP meeting within a reasonable time prior
to the meeting. This notice will include: the date, time, and place of the meeting; the reason
for the meeting; who will be at the meeting; and a statement of the right of participants to
electronically record the meeting. If you are unable to attend the meeting, you may call the
school to reschedule.
When Must an IEP Meeting be Held?
An IEP meeting must be held:
• once a year to review your child's progress and placement and to make any needed
changes to the IEP;
• every three years to review the results of a mandatory comprehensive
reevaluation of your child's progress;
• after your child has received a formal assessment or reassessment;
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•
•
•

if you or a teacher feels that your child demonstrates significant educational
growth or a lack of anticipated progress;
when you or a teacher requests a meeting to develop, review, or revise the IEP;
to develop a transition plan, beginning at age sixteen (16) or younger, if
appropriate; and/or
to determine whether a student's misconduct was a manifestation of his or her
disability before expelling or suspending the student from school for more than
ten (10) school days.

If your child is already enrolled in a special education program and you request an IEP
meeting, you must do so in writing. If you request the meeting orally, Crete will remind you
that the request must be done in writing. Once your request is received, the meeting must be
held within thirty (30) days, not counting school vacations greater than five (5) days.
What are Transition Services?
Transition services are a set of coordinated activities to assist a student's movement from
school to post-school activities. These services are designed to help your child adjust to life
after he or she is no longer eligible for school related services. The law requires that
transition services be provided to all students with disabilities, beginning at sixteen (16) years
of age or younger, if appropriate. When appropriate, the IEP team will plan and oversee the
implementation of these transition services. The law also requires that coordinated activities
for transition include instruction, community experiences, and the development of
employment and other post-school living skills. If your child does not need services in any of
the previously listed areas, your child's IEP must state so and why. The coordinated activities
for transition must be based on your child's individual needs and take into account his or her
preferences and interests. If appropriate, the coordinated activities may also include the
acquisition of daily living skills and/or functional vocational evaluation.
Step 4: IEP Review
If your child is receiving special education and related services, his or her IEP will be
reviewed in an IEP meeting at least once a year to determine how well it is meeting his or
her needs. In addition, every three years, your child will be reassessed and his or her IEP
reviewed as part of an overall comprehensive reevaluation of your child's progress.
If there are concerns that your child's educational needs are not being met, either you or
school personnel may request a reassessment or an IEP meeting to review the IEP at any
time during the year. You may request an IEP meeting to review the IEP at any time during
the year. You may request an IEP meeting by sending a written request to the school. Once
your request is received, the meeting must be held within thirty (30) days, not counting
school vacations greater than five (5). You may request a reassessment by sending a written
request to the school or completing a Request for Special Education Assessment that can be
obtained at the Crete Academy main office. The school must get your permission before it
reassesses your child.
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Assessing & Identifying Students for Gifted Programs
Students may be referred for assessment by a parent, teacher, friend, or by self-referral.
However, the referral will be screened and the recommendation must be made by schoolcertificated personnel and supported by school records. No single test, score or measure may
be the determining factor. Students referred for identification will be provided with a multidimensional assessment that reflects a broad range of abilities and also the significance of
cultural, linguistic, and socioeconomic background. Evidence may include, but is not limited
to, test results (such as standardized, norm-referenced and criterion-referenced), subjective
indicators (such as teacher checklist, parent inventories, and anecdotal records), and
professional judgment by an expert in the given field (such as talent assessment, product
review, and evaluation of student experience).
Retention Policy
It is our belief at Crete Academy that students must demonstrate mastery of skills before
being promoted to the next grade level. Crete Academy also believes in early identification;
therefore, parents will be notified each quarter, if their child is struggling in any academic
area. Any child identified in the first semester, as a possible retention candidate, will be
brought to the attention of the Crete Academy administration. This administration will
notify the child’s teachers, parents, and the specific administrator involved. The discussion
will include a detailed analysis of the teaching and learning process to date, the intervention
utilized and the effects, as well as the various solutions for assisting the child. If retention is
decided upon as one of the solutions, the cohort will meet again in March and in June of that
year.
Retention for any student at Crete Academy will be based on a summary of the following:
• Consistent achievement marks of “1 or 2” in the areas of math OR language
arts;
• Pre- and post-assessments, benchmark scores and formative assessments as
documented by his/her teacher;
• Teacher and principal recommendations within an SST;
• Psychological and physical considerations;
• Sibling pathway (is a sibling directly under the student placing both in the same
grade); and
• Informed decision of the parent(s)
If you must miss a meeting, we encourage you to contact the school as soon as possible to
reschedule the meeting with the Crete Administration. These meetings are critical to your
student’s academic success.
Pet Policy
Pets, other than service animals, are not allowed on the Crete Academy campus.
Fundraising Policy
1. All fundraising activities are subject to the laws of the Internal Revenue Service, the State
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of California, the City of Los Angeles and the policies of Crete Academy.
2. All fundraising for Crete Academy must be approved by the Board before any action is
taken.
3. No fundraising for personal gain is permitted.
Family Community – School Partnerships
Crete Academy is committed to developing relationships with all stakeholders in the school.
It is crucial that our parents know that the school is a safe, nurturing place for their family
and their input and engagement is valued. Sociologist Joyce Epstein states that when
“Educators view students as children, they are likely to see both the family and the
community as partners with the school in children's education and development. Partners
recognize their shared interests in and responsibilities for children, and they work together to
create better programs and opportunities for students.”
School Community Agreement
At Crete Academy, all members of the school community (faculty, students, and families) are
committed to fostering a safe learning environment. Signing the Parent-Student Handbook
Agreement Form located at the back of the book signifies that the parent(s)/guardian(s) and
student(s) who sign will agree to respect differences among individuals; furthermore, your
signature indicates that you will accept responsibility for your words and actions without
excuse.
These differences may be physical, mental, social, emotional and/or spiritual. We will use
school appropriate language and we will not tolerate any abuse or harassment. Choosing
words and actions that help, not hurt others, and will work to keep our school free of verbal
and nonverbal put-downs regarding the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Academic progress
Age
Gender
Appearance/body image/mannerisms
Athletic ability
Belief systems
Cultural, ethnic, and/or racial background
Family background and family composition
Friendships
Languages
Learning styles
Physical challenges
Sexual harassment of any type including gender stereotypes and homophobic taunts

Public Conduct on School Property
Schools are a place of work and learning. Certain limits must be set for parents and other community
members who visit our schools and classrooms. All persons on school property or attending a school
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function shall conduct themselves in a respectful and orderly manner. The Chief Operating Officer or
designee is responsible for all persons in the building and on the grounds
The following rules apply to visitors to the schools
• Anyone who is not a regular staff member or student of the school will be
considered a visitor
• All visitors to the school must report to the main office upon arrival at the school.
They will be required to sign the visitor’s register and will be issued a visitor’s badge
which must be worn at all times while in the school or on school grounds.
• The visitor must return the badge to the main office and sign out before leaving the building.
• Visitors attending school functions that are open to the public, such as parent teacher organization
meetings or public gatherings, are not required to register
• Parents or citizens who wish to observe a classroom while school is in session are
required to arrange such visits with the classroom teacher(s), so that class
disruption is kept to a minimum.
• Teachers are expected not to take class time to discuss individual matters with
visitors
• Any unauthorized person on school property will be reported to the Chief
Operating Office or his/her designee. Unauthorized persons will be asked to
leave. The police may be called if the situation warrants
• All visitors are expected to model the behaviors that we expect of our students.
Conduct Prohibited on School Property
No visitor may:
• Intentionally injure any other person or threaten to do so
• Intentionally damage or destroy school property or the property of a teacher,
administrator, other district employee or any other person lawfully on school
property, including graffiti or arson
• Disrupt the orderly conduct of classes, school programs or other school activities.
• Distribute or wear materials on school grounds or at school functions that are
obscene, advocate illegal action, obstruct the rights of others, or are otherwise
disruptive to the school program
• Intimidate, harass or discriminate against any person on the basis of race, color, creed,
national origin, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, disability, or any other class
protected by Crete’s nondiscrimination policy;
• Enter any portion of the school premises without authorization or remain in any
building or facility after it is closed
• Violate the traffic laws, parking regulations or other restrictions of vehicles.
• Possess, consume, sell, distribute or exchange alcoholic beverages, controlled
substances, or be under the influence of either on school property or at a school
function
• Possess or use weapons in or on school property or at school function, except in the
case of law enforcement
• Loiter on or about school functions
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•
•
•

Refuse to comply with any reasonable order of identifiable school district officials
while performing their duties
Willfully incite others to commit any of the acts prohibited by this code.
Violate any federal or state statute, local ordinance or board policy while on school
property or while at a school function.

Persons who engage in prohibited conduct will be subject to appropriate actions, including,
but not limited to, the authorization of a visitor, to remain on school grounds or at any
school function be withdrawn, and they shall be directed to leave the premises. If they refuse
to leave, they shall be subject to being escorted off by law enforcement as well as receive a
temporary ban from returning to campus.
Home/School Communication
Crete Academy Website
Please feel free to visit our website at www.creteacademy.org for information, news,
announcements, updates, or calendar events.
Notices
Each teacher will make you aware of his/her process of communicating classroom news.
Please look for notices/information from the office on orange paper.
Effective Communication with Teachers
•
•
•
•

Call the school and leave a message in the main office
E-mail the teacher(firstinitial/lastname@Cretecharters.org)
Send a note with your child
Make an appointment

Observations
Please contact the teacher directly if you would like to conduct an observation in the
classroom. Parents are welcome to request an observation period at any time. However, our
teachers have the right to refuse unscheduled observation requests. The best way to plan an
observation is to follow these procedures:
• Request the observation at least 24 hours in advance
• Schedule a date and time with the teacher by emailing or leaving a note for teacher in
the main office
• Explain the purpose for the observation.
Note: Observation times are limited to 20 minutes. During observations, teachers and
support staff are not available for any one-on-one discussions or conferences. These
meetings may be scheduled for a later time. In addition, it is important for parents to focus
their attention on his/her own child and not the other children in the class, as well as refrain
from engaging with other students or interfering with the teacher’s instruction or
management of the classroom.
Expressing Concerns
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General Complaints
At Crete Academy, direct and appropriate feedback is valued. If you have a general concern,
please share your concern with your child’s teacher directly. For serious or recurring
concerns regarding the performance of an employee, please speak with or write to the
employee’s supervisor.
PLEASE DO NOT HAND OUT ANY DOCUMENTATION TO STAFF OR
CHILDREN WITHOUT FIRST CHECKING WITH THE SCHOOL
ADMINISTRATION.
If a situation is not addressed by the Chief Operations Officer or designee, in a manner that
satisfies you, please direct the concern in writing to the Chief Executive Officer. Should you
still need additional assistance, you will be advised to prepare a written statement addressed
to the Board of Directors of Crete Academy. They will address your concern in a timely
manner.
Uniform Complaint Procedure

Crete Academy has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations and has established procedures to address allegations of unlawful
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying, and complaints alleging violation of
state or federal laws governing educational programs and the charging of unlawful pupil fees.
Crete Academy shall investigate and seek to resolve complaints using policies and procedures
known as the Uniform Complaint Procedure (“UCP”) adopted by our Governing Board.
Unlawful discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying complaints may be based on
actual or perceived characteristics of age, ancestry, color, ethnic group identification, gender
expression, gender identity, gender, genetic information, physical disability, mental disability,
medical condition, marital status, nationality, national origin, race
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or ethnicity, religion, sex, sexual orientation, or on a person’s association with a person or
group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics, in any Crete Academy
program or activity that receives or benefits from state financial assistance.
The UCP shall also be used when addressing complaints alleging failure to comply with state
and/or federal laws in:
• Adult Education
• After School Education and Safety Programs
• Agricultural Vocational Education Programs
• American Indian Education Centers and Early Child Education Program
Assessments
• Foster and Homeless Youth Services
• Consolidated Categorical Aid Programs
• Migrant Education
• Career Technical and Technical Education and Training Programs
• Child Care and Developmental Programs
• Child Nutrition Programs
• Regional Occupational Centers and Special Education Programs
• Every Student Succeeds Act / No Child Left Behind Act (2001) Programs (Titles -I
VII)
• State Preschool
• Bilingual Education
• Economic Impact Aid
• Tobacco-Use Prevention Education
A complaint of noncompliance with laws relating to pupil fees may be filed pursuant to the
local UCP. A pupil enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a pupil fee for
participation in an educational activity. A pupil fee includes, but is not limited to, all of the
following:
•
•
•
•

A fee charged to a pupil as a condition for registering for school or classes, or as a
condition for participation in a class or an extracurricular activity, regardless of whether
the class or activity is elective or compulsory, or is for credit.
A security deposit, or other payment, that a pupil is required to make to obtain a lock,
locker, book, class apparatus, musical instrument, clothes, or other materials or
equipment.
A purchase that a pupil is required to make to obtain materials, supplies, equipment,
or clothes associated with an educational activity.
A pupil fee complaint shall not be filed later than one (1) year from the date the
alleged violation occurred.

Complaints of noncompliance with laws relating to pupil fees are filed with the Chief
Operations Officer (“COO”). A complaint regarding pupil fees may be filed anonymously if
the complaint provides evidence or information to support an allegation of noncompliance
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with laws relating to pupil fees. Complaints other than complaints relating to pupil fees
must be filed in writing with the following compliance officer:
Brett Mitchell
Chief Operations Officer
Crete Academy
6103 Crenshaw Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90043
Telephone: (323) 791-1600
Complaints alleging discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, must be filed within
six (6) months from the date the alleged discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying,
occurred or the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying, unless the time for filing is extended by
the COO or his or her designee in writing.
Complaints will be investigated and a written Decision or report will be sent to the
complainant within sixty (60) days from the receipt of the complaint. This sixty (60) day time
period may be extended by written agreement of the complainant. The compliance officer
responsible for investigating the complaint shall conduct and complete the investigation in
accordance with California regulations and in accordance with Crete Academy’s procedures.
The complainant has a right to appeal COO Decision to the California Department of
Education (“CDE”) by filing a written appeal within fifteen (15) days of receiving the
Decision. The appeal must include a copy of the complaint filed with the School and a copy
of Crete Academy’s Decision.
Civil law remedies may be available under state or federal discrimination, harassment,
intimidation, or bullying laws, if applicable. In appropriate cases, an appeal may be filed
pursuant to Education Code Section 262.3. A complainant may pursue available civil law
remedies outside of Crete Academy’s complaint procedures. Complainants may seek assistance
from mediation centers or public/private interest attorneys. Civil law remedies that may be
imposed by a court include, but are not limited to, injunctions and restraining orders.
A copy of the UCP policy and complaint procedures shall be available free of charge in the
Main Office. For further information on any part of the complaint procedures, including filing
a complaint or requesting a copy of the complaint procedures, please contact the COO.
Pupil Records, including Challenges and Directory Information
The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) affords parents and students who
are 18 years of age or older (“eligible students”) certain rights with respect to the student’s
education records. These rights are:
1. The right to inspect and review the student's education records within 5 business
days after the day the School receives a request for access. Parents or eligible
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students should submit to the School principal or designee a written request that
identifies the records they wish to inspect.
The School official will make arrangements for access and notify the parent or eligible
student of the time and place where the records may be inspected.
2. The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the parent
or eligible student believes are inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the
student’s privacy rights under FERPA.
Parents or eligible students who wish to ask the School to amend a record should write
the School principal or designee, clearly identify the part of the record they want
changed, and specify why it should be changed. If the School decides not to amend
the record as requested by the parent or eligible student, the School will notify the
parent or eligible student of the decision and of their right to a hearing regarding the
request for amendment. Additional information regarding the hearing procedures will
be provided to the parent or eligible student when notified of the right to a hearing.
3. The right to provide written consent before the School discloses personally identifiable
information (“PII”) from the student's education records, except to the extent that
FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.
One exception, which permits disclosure without consent, is disclosure to School
officials with legitimate educational interests. A School official is a person employed
by the School as an administrator, supervisor, instructor, or support staff member
(including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel) or a person
serving on the School board. A School official also may include a volunteer or
contractor outside of the School who performs an institutional service of function for
which the School would otherwise use its own employees and who is under the direct
control of the school with respect to the use and maintenance of PII from education
records, such as an attorney, auditor, medical consultant, or therapist; a parent or
student volunteering to serve on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or
grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer assisting another School
official in performing his or her tasks. A School official has a legitimate educational
interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill his or her
professional responsibility.
Upon request, the School discloses education records without consent to officials of
another school district in which a student seeks or intends to enroll, or is already
enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes of the student’s enrollment or transfer.
4. The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning
alleged failures by the School to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name
and address of the Office that administers FERPA are:
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Family Policy Compliance Office
U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20202
FERPA permits the disclosure of PII from student’s education records, without consent of
the parent or eligible student, if the disclosure meets certain conditions found in §99.31 of the
FERPA regulations. Except for disclosures to School officials, disclosures related to some
judicial orders or lawfully issued subpoenas, disclosures of directory information, and
disclosures to the parent or eligible student, §99.32 of the FERPA regulations requires the
School to record the disclosure. Parents and eligible students have a right to inspect and review
the record of disclosures. A School may disclose PII from the education records of a student
without obtaining prior written consent of the parents or the eligible student —
1. To other School officials, including teachers, within the educational agency or
institution whom the School has determined to have legitimate educational interests.
This includes contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom the school
has outsourced institutional services or functions, provided that the conditions listed
in §99.31(a)(1)(i)(B)(1) - (a)(1)(i)(B)(2) are met. (§99.31(a)(1)).
2. To officials of another school, school system, or institution of postsecondary
education where the student seeks or intends to enroll, or where the student is already
enrolled if the disclosure is for purposes related to the student’s enrollment or transfer,
subject to the requirements of §99.34. (§99.31(a)(2)).
3. To authorize representatives of the U. S. Comptroller General, the U. S. Attorney
General, the U.S. Secretary of Education, or State and local educational authorities,
such as the State educational agency in the parent or eligible student’s State (SEA).
Disclosures under this provision may be made, subject to the requirements of
§99.35, in connection with an audit or evaluation of Federal- or State-supported
education programs, or for the enforcement of or compliance with Federal legal
requirements that relate to those programs. These entities may make further
disclosures of PII to outside entities that are designated by them as their authorized
representatives to conduct any audit, evaluation, or enforcement or compliance activity
on their behalf. (§§99.31(a)(3) and 99.35).
4. In connection with financial aid for which the student has applied or which the student
has received, if the information is necessary to determine eligibility for the aid,
determine the amount of the aid, determine the conditions of the aid, or enforce the
terms and conditions of the aid. (§99.31(a)(4)).
5. To accrediting organizations to carry out their accrediting functions. (§99.31(a)(7)).
6. To parents of an eligible student if the student is a dependent for IRS tax purposes.
(§99.31(a)(8)).
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7. To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena. (§99.31(a)(9)).
8. To appropriate officials in connection with a health or safety emergency, subject to
§99.36.
(§99.31(a)(10).
9. Information the School has designated as “directory information” under §99.37.
(§99.31(a)(11)).
“Directory Information” is information that is generally not considered harmful or an invasion
of privacy if released. Directory information can be disclosed to outside organizations without
a parent’s prior written consent. Outside organizations include, but are not limited to,
companies that manufacture class rings or publish yearbooks and education or charter school
advocacy groups. The School has designated the following information as directory
information:
1. Student’s name
2. Student’s address
3. Parent’s/guardian’s address
4. Telephone listing
5. Student’s electronic mail address
6. Parent’s/guardian’s electronic mail address
7. Photograph
8. Date and place of birth
9. Dates of attendance
10. Grade level
11. Weight and height of members of athletic teams
12. Degrees, honors, and awards received
13. The most recent educational agency or institution attended
14. Student ID number, user ID, or other unique personal identified used to communicate
in electronic systems that cannot be used to access education records without a PIN,
password, etc. (A student’s social security number, in whole or in part, cannot be used
for this purpose.)
If you do not want the School to disclose directory information from your child’s education
records without your prior written consent, you must notify the School in writing at the time
of enrollment or re-enrollment. Please notify:
Chideria Izuchukwu
Director of Operations
Crete Academy
6103 Crenshaw Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90043
Telephone: (323) 791-1600
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Community Partnerships
The goal of community partnerships at Crete Academy will be two-fold. The first objective
will be to develop our students in a holistic manner, which means using community
resources to address the needs that are beyond pure academia.
We will work with community organizations to bring services to the school and develop a
process to help parents bring their children to them. The second objective will be to bring
community resources to the school that will enhance the academic potential of each student.
In particular, we want community resources that make their learning relevant.
Important Medical Information
Immunizations
All students will need to present a written immunization record provided by a physician or
the health department prior to the first day of school. Immunizations must be up to date.
The immunization status of all students will be reviewed periodically. Those students who
do not meet the State guidelines must be excluded from school until the requirements are
met.
Students who have been exposed to a communicable disease for which they have not been
immunized may be excluded from school at the discretion of the school. Please check with a
doctor to make sure that your child(ren) has been vaccinated and are up to date with all of
them.
Tuberculosis Clearance
All kindergarten students, all new first grade students who have never attended kindergarten,
must present a written report provided by a health care provider or health department giving
the results of a Mantoux test within one year prior to school entry. If the Mantoux test is
positive, a diagnostic Chest X-ray will be required.
All new students entering grades 1-5 who have never attended any school in California must
present documentation of the results of the Mantoux test done at some previous time.
Students entering any grade from any other California school, public, private or parochial are
exempt from the requirement.
Physical Examinations
A comprehensive physical examination and health assessment consistent with Child Health
and Disability Prevention (“CHDP") guidelines are required for all first-grade students
within 18 months prior to entry or up to three months after admission to the first grade. A
private physician, or health department clinic may do a CHDP or equivalent examination.
In-School Physical Examinations
Crete Academy complies with all federal and state legal requirements related to student
immunization, health examination, and health screening, including but not limited to
screening for vision, hearing, and scoliosis, to the same extent as would be required if the
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students were attending a non-charter public school. Crete Academy shall maintain student
immunization, health examination, and health screening records on file.
If you do not consent to a physical examination of your child, please submit a statement in
writing to that effect to the COO. This denial of consent must happen annually.
Oral Health Assessment
Your child must have an oral health assessment by May 31 in kindergarten or first grade,
whichever is his or her first year of public school. A licensed dentist must perform the
assessment or other licensed or registered dental health professional. Oral health assessments
that have happened within the 12 months before your child enters school also meet this
requirement. The assessment/waiver forms are available in the main office or health office.
Health and Medical Conditions
The school office must be notified if a student with a medical or health condition requires
accommodations in order to participate in the educational program. An administrator will
arrange to meet with the parent/guardian to develop an accommodation plan for the
student’s medical condition. Students with diabetes, severe asthma, or severe allergies should
have an accommodation plan at the school.
CEP & Free and Reduced-Price Meals
The School participates in the National School Lunch Program and CEP – Community
Eligibility Provision. All students will receive breakfast and lunch at no charge to all students
so that they can be fueled and ready to learn. Information for CEP is included in the first day
packets to all families and can also be obtained on the School website and in the main office.
All families are encouraged to participate in the CEP program.
Administration of Medication
Students may not carry or self-administer medication in school under any circumstances. A
student who needs to take medication during school hours must have a statement to this
effect on file at the school, signed by the prescribing physician and the parent/guardian. The
required forms are available from the school office. School personnel do not prescribe or
give advice regarding any kind of medication.
•
•
•
•
•
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At NO time, may students carry prescribed medications (e.g., inhaler) or overthe- counter medications (e.g., Motrin, Tylenol, or cough drops or medicine) to
and from school, and/or self- administer them.
No medications are accepted without the Request for Medication To Be Taken
During School Hours form
It shall be the parent's responsibility to keep the school informed regarding a
change in medication and dosage. A new form must be completed for each
change of medication and at the beginning of each school year.
Medication must be dropped off by the parent/guardian.
All medications must be kept in a locked cabinet in the office.
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•

•
•
•

Medications that need to be administered at school must be given to the office
staff ONLY. This policy is for safe practice and must be followed without
exception. n Medication must be brought in a pharmaceutical container clearly
marked with the child's name, name of medication, dosage, and pertinent
instructions. Non- prescription medication must come in its original box or
container, complete with name and dosage of the medicine. No medication will
be given if sent in an envelope or bag.
Medications that are kept in the office may not be transported to and from school
on a daily basis.
Usually, medications may be divided by pharmacists at no additional charge into
two separate bottles, one for school administration and one for home
administration.
If your child needs to take medication during a field trip, please plan several days
in advance with the office staff and your child’s teacher. Medications may not be
dropped off at the last minute.

RETURNING MEDICATIONS TO PARENTS/GUARDIANS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
•
•

Each parent/guardian will receive a reminder notice regarding the medications
that are remaining in the school’s office that will need to be picked up by a parent.
There is a deadline for picking up medication; and after the deadline, all unclaimed medications are
disposed of properly.

Other Medical Conditions
A student returning to school with sutures, casts, crutches, brace(s), or a wheelchair must
have a physician's written permission to attend school and must comply with any safety
procedures required by the school administration. A student returning to school following a
serious or prolonged illness, injury, surgery, or other hospitalization, must have written
permission by the health care provider to attend school, including any recommendations
regarding physical activity. A parent's written request for an excuse from participation in
physical education will be accepted for up to 3 days; thereafter, a written request is needed
from the student's health care provider.
Communicable Diseases
A student suspected of having a communicable disease will be excluded from school until
guidelines for readmission are met.
Lice
Outbreaks of lice in Los Angeles are very common. The school follows the suggested
preventative routines outlined by the Los Angeles County Health Department. These
routines include periodic head checks and disinfecting of all necessary areas in the school. If
you discover that anyone in your family has lice, please notify the school immediately. If it is
discovered that your child(ren) has lice eggs and/or lice in his/her hair, they will be sent
home. Your child(ren) may return to class when he/she has been effectively treated and the
office inspects your child(ren).
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Ringworm
Ringworm is an infectious disease characterized by scaling or cracking of the skin. In severe
cases vesicular lesions appear on various parts of the body. Students with ringworm will be
sent home and require a doctor’s note indicating that the ringworm is not contagious and the
student may be readmitted.
Chicken Pox
An effort will be made to notify parents/guardians about school exposure to chickenpox.
The parent/guardian of a student for whom chicken pox presents a particular hazard should
contact the school to facilitate communication. Students at risk include those with
conditions affecting the immune system and those receiving certain drugs for the treatment
of leukemia or organ transplants.
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Safe Return to School Plan 2021-22
Crete Academy is making every effort to ensure a safe and smooth transition back to school for the 2021-22 school year.
Although it is still unknown if the Distance Learning Plan (see attachment) will take effect for the 2021-22 school year, we have
taken measures to plan for an onsite return.
With that being said, the plan below describes expectations, policies and procedures to adequately provide a high-quality
education to our students, while also maintaining social distancing and ensuring the health and safety of everyone. We ask that
parents and stakeholders make every effort possible to follow the guidelines below, support our policies and help us make the
2021-22 school year amazing. Should you have feedback on this plan, please submit all inquiries and suggestions
to: info@creteacademy.org.
While we understand that things are ever changing, this plan is in place until we resume a fully on-campus instructional day. In
the event that the decision not to return to campus is made, the Crete Distance Learning Plan (see attached) will go into effect
immediately. Additionally, if any individual is known to have tested positive for COVID-19 is found to have been on campus,
the COVID team will work to contact trace, limit contact and determine if a partial or full school quarantine is necessary. All
required communication to stakeholders, those exposed, including students and families and the Los Angeles Department of
Public Health, will be notified of any positive COVID-19 case. Should the school go into quarantine, the Crete Distance Learning
Plan will go into effect immediately.
Finally, it is at the sole discretion of parents and guardians to determine whether or not their child(ren) should return to
campus. At this time however, Crete Academy is only offering in-person instruction. If you are interested in distance learning,
please contact Brett Mitchell at: bmitchell@creteacademy.org, but be advised that such instruction is not offered through Crete
Academy and families will be referred to an outside resource.
Please see 2021-22 Learning Options Below:
1. Option 1: Student attends school on campus M-F 8:30 am to 1:30 pm Core Instruction, 1:30pm to 2:30 pm
optional Enrichment and 2:30 pm to 5:30 pm optional After school for Qualified Students only (see requirements
below).
2. Option 2: Crete Independent Study Program for eligible, at-risk students. Please contact Brett Mitchell
at: bmitchell@creteacademy.org. Students must provide evidence of at-risk need.

2021-22 Plan for On-Campus In-Person
Crete staff are expected to adhere to all federal, state, local and Crete Academy safety guidelines. Staff experiencing a fever or
cold-like symptoms will be asked to remain home for at least 24 hours, or until symptoms subside.
Testing: Prior to school starting and after any break, all students and staff will receive a baseline COVID-19 test. Weekly onsite
testing for students and staff will be provided throughout the year and as long as required by the California Department of Public
Health and will continue to be required regardless of vaccination status. Each week, students must test negative on the COVID-19
test in order to be on campus. Any positive Covid-19 test will result in a mandatory 5-day quarantine by the individual. Those
who test positive can return after the 5-day quarantine so long as they are not experiencing symptoms and test negative on a
Rapid Antigen test.
Vaccination: On December 14, 2021, the LAUSD Board voted to expand its staff and student vaccination mandates to LAUSDauthorized charter schools. The Board also voted to delay the enforcement of the student vaccination mandate until Fall 2022. We
will not be requiring students or staff to be vaccinated against COVID-19 for the remainder of the school year. We will continue
to provide information and resources regarding the vaccine for those that are interested. Vaccination records will be kept on file
for those who choose to be vaccinated in the case that policy updates require us to do so.
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Staff Expectations: Upon entering the school all staff must wear a medical face mask. Each day, staff will have their temperature
checked by an administrator in the front office. Any staff member with a temperature at or above 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit will
be asked to return home. Staff with no temperature will put on their face mask and proceed to their morning routine. Any positive
Covid-19 test will result in a mandatory quarantine by the individual.
Student Expectations: Students are expected to adhere to all federal, state, local and Crete Academy safety guidelines. Crete
students will be expected to wear a medical face mask during the following times: entering the school, while in line, during
recess, lunch, PE, enrichment, while walking through the halls, while using the restroom and upon exiting the school. Students
who come to school without a face covering will be asked to wait in the front hallway until a mask is provided. If no mask is
provided, the student’s parent will be called to pick them up.
Parent/Guardian Expectations: Parents are expected to adhere to all federal, state and local social distancing policies.
Furthermore, upon entering the Crete campus, parents and guardians must wear a medical face covering and maintain a distance
of six feet from all staff and students. If a parent or guardian is sick or experiencing flu like symptoms while on campus, they will
be asked by staff to leave the campus. Parents are not allowed on campus, other than by invitation from staff, for any reason,
other than an emergency and to pick up their child early from the school day. Early pick-up will be on a case-by-case basis and
office approval will be required prior to releasing the student. Unfortunately, parents and guardians are no longer able to enter the
school for non-instructional reasons, including, but not limited to: birthdays, to observe in the classroom or to volunteer in the
classroom.
TK-12 Schools and Youth Programs COVID-19 Data Dashboard:
http://publichealth.lacounty.gov/media/coronavirus/education/index.htm
2021-2022 Schedule: Students will attend school Monday through Friday onsite
8:00 am to 1:30 pm: Instruction in Core Subjects
1:30pm to 2:30 pm: Optional Enrichment Classes: Spanish, Art, Sports, Chess
2:30 pm to 5:30 pm: Optional After School for Qualified Students (parent/guardian must be working or in school full time,
and provide proof).
Drop off: Families will drop students off on Crenshaw Blvd. Only one student will enter the gate at a time. Families are not
allowed to drive into the campus or walk onto campus for any reason outside of an emergency. Upon entry to the campus,
students will have their temperature checked by one of three staff members lined up at the gate. Any student with a temperature at
or above 99 degrees Fahrenheit, will immediately be sent to the front hallway waiting area and the student’s parent/guardian will
be called, and the student will be picked up immediately. All students with normal temperatures will be directed to line up in their
class waiting area.
Pick up: Students will be released from their individual classrooms. Staff will identify students for pick up, using walkie-talkies
and accompany. Parents are not allowed to drive into the campus or walk onto campus for any reason outside of an
emergency. Families will be expected to wait in their cars or outside of the gate to pick up their child.
`
Classroom Instruction Expectations: Teachers are expected to ensure the following:
1. Practice social distancing when able
2. Ensure anyone entering or exiting the classroom uses the pre-marked “Enter” and “Exit” doors, as to avoid close
contact with opposing foot traffic.
3. Ensure anyone entering or exiting the classroom uses hand sanitizer
4. Ensure students have their individual set of supplies that is used only by them
5. Ensure any items that are used by multiple people are sanitized after each use. This includes library books,
staplers, markers, pens, pencils, pencil sharpener and other commonly used classroom items.
6. Require students to wear masks during class when moving about the classroom or when in close proximity
to others

2/4/2022

60

7. Ensure teacher wears a mask when walking around the classroom, sitting next to or near a student or during small
group instruction.
While teachers are conducting whole-group instruction, they are not required to wear a mask, so long as the following conditions
are met:
1. They are not circulating the room
2. They are at least four feet away from all students
3. Students are seated and not moving around the room
Restrooms: Students will enter and exit the restroom through separate doors. There are to be no more than three students in the
restroom at any time. Students are to wait on pre-marked areas for their turn in the restroom and enter only once another student
has exited. Each student shall use their own sink and dry their hands using an air dryer. Bathrooms shall be sanitized regularly,
but at least every hour. Finally, classes on the first floor will use first-floor restrooms and those on the second floor will use the
second-floor restrooms, respectively.
Enrichment: Optional enrichment is offered from 1:30 pm to 2:30 pm daily.
Office Expectations:
1.
Visitors: all visitors are expected to wear face coverings and enter the office only if no other visitors are present.
Visitors waiting to be seen shall wait on pre-marked, foot-shaped stickers that are present on the hallway floors. Visitors
will present their ID to the Office Manager and will be checked in using the visitor iPad, but will not touch the iPad.
Instead, the Office Manager will be the only person using the iPad. Visitors will not be invited or allowed beyond the
office/main hallways.
2.
Sanitation: materials such as pencils, clipboards and pens will be provided in a cup marked “sanitized.” All
materials that have been used by any person will be placed in a cup marked, “not sanitized,” and will be sanitized at the
first available opportunity.
Overall Sanitation: Crete Janitorial staff will adhere to federal and state cleaning guidelines daily.
Daily sanitation:
Newly developed sanitations requirements will be implemented and will remain in effect until further notice. Such sanitation
requirements include the following:
1.
Students will use hand sanitizer upon entering and exiting the classroom
2.
Teachers and staff will use hand sanitizer upon entering and exiting the classroom
3.
Sanitizing of restrooms regularly or at least every hour
4.
Sanitizing of the playground after each class use
Although we have tried to be extensive in covering all major concerns or issues that may arise, we are in uncertain times and
cannot possibly predict everything. With that being said, we ask for your support and flexibility, as changes are likely to be made
as we learn more and as school begins.
Despite uncertain circumstances, we anticipate another great year at Crete Academy, where your child will learn, grow and
prosper. Thank you in advance for your support in implementing new measures to ensure a safe return to school and a robust
learning experience for every Crete leader.
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Parent-Student Handbook - 2021-2022
Parent-Student Acknowledgement and Agreement Form
Dear Parent/Guardian:
Please read the new Crete Academy TK-6 Parent-Student Handbook and return the signed
form below to your school. Your signature indicates that you, your family and your students
will abide by the policies and procedures outlined in the 2021-2022 Crete Academy ParentStudent Handbook. Any additional school policies not included in this handbook are
available upon request. Crete Academy reserves the right to make revisions to the 2021-2022
Crete Academy Parent-Student Handbook. Parents/guardians will be notified in a timely
manner if changes are made.
……………………………………..................Tear Off…………………………………
Parent-Student Handbook - 2021-2022
Parent-Student Acknowledgement and Agreement Form
Dear Parent/Guardian:
Please read the new Crete Academy TK-6 Parent-Student Handbook and return the signed
form below to your school. Your signature indicates that you, your family and your students
will abide by the policies and procedures outlined in the 2020-2021 Crete Academy ParentStudent Handbook. Any additional school policies not included in this handbook are
available upon request. Crete Academy reserves the right to make revisions to the 2020-2021
Crete Academy Parent-Student Handbook. Parents/guardians will be notified in a timely
manner if changes are made.
Student’s Name:

Last First M.I. Birthdate Grade
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Signature of Parent/Guardian Signature of Student
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Employee Handbook
2021-2022
6103 Crenshaw Boulevard
Los Angeles, CA 90043
Phone (323) 791-1600 |Fax (877) 496-2089
Website: www.creteacademy.org

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK
PLEASE READ THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK AND SUBMIT A SIGNED COPY OF THIS
STATEMENT TO THE SCHOOL LEADER (“SL”)/PRINCIPAL
EMPLOYEE NAME:
I ACKNOWLEDGE that I have received a copy of the Employee Handbook. I have read and
understood the contents of the Handbook, and I agree to abide by its directions and procedures. I
have been given the opportunity to ask any questions I might have about the policies in the
Handbook. I understand that it is my responsibility to read and familiarize myself with the policies
and procedures contained in the Handbook.
I understand that the statements contained in the Handbook are guidelines for employees
concerning some of the School’s policies and benefits, and are not intended to create any
contractual or other legal obligations or to alter the at-will nature of my employment with the
School. In the event I do have an employment contract which expressly alters the at-will
relationship, I agree to the foregoing except with reference to an at-will employment status.
I understand that except for employment at-will status, any and all policies or practices can be
changed at any time by the School.
I understand that other than the Board of the School, no person has authority to enter into any
agreement, express or implied, for employment for any specific period of time, or to make any
agreement for employment other than at-will; only the Board has the authority to make any such
agreement and then only in writing signed by the Board President.
Employee’s Signature:

Date:

Please sign/date, tear out, and return to the School.
*Please make sure to read and review the addendum TEMPORARY TELEWORK POLICY (page 61) to
address COVID-19 Remote Working Conditions for the 2020-2021 School year
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INTRODUCTION TO HANDBOOK
This Handbook is designed to help employees get acquainted with Crete Academy (hereinafter
referred to as “Crete Academy” or the “School”). It explains some of our philosophies and beliefs,
and describes some of our employment guidelines in general terms. Although this Handbook is
not intended to be an exclusive or comprehensive policies and procedures manual, we hope that it
will serve as a useful reference document for employees throughout their employment at the
School. Employees should understand, however, that this Handbook is not intended to be a contract
(express or implied), nor is it intended to otherwise create any legally enforceable obligations on
the part of the School or its employees. In no way does the Handbook replace any official plan
documents (e.g., health insurance, retirement plan, etc.) or insurance contracts, which will govern
in all cases. This Handbook supersedes and replaces all previous personnel policies, practices, and
guidelines.
Due to the fact that the School is a growing and changing organization, it reserves full discretion
to add to, modify, or delete provisions of this Handbook, or the policies and procedures on which
they may be based, at any time without advance notice. Crete Academy also reserves the right to
interpret any of the provisions set forth in this Handbook in any manner it deems appropriate.
No individual other than the Board of Directors has the authority to enter into any employment or
other agreement that modifies School policy. Any such modification must be in writing.
This Handbook is the property of the School, and it is intended for personal use and reference by
employees of the School. Circulation of this Handbook outside of the School requires the prior
written approval of the SL/PRINCIPAL.
Employees must sign the acknowledgment form at the beginning of this Handbook, tear it out, and
return it to the SL/PRINCIPAL. This will provide the School with a record that each employee has
received this Handbook.
Mission
Crete Academy will provide a rigorous, college preparatory education to historically underserved
TK-6 students.
Academic Philosophy
An unwavering focus on its mission to prepare student’s mind, body and soul to enter and succeed
in college serves as the single guiding principle for every aspect of Crete Academy’s educational
program and instructional methodology. Fundamentally, the Crete Academy community acts upon
the belief that all students can learn at high levels and deserve the opportunity to receive a college
preparatory public education. Crete Academy believes in establishing clear and measurable goals
for academic performance for every leader, teacher and student, and believes that it is ultimately
the responsibility of adults at Crete Academy Schools to do whatever it takes to ensure students
meet the high academic and social standards set for them.
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Foundational Beliefs
Crete Academy staff members embody and teach these values:
•

Character: Crete is dedicated to ensuring students have strong character, which means
they are honest, trustworthy, have integrity, and a strong sense of perseverance.

•

Responsibility: Crete students will be taught to take responsibility for their actions.
Students will learn humility in times of celebration and acceptance in times of failure.

•

Excellence: Crete students will do all things with excellence, understanding that they are
not perfect, but they are always asked to do their best.

•

Equality: Crete students will learn to appreciate and embrace the differences of others,
including but not limited to individuals of different ethnic backgrounds, religious faiths,
sexual preferences and learning abilities. Students will learn that everyone deserves to
experience life equally and should not be treated differently based on circumstances beyond
their control.

•

Teachability: Crete students will be taught the growth mindset in order to remain life- long
learners. This means students will have an understanding that intelligence is not fixed.
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CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
Equal Employment Opportunity Is Our Policy
Crete Academy is an equal opportunity employer. It is the policy of the School to afford equal
employment and advancement opportunity to all qualified individuals without regard to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Race;
Color;
Gender (including gender identity and gender expression);
Sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and medical conditions related to
such);
Religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices);
Marital/registered domestic partner status;
Age (forty (40) and over);
National origin or ancestry (including native language spoken);
Physical or mental disability (including HIV and AIDS);
Medical condition (including cancer and genetic characteristics);
Taking of a leave of absence pursuant to the Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”),
Pregnancy Disability Leave (“PDL”) law, Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”),
California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”), or the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(“FEHA”);
Genetic information;
Sexual orientation;
Military and veteran status; or
Any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws.

This policy extends to all employees and to all aspects of the employment relationship, including
the hiring of new employees and the training, transfer, promotion, compensation and benefits of
existing employees.
To comply with applicable laws ensuring equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals
with a disability, the School will make reasonable accommodations for the known physical or
mental limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability who is an applicant or an
employee unless undue hardship would result.
Any applicant or employee who requires an accommodation in order to perform the essential
functions of the job should contact a School representative with day-to-day personnel
responsibilities and request such an accommodation. The individual with the disability should
specify what accommodation he or she needs to perform the job. Crete Academy then will conduct
an investigation to identify the barriers that interfere with the equal opportunity of the applicant or
employee to perform his or her job. Crete Academy will identify possible accommodations, if any,
that will help eliminate the limitation. If the accommodation is reasonable and will not impose an
undue hardship, the School will make the accommodation.
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Employment At-Will
Except if stated expressly otherwise by employment contract, it is the policy of the School that all
employees are considered “at-will” employees of the School. Accordingly, either the School or the
employee can terminate this relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, and
with or without advance notice.
Nothing contained in this Handbook, employment applications, School memoranda or other
materials provided to employees in connection with their employment shall require the School to
have “cause” to terminate an employee or otherwise restrict the School’s right to release an
employee from their at-will employment with the School. Statements of specific grounds for
termination set forth in this Handbook or elsewhere are not all-inclusive and are not intended to
restrict the School’s right to terminate at-will. No School representative, other than the Board of
Directors or its designee, is authorized to modify this policy for any employee or to make any
representations to employees or applicants concerning the terms or conditions of employment with
the School that are not consistent with the School’s policy regarding “at-will” employment.
This policy shall not be modified by any statements contained in this Handbook or employee
applications, School memoranda, or any other materials provided to employees in connection with
their employment. Further, none of those documents whether singly or combined, or any
employment practices, shall create an express or implied contract of employment for a definite
period, nor an express or implied contract concerning any terms or conditions of employment.
Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting
California Penal Code section 11166 requires any child care custodian who has knowledge of, or
observes, a child in his or her professional capacity or within the scope of his or her employment
whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse to report the
known or suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency immediately, or as soon
as practically possible, by telephone and to prepare and send a written report thereof within thirtysix (36) hours of receiving the information concerning the incident.
Crete Academy will provide annual training on the mandated reporting requirements, using the
online training module provided by the State Department of Social Services, to employees who
are mandated reporters. Mandated reporter training will also be provided to employees hired during
the course of the school year. This training will include information that failure to report an
incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect, as required by Penal Code
section 11166, is a misdemeanor punishable by up to six (6) months confinement in a county jail,
or by a fine of one-thousand dollars ($1,000), or by both that imprisonment and fine.
All employees required to receive mandated reporter training must provide proof of completing
the training within the first six (6) weeks of each school year or within the first six (6) weeks of
that employee’s employment.
By acknowledging receipt of this Handbook, employees acknowledge they are child care
custodians and are certifying that they have knowledge of California Penal Code section 11166
and will comply with its provisions.
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Criminal Background Checks
As required by law, all individuals working or volunteering at the School will be required to submit
to a criminal background investigation. No condition or activity will be permitted that may
compromise the School’s commitment to the safety and the well-being of students takes
precedence over all other considerations. Conditions that preclude working at the School include
conviction of a controlled substance or sex offense, or a serious or violent felony. Additionally,
should an employee, during his/her employment with the School, be convicted of a controlled
substance or sex offense, or serious or violent felony, the employee must immediately report such
a conviction to the SL/PRINCIPAL.
Tuberculosis Testing
All employees of the School must submit written proof from a physician of a risk assessment
examination for tuberculosis (TB) within the last sixty (60) days. If TB risk factors are identified,
a physician must conduct an examination to determine whether the employee is free of infectious
TB. The examination for TB consists of an approved TB test, which, if positive, will be followed
by an x-ray of the lungs, or in the absence of skin testing, an x-ray of the lungs. All employees will
be required to undergo TB risk assessments and, if risk factors are found, the examination at least
once every four (4) years. Volunteers may be required to undergo a TB examination as necessary.
The TB risk assessment and, if indicated, the examination is a condition of initial employment with
the School and the cost of the exam will be borne by the applicant.
Food handlers may be required to have annual TB exams. Documentation of employee and
volunteer compliance with TB risk assessments and examinations will be kept on file in the office.
This requirement also includes contract food handlers, substitute teachers, and student teachers
serving under the supervision of an educator. Any entity providing student services to the School
will be contractually required to ensure that all contract workers have had TB testing that shows
them to be free of active TB prior to conducting work with School students.
Immigration Compliance
Crete Academy will comply with applicable immigration law, including the Immigration Reform
and Control Act of 1986 and the Immigration Act of 1990. As a condition of employment, every
individual must provide satisfactory evidence of his or her identity and legal authority to work in
the United States. However, Crete Academy will not check the employment authorization status
of current employees or applicants who were not offered positions with the School unless required
to do so by law.
The School shall not discharge an employee or in any manner discriminate, retaliate, or take any
adverse action (e.g., threatening to report the suspected citizenship or immigration status of an
employee or a member of the employee’s family) against any employee or applicant for
employment because the employee or applicant exercised a right protected under applicable law.
Further, the School shall not discriminate against any individual because he or she holds or
presents a driver’s license issued per Vehicle Code § 12801.9 to persons who have not established
their federally-authorized presence in the United States.
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Professional Boundaries: Staff/Student Interaction Policy
Crete Academy recognizes its responsibility to make and enforce all rules and regulations
governing student and employee behavior to bring about the safest and most learning-conducive
environment possible.
Corporal Punishment
Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal
punishment includes the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical pain
on a student.
For purposes of this policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that
is reasonable and necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent
damage to property.
For clarification purposes, the following examples are offered for direction and guidance of School
personnel:
A.

Examples of PERMITTED actions (NOT corporal punishment)
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

B.

Stopping a student from fighting with another student;
Preventing a pupil from committing an act of vandalism;
Defending yourself from physical injury or assault by a student;
Forcing a pupil to give up a weapon or dangerous object;
Requiring an athletic team to participate in strenuous physical training
activities designed to strengthen or condition team members or improve
their coordination, agility, or physical skills;
Engaging in group calisthenics, team drills, or other physical education or
voluntary recreational activities.

Examples of PROHIBITED actions (corporal punishment)
1.
2.
3.

Hitting, shoving, pushing, or physically restraining a student as a means of
control;
Making unruly students do push-ups, run laps, or perform other physical
acts that cause pain or discomfort as a form of punishment;
Paddling, swatting slapping, grabbing, pinching, kicking, or otherwise
causing physical pain.

Acceptable and Unacceptable Staff/Student Behavior
This policy is intended to guide all School faculty and staff in conducting themselves in a way that
reflects the high standards of behavior and professionalism required of school employees and to
specify the boundaries between students and staff.
Although this policy gives specific, clear direction, it is each staff member’s obligation to avoid
situations that could prompt suspicion by parents, students, colleagues, or school leaders. One
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viable standard that can be quickly applied, when you are unsure if certain conduct is acceptable,
is to ask yourself, “Would I be engaged in this conduct if my family or colleagues were standing
next to me?”
For the purposes of this policy, the term “boundaries” is defined as acceptable professional
behavior by staff members while interacting with a student. Trespassing the boundaries of a
student/teacher relationship is deemed an abuse of power and a betrayal of public trust.
Some activities may seem innocent from a staff member’s perspective but can be perceived as
flirtation or sexual insinuation from a student or parent point of view. The objective of the
following lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors is not to restrain innocent, positive
relationships between staff and students, but to prevent relationships that could lead to, or may be
perceived as, sexual misconduct.
Staff must understand their own responsibility for ensuring that they do not cross the boundaries
as written in this policy. Disagreeing with the wording or intent of the established boundaries will
be considered irrelevant for disciplinary purposes. Thus, it is crucial that all employees learn this
policy thoroughly and apply the lists of acceptable and unacceptable behaviors to their daily
activities. Although sincere, competent interaction with students certainly fosters learning,
student/staff interactions must have boundaries surrounding potential activities, locations and
intentions.
Duty to Report Suspected Misconduct
When any employee reasonably suspects or believes that another staff member may have crossed
the boundaries specified in this policy, he or she must immediately report the matter to a school
administrator. All reports shall be as confidential as possible under the circumstances. It is the duty
of the administrator to investigate and thoroughly report the situation. Employees must also report
to the administration any awareness or concern of student behavior that crosses boundaries or
where a student appears to be at risk for sexual abuse.
Examples of Specific Behaviors
The following examples are not an exhaustive list:
Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors (Violations of this Policy)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)

Giving gifts to an individual student that are of a personal and intimate nature.
Kissing of any kind.
Any type of unnecessary physical contact with a student in a private situation.
Intentionally being alone with a student away from the school.
Making or participating in sexually inappropriate comments.
Sexual jokes.
Seeking emotional involvement with a student for your benefit.
Listening to or telling stories that are sexually oriented.
Discussing inappropriate personal troubles or intimate issues with a student in an
attempt to gain their support and understanding.
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(j)

Becoming involved with a student so that a reasonable person may suspect
inappropriate behavior.

Overnight Field Lessons
On any overnight field trips, staff members and students of the opposite gender may never share a
room. Staff members may not sleep in the same beds, sleeping bags or small tents with students
and should never be alone with one student in the room. Similarly, students should never be in a
room without a chaperone. All non-Crete Academy staff chaperones must sign a chaperone
agreement in advance of the trip.
Home Visits
While home visits are an integral part of the work of Crete Academy Schools, staff members
should never be in a home alone with a student or alumni without their parent/guardian or another
appropriate adult present.
Bathrooms
All Crete Academy staff members must use staff bathrooms rather than student bathrooms.
Unacceptable Staff/Student Behaviors without Parent and Supervisor Permission
(These behaviors should only be exercised when a staff member has parent and supervisor
permission.)
(a)
(b)
(c)

Giving students a ride to/from school or school activities.
Being alone in a room with a student at school with the door closed.
Allowing students in your home.

Cautionary Staff/Student Behaviors
(These behaviors should only be exercised when a reasonable and prudent person, acting as
an educator, is prevented from using a better practice or behavior. Staff members should
inform their supervisor of the circumstance and occurrence prior to or immediately after
the occurrence)
(a)
(b)
(c)

Remarks about the physical attributes or development of anyone.
Excessive attention toward a particular student.
Sending emails, text messages or letters to students if the content is not about
school activities.

Acceptable and Recommended Staff/Student Behaviors
(a)
(b)

Getting parents’ written consent for any after-school activity.
Obtaining formal approval to take students off school property for activities such
as field trips or competitions.
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(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)
(k)
(l)
(m)
(n)
(o)
(p)
(q)
(r)
(s)

Emails, text, phone and instant messages to students must be very professional and
pertaining to school activities or classes (Communication should be limited to
school technology).
Keeping the door open when alone with a student.
Keeping reasonable space between you and your students.
Stopping and correcting students if they cross your own personal boundaries.
Keeping parents informed when a significant issue develops about a student.
Keeping after-class discussions with a student professional and brief.
Asking for advice from fellow staff or administrators if you find yourself in a
difficult situation related to boundaries.
Involving your supervisor if conflict arises with the student.
Informing the SL/PRINCIPAL about situations that have the potential to become
more severe.
Making detailed notes about an incident that could evolve into a more serious
situation later.
Recognizing the responsibility to stop unacceptable behavior of students or
coworkers.
Asking another staff member to be present if you will be alone with any type of
special needs student.
Asking another staff member to be present when you must be alone with a student
after regular school hours.
Giving students praise and recognition without touching them.
Pats on the back, high fives and handshakes are acceptable.
Keeping your professional conduct a high priority.
Asking yourself if your actions are worth your job and career.

Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation
Crete Academy is committed to providing a work and educational atmosphere that is free of
unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation. Crete Academy’s policy prohibits unlawful
harassment, discrimination, and retaliation based upon: race; color; gender (including gender
identity and gender expression); sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and related
medical conditions); religious creed (including religious dress and grooming practices);
marital/registered domestic partner status; age (forty (40) and over); national origin or ancestry
(including native language spoken); physical or mental disability (including HIV and AIDS);
medical condition (including cancer and genetic characteristics); taking a leave of absence
authorized by law; genetic information; sexual orientation; military and veteran status; or any other
consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws.
Employees, volunteers, unpaid interns, individuals in apprenticeship programs, and independent
contractors shall not be harassed, or discriminated or retaliated against, based upon the
characteristics noted above.
Crete Academy does not condone and will not tolerate unlawful harassment, discrimination, or
retaliation on the part of any employee (including supervisors and managers) or third party
(including independent contractors or other person with which the School does business).
Supervisors and managers are to report any complaints of unlawful harassment to the
SL/PRINCIPAL or designee.
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When Crete Academy receives allegations of unlawful harassment, discrimination, or retaliation,
the Board (if a complaint is about the SL/PRINCIPAL) or the SL/PRINCIPAL or designee will
conduct a fair, timely and thorough investigation that provides all parties an appropriate process
and reaches reasonable conclusions based on the evidence collected. The investigation will be
handled in as confidential a manner as possible, although complete confidentiality cannot be
guaranteed. Complainants and witnesses shall not be subject to retaliation for making complaints
in good faith or participating in an investigation. Crete Academy is committed to remediating any
instances where investigation findings demonstrate unlawful harassment, discrimination, or
retaliation has occurred.
Prohibited Unlawful Harassment
•
•
•
•

Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments or slurs;
Physical conduct including assault, unwanted touching, intentionally blocking normal
movement, or interfering with work because of sex, race or any other protected basis;
Retaliation for reporting or threatening to report harassment; or
Disparate treatment based on any of the protected classes above.

Prohibited Unlawful Sexual Harassment
Crete Academy is committed to providing a workplace free of sexual harassment and considers
such harassment to be a major offense, which may result in disciplinary action, up to, and including
dismissal, of the offending employee.
Sexual harassment consists of sexual advances, request for sexual favors and other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature, regardless of whether or not the conduct is motivated by sexual
desire, when: (1) submission to the conduct is either made explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of an individual’s employment; (2) an employment decision is based upon an
individual’s acceptance or rejection of that conduct; and/or (3) that conduct interferes with an
individual’s work performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working
environment.
It is also unlawful to retaliate in any way against an employee who has articulated a good faith
concern about sexual harassment against him or her or against another individual.
All supervisors of staff will receive sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation training
within six (6) months of their assumption of a supervisory position and will receive further training
once every two (2) years thereafter. Such training will address all legally required topics, including
information about the negative effects that abusive conduct has on both the victim of the conduct
and others in the workplace, as well as methods to prevent abusive conduct undertaken with malice
a reasonable person would find hostile, offensive, and unrelated to an employer’s legitimate
business interests. Abusive conduct includes but is not limited to repeated infliction of verbal
abuse, such as the use of derogatory remarks, insults, and epithets, verbal or physical conduct that
a reasonable person would find threatening, intimidating, or humiliating, or the gratuitous sabotage
or undermining of a person’s work performance. Supervisors shall also be trained on how to
appropriately respond when the supervisor becomes aware that an employee is the target of
unlawful harassment. Other staff will receive sexual harassment training and/or
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instruction concerning sexual harassment in the workplace as required by law.
Each employee has the responsibility to maintain a workplace free from any form of sexual
harassment. Consequently, should any individual, in particular those with supervisory
responsibilities, become aware of any conduct that may constitute sexual harassment or other
prohibited behavior, immediate action should be taken to address such conduct. Any employee
who believes they have been sexually harassed or has witnessed sexual harassment is encouraged
to immediately report such harassment to the SL/PRINCIPAL. See Appendix A for the
“Harassment/Discrimination/Retaliation Complaint Form.” See Appendix B for the general
“Internal Complaint Form.”
Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to:
•

•

•

Physical assaults of a sexual nature, such as:
o

Rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults and

o

Intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, such as touching, pinching,
patting, grabbing, brushing against another’s body, or poking another’s body.

Unwanted sexual advances, propositions or other sexual comments, such as:
o

Sexually oriented gestures, notices, remarks, jokes, or comments about a person’s
sexuality or sexual experience.

o

Preferential treatment or promises of preferential treatment to an employee for
submitting to sexual conduct, including soliciting or attempting to solicit any
employee to engage in sexual activity for compensation or reward or disparate
treatment for rejecting sexual conduct.

o

Subjecting or threats of subjecting an employee to unwelcome sexual attention or
conduct or intentionally making performance of the employee’s job more difficult
because of the employee’s sex.

Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere at the workplace by
employees, such as:
o

Displaying pictures, cartoons, posters, calendars, graffiti, objections, promotional
materials, reading materials, or other materials that are sexually suggestive,
sexually demeaning or pornographic or bringing to work or possessing any such
material to read, display or view at work;

o

Reading publicly or otherwise publicizing in the work environment materials that
are in any way sexually revealing, sexually suggestive, sexually demeaning or
pornographic; and

o

Displaying signs or other materials purporting to segregate an employee by sex in
an area of the workplace (other than restrooms or similar rooms).
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The illustrations of harassment and sexual harassment above are not to be construed as an allinclusive list of prohibited acts under this policy. Moreover, please note that while in most
situations a personal relationship is a private matter, these relationships are not appropriate in a
professional setting, particularly where one of the parties has management or supervisory
responsibilities. As such, consensual relationships in the workplace may violate Crete Academy
policy.
Workplace Violence
Crete Academy is committed to providing a safe workplace for all staff members. The purpose of
this policy is to minimize the risk of personal injury to staff members and damage to personal and
School/Program property. It is the policy of Crete Academy to expressly prohibit any acts or threats
of violence by any third parties against any other staff member in or about its facilities or elsewhere
at any time. Crete Academy will not tolerate any acts or threats of violence against its staff
members or visitors by any individual on its premises at any time or while such individual is
engaged in business with or on behalf of Crete Academy, on or off its premises. Crete Academy
prohibits the bringing of unauthorized firearms or other weapons onto School premises.
Crete Academy will take prompt remedial action, up to and including immediate discharge, against
any staff member who engages in threatening behavior or acts of violence or who use any obscene,
abusive or threatening language or gestures.
In furtherance of this policy, staff members have a duty to warn the SL, security personnel, or any
other member of the management team with whom the staff member feels comfortable, of any
suspicious workplace activity involving any third party which could impact the School or those on
the School campus. This includes, but is not limited to, threats or acts of violence, display of
weapons, extreme agitation, stalking, aggressive behavior, offensive acts and any other injurious
or destructive action or remark made for the purpose of domination or intimidation.
Staff member’s reports made pursuant to this policy will be held in confidence, to the extent
possible. Crete Academy Schools will promptly and thoroughly investigate all reports of violence,
threats of violence or suspicious individuals or activities. No staff member will be subjected to
retaliation, intimidation or disciplinary action as a result of reporting a threat in good faith under
this policy.
Staff members who violate this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination of employment.
Whistleblower Policy
Crete Academy requires its directors, officers, employees, and volunteers to observe high
standards of ethics in the conduct of their duties and responsibilities within the School. As
representatives of the School, such individuals must practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling all
responsibilities and must comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of this
policy is to create an ethical and open work environment, to ensure that the School has a
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governance and accountability structure that supports its mission, and to encourage and enable
directors, officers, employees, and volunteers of the School to raise serious concerns about the
occurrence of illegal or unethical actions within the School before turning to outside parties for
resolution.
All directors, officers, employees, and volunteers of the School have a responsibility to report any
action or suspected action taken within the School that is illegal, unethical or violates any adopted
policy of the School, or local rule or regulation. Anyone reporting a violation must act in good
faith, without malice to the School or any individual at the School and have reasonable grounds
for believing that the information shared in the report indicates that a violation has occurred. A
person who makes a report does not have to prove that a violation has occurred. However, any
report which the reporter has made maliciously or any report which the reporter has good reason
to believe is false will be viewed as a serious disciplinary offense. No one who in good faith reports
a violation, or who, in good faith, cooperates in the investigation of a violation shall suffer
harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action. Further, no one who in good faith
discloses, who may disclose, or who the School believes disclosed or may disclose, information
regarding alleged violations to a person with authority over the employee or another employee
who had responsibility for investigating, discovering or correcting the purported violation shall
suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse employment action.
Substance-Free Workplace
Crete Academy is committed to maintaining an environment free of drugs and alcohol. Staff
members are strictly prohibited from using drugs or other controlled or intoxicating substances or
alcohol in the workplace, or during work hours. Staff members are also prohibited from engaging
in the unlawful or unauthorized manufacture, possession, consumption, trade, sale, or distribution
of drugs and/or alcohol in the workplace. However, nothing in this policy precludes the appropriate
use of legally prescribed medications, so long as the use of such medications does not adversely
impact job performance. The SL/CEO may grant advanced approval for the consumption of
alcohol on School premises for events where no students are present and at which consumption of
alcohol by individuals under the legal drinking age is strictly prohibited. Violations of this policy
may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Staff members with questions
regarding this policy or issues related to drug or alcohol use in the workplace should raise their
concerns with the SL/HR. Staff members may do so without fear of reprisal by Crete Academy.
Confidentiality
While at Crete Academy, staff members will learn, have access to, or work with and be entrusted
with confidential information. It is against Crete Academy’s policy for staff members to use or
disclose the School’s/Program’s “Confidential Information” to third parties without prior
authorization. “Confidential Information” means any information that has been or which may be
disclosed to, created by, or obtained by Crete Academy staff members in the course of
employment, either orally or otherwise. The following is a non-exhaustive list of examples of
confidential information:
•
•

Student records
Financial information
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•
•
•
•

Personnel records
Payroll records
Computer programs, processes and passwords
Personal information regarding staff members, parents and students

Disclosing confidential information to outsiders or using it for anything other than conducting the
School’s/Program’s business is prohibited. This prohibition continues even after termination of
employment.
All confidential information, whether created or prepared by the staff member, or otherwise
coming into his/her possession, is the exclusive property of Crete Academy both during the staff
member’s employment and after his or her termination. All outside requests for information should
be sent directly to the School Leader and Crete Academy’s Chief of Operations. Staff members
shall not, without the prior written consent of the School/Program, use or disclose to any third
party any of the Confidential Information described herein, directly or indirectly, either during the
staff member’s employment with the School/Program or at any time following the termination of
staff member’s employment with the School/Program.
Wellness Program
The Crete Academy Wellness staff will have access to confidential information. It is strictly
prohibited, unless approved by the parent/guardian, for a member of the Wellness staff to
communicate with anyone regarding such privileged information.
When discussing a particular student’s behavior plan or strategies for students, the communication
should remain one of process and procedures and at no time should the communication be relating
to symptoms of behavior or specific individual circumstances.
Conflict of Interest
All employees must avoid situations involving actual or potential conflict of interest. An employee
involved in any relationships or situations which may constitute a conflict of interest should
immediately and fully disclose the relevant circumstances to the SL/PRINCIPAL, or the Board of
Directors, for a determination about whether a potential or actual conflict exists. If an actual or
potential conflict is determined, the School may take whatever corrective action appears
appropriate according to the circumstances. Failure to disclose facts shall constitute grounds for
disciplinary action.
Acceptance of Gifts and Favors
Staff members are prohibited from:
•
•

Soliciting for themselves or for a third party (other than Crete Academy itself) anything of
value from anyone in return for any business, service, or confidential information of Crete
Academy or its students.
Accepting anything of value (other than bona fide salary, wages, and fees) from anyone in
connection with Crete Academy business either before or after a transaction is discussed or
consummated other than occasional nominal parent or student gifts.
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All gifts received or offered, other than the exceptions listed below, should be disclosed in writing
immediately to the PRINCIPAL. The exceptions are:
•
•

•

•
•

Benefits that are available to the general public on the same conditions;
Acceptance of gifts, gratuities, amenities, or favors that are based on family or personal
relationships, independent of any school business (such as those with parents, children, and
spouses) when the circumstances make clear that it is those relationships, and not the
business of the School, that are the motivating factors;
Meals, refreshments, travel arrangements, accommodations, recreational trips, attendance
at sporting events or entertainment of reasonable value in the course of a meeting or other
occasion, the purpose of which is for a bona fide business discussion or part of an effort to
foster better school operations, the expense would be one Crete Academy would pay as a
reasonable business expense if not being paid by another party;
Acceptance of gifts not to exceed $25.00 in value that are related to commonly recognized
events or occasions, such as a promotion, wedding, graduation, or Christmas; and
Acceptance of civic, charitable, educational, or religious organizational awards for
recognition of service and accomplishment. The monetary value of such awards should not
exceed $25.00 in value.

Violation of these rules will result in appropriate disciplinary action. Depending upon the severity
and circumstances of the violation, such action could range from requiring reimbursement to
termination of the staff member involved in the violation.
Smoking
The Crete Academy facility is a no smoking facility.
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THE WORKPLACE
Office Hours and Attendance
At Crete Academy, we believe that anything is possible and work hard every day to prove that for
all of our community members. The regular workday for Crete Academy staff members shall be
determined by the academic schedule and any extracurricular activities for which staff members
have responsibilities. The regular office hours of Crete Academy are Monday through Friday, 7:15
a.m. to 4:00 p.m., unless otherwise stated.
These hours reflect the minimum expected hours for staff members and a different schedule may
be required in some positions. Hours may be set and adjusted by the SL, and staff members will
receive notice of any change. A staff member who will be late to work must inform his or her SL
or the SOM (School Office Manager) for School-based operations staff prior to his or her regular
start time. A staff member who must be absent for any reason during work hours must inform his
or her SL/SOM in advance. Planned absences must be scheduled and approved in advance by the
SL or the SOM for school- based operations staff. A staff member that is unable to attend work
due to illness or a serious personal reason must contact the SL at least two (2) hours before s/he is
scheduled to begin work. A staff member must report in each day that s/he will be absent and a
doctor’s note may be required before s/he is permitted to return to work. If a staff member fails
to report in on a morning s/he is absent, that individual will be deemed to have taken an
unauthorized absence and will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination. Staff
members who fail to report in for three (3) consecutive days without authorization may be deemed
to have abandoned their jobs.
Frequent lateness or absenteeism will affect performance and may affect the ability of others to
perform their work. For this reason, excessive lateness and absenteeism will result in disciplinary
action, up to and including termination. Documentation for reason of absence may be requested
by the SL/PRINCIPAL at any time at their sole discretion.
Critical Days
Critical Days are defined as periods of school operations where it is critical that all staff be in
attendance. All days immediately before or after a school holiday are designated critical days and
will not be approved. All school events, including the End-of-Year BBQ, Sixth Grade Graduation
and all other major school events. Major School Events are defined as events where the majority
of the students, staff or families are invited. Staff members that are ill must provide documentation
from a doctor if s/he must be absent during a critical day. The School Leader will outline critical
periods and the School Leader must approve all leave requests at least two (2) weeks in advance.
Meal and Rest Periods
Non-exempt employees working at least 5 or more hours are provided with a thirty (30) minute
meal period, to be taken approximately in the middle of the workday but by no later than the end
of the 5th hour of work. An employee may waive this meal period if the day’s work will be
completed in no more than six (5) hours, provided the employee and Crete Academy mutually
consent to the waiver in writing.
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Non-exempt employees are also provided with a ten (10) minute rest period for every four (4)
hours worked which should be scheduled towards the middle of the four (4) hour work period as
practicable. Employees are prohibited from combining meal and rest period time.
An employee’s supervisor must be aware of and approve scheduled meal and rest periods.
Employees must immediately inform their supervisor if they are prevented from taking their meal
and/or rest periods. Employees are expected to observe assigned working hours and the time
allowed for meal and rest periods.
Lactation Accommodation
Crete Academy accommodates lactating employees by providing a reasonable amount of break
time to any employee who desires to express breast milk for an infant child. The break time shall,
if possible, run concurrently with any break time already provided to the employee. Any break
time provided to express breast milk that does not run concurrently with break time already
provided to the non-exempt employee shall be unpaid.
Crete Academy will make reasonable efforts to provide employees who need a lactation
accommodation with the use of a room or other private location that is located close to the
employee’s work area. Employees with private offices will be required to use their offices to
express breast milk. Employees who desire lactation accommodations should contact their
supervisor to request accommodations.
Time Cards/Records
By law, Crete Academy is obligated to keep accurate records of the time worked by non-exempt
employees. Such employees shall keep be required to utilize the School’s time card system.
Non-exempt employees must accurately clock in and out of their shifts as this is the only way the
payroll department knows how many hours each employee has worked and how much each
employee is owed. The time card indicates when the employee arrived and when the employee
departed. All non-exempt employees must clock in and out for arrival and departure, along with
lunch and for absences like doctor or dentist appointments. All employees are required to keep the
office advised of their departures from and returns to the school premises during the workday.
Non-exempt employees are solely responsible for ensuring accurate information on their time
cards and remembering to record time worked. If an employee forgets to mark their time card or
makes an error on the time card, the employee must contact the SL/PRINCIPAL to make the
correction and such correction must be initialed by both the employee and the SL/PRINCIPAL.
Non-exempt employees are prohibited from performing off-the-clock work, including but not
limited to checking emails before/after work hours, performing work in the morning before
logging in, and running School errands after logging out.
No one may record hours worked on another’s worksheet. Any employee who violates any aspect
of this policy may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including release from at- will
employment with the School.
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Use of Email, Voicemail and Internet Access
Crete Academy will permit employees to use its email, voicemail systems and Internet access
subject to the following:
1.

Minimal personal use as long as it does not interfere with timely job performance and is
consistent with law and appropriate protocols.

2.

The email system and Internet access is not to be used in any way that may be disruptive,
offensive to others, or harmful to morale. For example, sexually explicit images, ethnic
slurs, racial epithets, or anything else that may be construed as harassment or
disparagement of others based on their race, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, age,
religious beliefs or political beliefs may not be displayed or transmitted.

3.

Employees should not attempt to gain access to another employee’s personal file or email
or voicemail messages without the latter’s express permission.

4.

School staff will not enter an employee’s personal email files or voicemail unless there is
a business need to do so. Crete Academy retains a copy of all passwords; passwords
unknown to the School may not be used. System security features, including passwords
and delete functions, do not neutralize the School’s ability to access any message at any
time. Employees must be aware that the possibility of such access always exists.

5.

Employees should not use personal devices or email accounts for School-related
communications. Such communications should only take place using School-issued
devices and via the employee’s Crete Academy email account.

Purchasing
Staff members must follow the Purchasing Policy set forth below:
Purchase Requests
All purchase requests must be pre-approved. Requests should be submitted in writing, even if a
verbal request is also made. Once written approval is received, the staff member may submit a
purchase request on the appropriate finance form. The Office Manager/School Operations
Manager is responsible for submitting purchase requests for office supplies and program supplies.
Requests should be made in writing on the appropriate form.
Getting Reimbursed
1. Remember to get an itemized receipt. EVERY EXPENSE NEEDS A RECEIPT. The
following items are not sufficient documentation: packing slips, online shopping cart print
outs, and other items that do not state the amount of the purchase and confirm that the
purchase was made.
Original receipts, a copy of the receipts, a packing slip for shipped goods, should be
stapled to the reimbursement form. Multiple receipts from multiple vendors may be
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attached to a single Reimbursement Request form. Please keep a copy of the receipt and
the reimbursement form for your records. This will protect staff members in case
paperwork is misplaced at any point during the process.
2. Fill out a Reimbursement Request Form. Forms are available from the SOM. When
describing the purchase on the form, staff members should complete the form thoroughly,
including the description line, and avoid use of the term “miscellaneous.” The person
submitting the form must sign the reimbursement form. Reimbursement Forms should be
submitted within one week of purchase to your SOM, after obtaining school leader or
PRINCIPAL approval.
Please note: Crete Academy does not distribute petty cash or cash advances. If a vendor
will accept a check, staff members may also request a check through their SOM (using the
Check Request form) for the vendor in advance and thus avoid making an out of pocket
purchase, after obtaining school leader or manager approval.
Budget and Expense Policies and Procedures
It is the policy of Crete Academy to reimburse individuals for necessary and reasonable travel and
business expenses incurred while conducting official Crete Academy business. As good stewards
of our money, this policy has been created to ensure sound business practices along with timely
and accurate reporting of travel and business expenses. Please direct any questions regarding this
policy to the PRINCIPAL.
Expense Reporting by Employee
Receipts for reimbursement of approved travel and business expenses must be received,
accompanied by a completed reimbursement form, by the PRINCIPAL or SOM preferably within
fifteen (15), but no later than thirty (30) days after completion of a trip, the date of an event or the
incurrence of a business expense.
Any claim for reimbursement submitted more than thirty (30) days after the completion of the trip
or event may not be reimbursed, unless an approved reasonable exception has been obtained. A
reasonable exception will be decided on a case-by-case basis depending on the facts and
circumstances of the situation.
The organization reserves the right to withhold reimbursement while it investigates expense report
items.
The Reimbursement Request Form can be obtained by contacting the PRINCIPAL or SOM.
Mileage
Mileage for approved travel will be reimbursed at the IRS standard mileage rate for any meetings
or trainings outside of the city of Los Angeles. Mileage may be reimbursed for travel to meetings
or schools for Crete Academy business. When traveling outside of the city of Los Angeles (ex.
Anaheim), please carpool with other Crete Academy employees when possible. Mileage will not
be reimbursed for commute from home to work or personal errands in conjunction with Crete
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Academy business.
A Google Maps printout, or other appropriate documentation, must be submitted for
reimbursement. The mileage log can be obtained from the SOM or Finance Office. For current
IRS standard mileage rates please visit www.irs.gov, keyword “mileage.”
Airfare
Business travel by air should be planned at least fourteen (14) days in advance. Travelers are
expected to book the lowest cost coach class fare available. In the event airfare must be purchased
less than fourteen (14) days prior to travel, written approval must be obtained by the PRINCIPAL.
Employees are expected to select flights based on low-price coupled with timing requirements;
they may not take more expensive flights because they personally prefer a specific carrier.
Employees using their frequent flyer mileage program are not expected to use their miles for
business purposes. Employees are not allowed to use miles to book a flight and turn in
reimbursement for the cost of the flight.
Meal Daily Limits
Crete Academy maintains a table that shows the breakdown for breakfast, lunch, and dinner per
diem rates. These rates apply during travel as well as local business meals. Please keep these per
diems in mind when making restaurant decisions. The per diem rates differ by location. View the
per diem rate chart for your location or primary destination to determine which rates apply. Please
see the SOM or PRINCIPAL for any questions related to the per diem chart. Also, please note that
the Los Angeles daily limit, as well as most US cities is $59. Staff members may not be reimbursed
for meals that are classified solely as entertainment.
Lodging
Lodging prices vary for each destination. Please use the Crete Academy Per Diem Rate Chart for
your primary destination to determine which rates apply.
Rental Car
Travelers may rent a car at their destination if:
•
•

It is less expensive than other modes of transportation such as taxis and airport shuttle.
Traveler will need transportation on a daily basis to multiple locations. Travelers will be
reimbursed for rental expense of economy size vehicle; unless more than two (2) people
are traveling together. Car must be booked from the least expensive on-site retailer.
Reimbursable costs include rental fee, mileage fee, gasoline, tolls, parking fees and
insurance charges. Non-reimbursable costs include car repairs, traffic and/or parking fines
or violations. Non-reimbursable Expenses

The following are not reimbursable since they are primarily for personal use.
•

Alcohol
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Car repair
Credit card interest charges
Day-care for children or pets
Fees for upgrades of air, hotel or auto
Golfing or green fees
Golfing cart rental
Grooming, Nail or Hair Salon expenses
Headphones on airlines
Health Club fees
Laundry (unless out of town five [5] nights or more)
Massage
Medicines
Movies (either in room or at the theater)
Personal bar bills
Personal books, magazines or other entertainment
Personal travel portion during business trip
Pet hotel stays or transportation
Political or charitable contributions
Sporting events
Spouses expenses if accompanying Crete Academy employee on business trip
Toiletries
Theater, cinema or opera tickets
Traffic citations (parking tickets or fines)

Crete Academy Property
Crete Academy property (including but not limited to computers, cellular telephones,
photocopiers, and other equipment, machines or tools) is essential in accomplishing job duties and
often is expensive and may be difficult to replace. When using Crete Academy property, staff
members are expected to exercise care, perform required maintenance, and follow all operating
instructions, safety standards and guidelines.
Staff members must notify their SL/SOM if any School/Program Property appears to be damaged,
defective or needs repair. Prompt reporting of loss, damages, defects and the need for repairs could
prevent deterioration of equipment and possible injury to staff members or others. Staff members
also are prohibited from any unauthorized use of Crete Academy intellectual property, such as
audio and videotapes, print materials and software. Staff members who practice improper, careless,
negligent, destructive, or unsafe use or operation of equipment will be subject to discipline, up to
and including discharge.
The School/Program is not responsible for any damage to staff member’s personal belongings.
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Securing Equipment In and Out of the Classroom
When securing both teacher issued equipment, and equipment designated for student use, please
observe the following protocols:
-

Do not share, or allow a student to see, a lock combination when retrieving or returning
laptops to a mobile cart.

-

Always scramble the combination when the lock is not in use.

-

Always lock mobile cart when exiting classroom.

-

Over weekends and holidays, in addition to securing laptops, freestanding projectors are to
be secured in a locking cabinet or drawer within the classroom. If you do not have a secure
area in your classroom, or if this area becomes compromised at any point, notify the office
immediately.

-

Staff-issued laptops should be taken with you at the end of the day, or secured in a locked
cabinet before leaving campus.

-

If loss does occur, and it is determined that any of the above protocols were not followed
at the time of the loss, the responsible staff member may be required to compensate Crete
Academy for the value of the lost equipment.

Maintaining Electronic Equipment in Your Classroom
The electronic equipment provided to you by Crete Academy is costly and its proper upkeep is
important.
Laptops: Refrain from downloading any 3rd Party Application from social networking sites, as
these lead to a large number of computer viruses and hard drive failures.
The Limits of Staff Member Responsibility
Staff members will not be held responsible for any hardware defect that occurs at no fault of the
user, or if that hardware is under warranty. In addition, virus and wireless issues that arise are
expected and will be fixed by the technology team. Any misplaced or stolen electronic equipment,
that cannot be located within a reasonable period of time, may become the responsibility of the
staff member if it is determined that protocol was not followed. If this is the case, that staff member
may be required to compensate Crete Academy for the value of the lost or stolen equipment.
Monitoring Student Laptop Use In the Classroom
It is expected that while students are engaged in online learning in the classroom, that any staff
member in the room make every reasonable attempt to ensure students are not being exposed to
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material inconsistent with the assigned online task. This requires consistent circulation and/or
positioning within the room so as to always have each laptop screen within view.
If students attempt to shield their screen from an adult in the classroom, it is assumed that material
inconsistent with the assigned activity is displayed, and laptop use privileges should be restricted.
If it is determined that a teacher has intentionally given a student a restricted password, or access
to restricted sites, that teacher may have their set of laptops removed from their possession for an
indefinite period of time.
Online Communication with Students
Many of our students communicate via social networking sites, instant messenger clients, and
email. If there is a need for a staff member to communicate online with a student, they are to do
so through one of the online instructional programs Crete Academy has purchased.
Procedures for Resolving Technology Issues
If you experience technical difficulty with any of the Crete Academy issued hardware or software
assigned to you, your students, or your classroom, it is required that you report that problem to the
SOM.
When issues are communicated to Crete Academy’s SOM, issues are addressed within 48 hours.
If your issue is one that prohibits you from getting online to fill out the form, call or text message
the SOM with your request.
Personal Business
Crete Academy’s facilities for handling mail and telephone calls are designed to accommodate
School business. Employees should have personal mail directed to their home address and limit
personal telephone calls to an absolute minimum (Urgent or Emergency). If you are found to be
using your phone for non-urgent personal use during work hours, you may be subject to
disciplinary action, including dismissal. Personal calls should not be made outside the immediate
dialing area. Do not use School material, time or equipment for personal projects.
Personal Property
Loss of, or damage to, personal property is not the responsibility of Crete Academy, even if the
damage or loss occurs on Crete Academy’s grounds.
Involvement in Civic, Trade, Educational, Charitable, and Fraternal Affairs
Crete Academy encourages staff members to participate in civic and charitable activities. Staff
members choosing to participate in civic, charitable, political, and professional association
activities are responsible for seeing that such participation does not result in any actual or apparent
conflict of interest.
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Staff Travel
Staff members are eligible for reimbursement for certain expenses incurred while traveling on
official Crete Academy business. To be eligible for travel reimbursement, staff members must
have transportation, lodging, and meal-spending limits approved in advance by the
SL/PRINCIPAL. All requests for travel reimbursement must be made in accordance with the
reimbursement policy in this handbook and be accompanied by proof of expenditures and
payments. The final decision on whether to reimburse staff members for any such expenses will
be made the SL/PRINCIPAL, in his or her sole discretion. In every case, the means of
transportation which is least expensive to Crete Academy and which is in the interest of efficiency,
with proper consideration of circumstances, should be used. For car rentals, Crete Academy will
not reimburse for liability coverage because it carries liability coverage through its insurance
policy. Staff members must purchase the physical damage/loss damage waiver coverage for
physical damage coverage to the vehicle itself.
Disciplinary Physical Contact With Students
It is the policy of Crete Academy that no teacher or other staff member will use corporal punishment
against a student. This prohibition includes spanking, slapping, pinching, hitting, tying, taping, or the
use of any other physical force as retaliation or correction for inappropriate behavior.

STAFF-STUDENT INTERACTIONS
While the use of appropriate touching is part of daily life and is important for student development,
teachers and other staff members must ensure that they do not exceed appropriate behavior. If a child
or other staff member specifically requests that he or she not be touched, then that request must be
honored without question.
Boundaries Defined
For the purposes of this policy, the term “boundaries” is defined as acceptable professional behavior
by staff members while interacting with a student. Trespassing beyond the boundaries of a studentteacher relationship is deemed an abuse of power and a betrayal of public trust.
Acceptable and Unacceptable Behaviors
Some activities may seem innocent from a staff member’s point-of-view but could be perceived as
flirtation or sexual insinuation from the perspective of students or parents. There is no single
reasonable person standard. The purpose of the following lists of unacceptable and acceptable
behaviors is not to restrain innocent, positive relationships between staff and students, but to prevent
relationships that could lead to or may be perceived as inappropriate, or sexual misconduct, or
“grooming.” Grooming is defined as an act or series of acts by a sexual predator to gain physical
and/or emotional control by gaining trust (of staff and/or family and a minor) and desensitizing the
minor to various forms of touching and other intimate interaction.
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Staff members must understand their own responsibilities for ensuring that they do not cross the
boundaries as written in this policy. Violations could subject the teacher or staff member to discipline
up to and including termination. Disagreeing with the wording or intent of these established boundaries
will be considered irrelevant for any required disciplinary purposes.
Thus, it is critical that all employees study this policy thoroughly and apply its spirit and intent in their
daily activities.
Unacceptable Behaviors
These lists (and any subsequent lists) are not meant to be all-inclusive, but rather, illustrative of the
types of behavior intended to be addressed by this policy.
1. Giving gifts of a personal and intimate nature (including photographs) to a student; or items
such as money, food, outings, electronics, etc. without the written pre-approval of the
Principal or School Leader. It is recommended that any such gifts be filtered through the
Principal along with the rationale therefor.
2.
Kissing of ANY kind
3.

Massage [Note: Prohibited in athletics unless provided by massage therapist or other certified
professional in an open public location. Coaches may not perform massage or rub-down.
Permitted in special education only as instructed under an IEP or 504 Plan.]

4.

Full frontal or rear hugs and lengthy embraces

5.

Sitting students on one’s lap (grades 3 and above)

6.

Touching buttocks, thighs, chest, or genital area

7.

Wrestling with students or other staff member except in the context of a formal
wrestling program

8.

Tickling or piggyback rides

9.

Any form of sexual contact

10.

Any type of unnecessary physical contact with a student in a private situation

11.

Intentionally being alone with a student away from school

12.

Furnishing alcohol, tobacco products, or drugs - or failing to report knowledge of such

13.

“Dating” or “going out with” a student

14.

Remarks about physical attributes or physiological development of anyone. This
includes comments such as “Looking fine!” or “Check out that [body part].”

15.

Taking photographs or videos of students for personal use or posting online

16.

Either partially or fully undressing in front of a student or asking a student to undress with
the intent to view/expose private body parts

17.

Leaving campus alone with a student for lunch

18.

Sharing a bed, mat, or sleeping bag with a student
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19.

Making, or participating in, sexually inappropriate comments

20.

Sexual jokes, or jokes/comments with sexual overtones or double-entendres

21.

Seeking emotional involvement (which can include intimate attachment) with a student
beyond the normative care and concern required of an educator.

22.

Listening to or telling stories that are sexually oriented

23.

Discussing your personal troubles or intimate issues with a student

24.

Becoming too involved with a student so that a reasonable person may suspect
inappropriate behavior

25.

Giving students a ride to/from school or school activities without the express, advance written
permission of the Prinicipal and the student’s parent or legal guardian

26.

Being alone in a room with a student at school with the door closed and/or windows
blocked from view
27. Allowing students at your home and/or in rooms within your home without signed parental
permission for a pre-planned and pre-communicated educational activity which must include
another educator, parent, or designated school volunteer
28. Sending emails, text messages, social media responses, making phone calls, or sending notes or
letters to students if the content is not about school activities. Communication via private social
media accounts is not acceptable.
Acceptable Behaviors
1.

Pats on the shoulder or back

2.

Handshakes

3.

“High-fives” and hand slapping

4.

Touching face to check temperature, wipe away a tear, remove hair from face, or other similar
types of contact

5.

Placing TK through second grade students on one’s lap for purposes of comforting the child
for a short duration only

6.

Holding hands while walking with small children or children with significant
disabilities

7.

Assisting with toileting of small or disabled children in view of another staff member

8.

Touch required under an IEP or 504 Plan

9.

Reasonable restraint of a violent person to protect self, others, or property

10. Obtaining formal written pre-approval from the Principal to take students off school property
for activities such as field trips or competitions, including parent’s written permission and
waiver form for any sponsored after-school activity whether on or off- campus
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11. Emails, text-messages, phone conversations, and other communications to and with
students, if permitted, must be professional and pertain to school activities or classes
(communication should be initiated via transparent [non-private] school-based technology
and equipment)
12. Keeping the door wide open when alone with a student
13. Keeping reasonable and appropriate space between you and the student
14. Stopping and correcting students if they cross your own personal boundaries, including
touching legs, or buttocks, frontal hugs, kissing, or caressing
15. Keeping parents informed when a significant issue develops about a student, such as a change
in demeanor or uncharacteristic behavior
16. Keeping after-class discussions with a student professional and brief
17. Immediately asking for advice from senior staff or administration if you find yourself in a
difficult situation related to boundaries
18. Involving your direct supervisor in discussion about boundaries situations that have the
potential to become more severe (including but not limited to: grooming or other red flag
behaviors observed in colleagues, written material that is disturbing, or a student’s fixation on
an adult)
19. Making detailed notes about an incident that in your best judgement could evolve into a more
serious situation later
20. Recognizing the responsibility to stop “Unacceptable Behaviors” of students and/or coworkers
21. Asking another staff member to be present, or within close supervisory distance, when you
must be alone with a student after regular school hours
22. Prioritizing professional behavior during all moments of student contact
23. Asking yourself if any of your actions, which could be contrary to these provisions, are worth
sacrificing your job and career.
This policy does not prevent: 1) touching a student for the purpose of guiding them along a physical
path; 2) helping them up after a fall; or 3) engaging in a rescue or the application of Cardio
Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) or other emergency first-aid. Nor does it prohibit the use of
reasonable force and touching in self-defense or in the defense of another. Restraining a child who is
trying to engage in violent or inappropriate behavior is also allowed. Only such force as necessary to
defend one’s self, another person, or the child or to protect property is legally permitted. Excessive
force is prohibited.
Boundaries Reporting
When any staff member, parent, or student becomes aware of a staff member (or volunteer, guest,
vendor) having crossed the boundaries specified in this policy, or has a strong suspicion of
misconduct, he or she must report the suspicion to the Principal promptly. Reasonable suspicion
means something perceived in spite of inconclusive or slight evidence. It is based on facts that
would lead a reasonable person to believe the conduct occurred. Prompt reporting of observations
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falling into the unacceptable range of adult behavior with students is essential to protect students,
the staff member, any witnesses, and the school as a whole. Employees must also report to the
administration any awareness of, or concern about, student behavior that crosses boundaries, or any
situation in which a student appears to be at risk for sexual abuse.
Child Abuse / Sexual Abuse Reporting (Mandatory Reporting)
If, within your professional capacity or within the scope of your employment, you observe or gain
possession of knowledge that a child has been a victim of child abuse or sexual abuse, or you reasonably
suspect it, California Penal Code Section 11166 requires YOU to immediately report this

information or suspicion directly to a child protective agency or the police. The report shall
be made by phone as soon as possible and a subsequent written report must be sent within 36
hours of your knowledge or suspicion of the abuse. Internal reporting to the Principal occurs after
the phone-in report. Failure to meet these obligations can result in a monetary fine and/or jail.
Investigating
The Principal will promptly investigate and document the investigation of any allegation of sexual
misconduct or inappropriate behavior, using such support staff or outside assistance, as he or she
deems necessary and appropriate under the circumstances. Throughout this fact-finding process, the
investigating administrator, and all others privy to the investigation, shall protect the privacy
interests of any affected student(s) and/or staff member(s) including any potential witnesses, as
much as possible. The investigating administrator shall promptly notify the Governing Board in
closed session of the existence and status of any investigations. Upon completion of any such
investigations, the Principal shall report to the Governing Board any conclusions reached. The
investigating administrator shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, prior to, during, and
after conducting any investigation.
Consequences
Staff members who have violated this policy will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, and
where appropriate, will be reported to authorities for potential legal action.
In accordance with California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Section 80303, Crete Academy will
report any teacher misconduct to the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing.
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Social Media
Because communications to the public that undermine confidence in individual Crete Academy
staff members may make it more difficult to manage and motivate students, faculty should not use
blogs, web pages or social networking sites to present information about themselves, colleagues
or students that may undercut the reputation of Crete Academy or that may open anyone associated
with Crete Academy Schools to criticism. Pictures or descriptions of conduct that would subject a
teacher to school discipline could be detrimental to that teacher’s status as an educator and could
negatively impact the academic process of Crete Academy.
Staff members should also consider carefully the impact on Crete Academy of information
presented on a personal blog, website, or social networking site. Although maintaining the
blog/website is private conduct, information connecting the writer with Crete Academy may
impact on the writer’s own status among colleagues, may be hurtful to colleagues, may be
misconstrued by parents, and may become a subject of gossip among students. To the extent that
such “blogging” or use of a web site or social networking site impairs a staff member’s ability to
command respect among colleagues, students and parents it interferes with Crete Academy’s
educational mission and must be avoided. Violation of any of these guidelines may result in instant
dismissal.
Professional Appearance
In order to model professionalism for our students, staff members are expected to present a neat,
professional appearance at all times. The following are generally regarded as inappropriate dress
while school is in session: athletic wear, spandex or leggings, flip flops, tank tops/midriff
tops/halter tops, or mini-skirts. The SL may notify staff members in advance of a casual dress day.
There will also be a weekly college day designated by the SL. On college day staff are encouraged
to wear casual pants/jeans and shirts, sweatshirts and hats representing the college/university of
their choice. Wearing a Crete Academy shirt is always encouraged during any casual dress days.
Please note that some staff members may be required to wear closed-toed and rubber-soled shoes
at all times based upon the nature of work being done. Managers will have more specific
information as this applies to staff members.
CRETE ACADEMY NEPOTISM POLICY
Crete Academy permits the employment of relatives of employees, of the employee's household or
immediate family as long as such employment does not, in the opinion of Crete Academy, create
actual conflicts of interest. For purposes of this policy, "qualified relative" is defined as a spouse,
child, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, uncle, first cousin, corresponding in-law, "step"
relation, or any member of the employee's household. Crete will use sound judgment in the placement
of related employees in accordance with the following guidelines: Individuals who are related by
blood, marriage, or reside in the same household are permitted to work in the same department,
provided no direct reporting or supervisor-to-subordinate relationship exists. That is, no employee is
permitted to work within "the chain of command" when one relative's work responsibilities, salary,
hours, career progress, benefits, or other terms and conditions of employment could be influenced by
the other relative. Employees who marry while employed, or become part of the same household are
treated in accordance with these guidelines. If in the opinion of Crete Academy, a conflict arises as a
result of the relationship, one of the employees may be transferred at the earliest practicable time. The
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS must approve any exceptions to this policy
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Media Inquiries
Crete Academy has designated spokespersons for dealing with the media. All media inquiries
regarding Crete Academy must be referred to the CEO and PRINCIPAL.
Health and Safety Policy
Crete Academy is committed to providing and maintaining a healthy and safe work environment
for all employees.
Employees are always required to know and comply with the School’s General Safety Rules and
to follow safe and healthy work practices. Employees are required to report immediately to the
SL/PRINCIPAL any potential health or safety hazards, and all injuries or accidents.
In compliance with Proposition 65, the School will inform employees of any known exposure to a
chemical known to cause cancer or reproductive toxicity.
Security Protocols
Crete Academy has developed guidelines to help maintain a secure workplace. Be aware of
unknown persons loitering in parking areas, walkways, entrances and exits and service areas.
Report any suspicious persons or activities to the SL/PRINCIPAL. Employee desk or office should
be secured at the end of the day. When an employee is called away from his or her work area for
an extended length of time, valuable or personal articles should not be left around a workstation
that may be accessible. The security of facilities as well as the welfare of employees depends upon
the alertness and sensitivity of every individual to potential security risks. Employees should
immediately notify the SL/PRINCIPAL when keys are missing or if security access codes or passes
have been breached.
Occupational Safety
Crete Academy is committed to the safety of its employees, vendors, contractors and the public
and to providing a clear safety goal for management.
The prevention of accidents is the responsibility of every School supervisor. It is also the duty of
all employees to accept and promote the established safety regulations and procedures. Every effort
will be made to provide adequate safety training. If an employee is ever in doubt how to perform
a job or task safely, assistance should be requested. Unsafe conditions must be reported
immediately.
It is the policy of the School that accident prevention shall be considered of primary importance
in all phases of operation and administration. Crete Academy’s management is required to provide
safe and healthy working conditions for all employees and to establish and require the use of safe
practices at all times.
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Failure to comply with or enforce School safety and health rules, practices and procedures could
result in disciplinary action up to and including possible termination.
Administering Medicine
Except as otherwise set forth in writing by a parent or guardian for emergencies during a field trip,
Crete Academy staff members must never give a student medicine of any sort. If a student becomes
ill, the student should be sent to the School’s office. If a student needs medication during school
hours, parents must submit a written request to the school staff indicating the type of medication,
dosage, and time of administration along with the medication in its original sealed container.
*Note: additional select staff members are trained in administering medicine.
Transportation of Students/Alumni
Staff members may occasionally be in a position to provide transportation for students. With the
exception of emergency situations or for medical need, students should never be transported
without prior written permission from a parent. Students should be transported directly to their
destination. Staff members must avoid unnecessary and/or inappropriate physical contact with
students while in vehicles. In the event of any incident in a staff member’s car while on Crete
Academy business, the staff member’s personal coverage will be the primary insurance. Crete
Academy insurance will serve solely as secondary insurance.
Field Lessons Permission Slips
All staff members must obtain a signed permission slip from a parent or guardian for any off-site
outing regardless of the number of students/alumni (under the age of 18) involved and the date/time
of the outing. This includes but is not limited to individual school off-site events and small group
outings like rewards trips. Permission slips should be kept on file for at least one year following
the field trip/event. All schools/programs must use the standard Crete Academy permission slip
for each and every field trip/event. (“Universal” or “blanket” permission slips or verbal consent is
not considered sufficient for student participation in a field lesson/event.). Staff members should
bring along a first aid kit on any group outing/event.
If a student/alum is going to stay at school later than 6:00 p.m. on a consistent basis, a signed
permission slip from a parent must be maintained on file in the school.
Crisis Management
Fights: Staff members are expected to use their best judgment to protect both students and
themselves should there be a student fight. Staff members should never use excessive force in
disarming conflicts.
Fire: If staff members notice smoke or a fire, the staff members will follow the protocol developed
for fire drills and evacuate the building in an orderly fashion. This protocol is distributed to all
staff members and is available from the School Operations Manager. The police and fire
department will be notified.
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Medical Emergencies: If at all possible, the staff member who is made aware of the medical
emergency will handle it or alert another staff member known to be qualified to handle it. In the
case of any medical emergency, the child’s parent, guardian, or emergency contact will be called
and, if need be, an ambulance will be called as soon as possible.
Emergency Closings
If the Los Angeles Unified School District public schools close due to bad weather, then Crete
Academy will also close. In the event that weather conditions become hazardous during the school
day, Crete Academy will follow the early dismissal policies of the Los Angeles Unified School
District.
Accident/Incident Reporting
It is the duty of every employee to immediately or as soon as is practical report any accident or
injury occurring during work or on School premises so that arrangements can be made for medical
or first aid treatment, as well as for investigation and follow-up purposes.
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EMPLOYEE WAGES AND HEALTH BENEFITS
Payroll Withholdings
As required by law, the School shall withhold Federal Income Tax, State Income Tax, Social
Security (FICA) and State Disability Insurance from each employee’s pay as follows:
1.

Federal Income Tax Withholding: The amount varies with the number of exemptions the
employee claims and the gross pay amount.

2.

State Income Tax Withholding: The same factors which apply to federal withholdings
apply to state withholdings.

3.

Social Security (FICA): The Federal Insurance Contribution Act requires that a certain
percentage of employee earnings be deducted and forwarded to the federal government,
together with an equal amount contributed by the School.

4.

State Disability Insurance (SDI): This state fund is used to provide benefits to those out
of work because of illness or disability.

Every deduction from an employee’s paycheck is explained on the check voucher. If an employee
does not understand the deductions, he or she should ask the SL/PRINCIPAL to explain them.
Employees may change the number of withholding allowances claimed for Federal Income Tax
purposes at any time by filling out a new W-4 form and submitting it to the SL/PRINCIPAL. The
office maintains a supply of these forms.
All Federal, State, and Social Security taxes will be automatically deducted from paychecks.
Federal Withholding Tax deduction is determined by the employee’s W-4 form. The W-4 form
should be completed upon hire and it is the employee’s responsibility to report any changes in
filing status to the SL/PRINCIPAL and to fill out a new W-4 form.
At the end of the calendar year, a “withholding statement” (W-2) will be prepared and forwarded
to each employee for use in connection with preparation of income tax returns. The W-2 shows
Social Security information, taxes withheld and total wages.
Overtime Pay
Whether an employee is exempt from or subject to overtime pay will be determined on a case- bycase basis and will be indicated in the employee’s job description. Generally, teachers and
administrators are exempt. Non-exempt employees may be required to work beyond the regularly
scheduled workday or workweek as necessary. Only actual hours worked in a given workday or
workweek can apply in calculating overtime for non-exempt employees. Crete Academy will
attempt to distribute overtime evenly and accommodate individual schedules. All overtime work
must be previously authorized by the SL/PRINCIPAL. Crete Academy provides compensation for
all overtime hours worked by non-exempt employees in accordance with state and federal law as
follows:
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For employees subject to overtime, all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours
in one workday or forty (40) hours in one workweek shall be treated as overtime.
Compensation for hours in excess of forty (40) for the workweek or in excess of
eight (8) and not more than twelve (12) for the workday, and for the first eight
(8) hours on the seventh consecutive day in one workweek, shall be paid at a
rate of one and one-half times the employee’s regular rate of pay. Compensation
for hours in excess of twelve (12) in one workday and an excess of eight (8) on
the seventh consecutive workday of the workweek shall be paid at double the
regular rate of pay.
Exempt employees may have to work hours beyond their normal schedules as work demands
require. No overtime compensation will be paid to these exempt employees.
Paydays
Paydays occur on a bi-monthly basis on the 10th and 25th day of each month, except when those
days fall on a holiday or a weekend, in which case the payday occurs on the prior workday. All
professional development days are treated as regular workdays. Direct deposit is mandatory as of
August 30, 2017. Upon initial employment with Crete Academy or when changing bank accounts
or direct deposit method, employees will receive a paper voucher check until the direct deposit
bank account is verified. Typically, the account is verified within one payroll cycle whereas the
employee will receive his or her first payment via paper voucher check.
Wage Attachments and Garnishments
Under normal circumstances, the School will not assist creditors in the collection of personal debts
from its employees. However, creditors may resort to certain legal procedures such as
garnishments, levies or judgments that require the School, by law, to withhold part of an
employee’s earnings in their favor.
Employees are strongly encouraged to avoid such wage attachments and garnishments. If the
School is presented a second garnishment request concerning an employee, the SL/PRINCIPAL
will discuss the situation with the employee.
Benefits
Crete Academy intends to provide all full-time employees with medical, dental and vision
insurance; however Crete Academy retains the right to terminate or amend such coverage at any
time. The eligibility requirements for the specific coverage, eligibility periods and benefits payable
under the plans offered by Crete Academy are described in insurance brochures, which may be
obtained from the Executive Director of Human Capital. Coverage may change from time to time.
Employees may be required to pay for coverage for themselves and/or their family members.
COBRA Benefits
When coverage under the School’s medical and/or dental plans ends, employees or their
dependents can continue coverage for eighteen (18) or thirty-six (36) months, depending upon
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the reason benefits ended. To continue coverage, an employee must pay the full cost of coverage
– the employee contribution and the School’s previous contribution plus a possible
administrative charge.
Medical coverage for an employee can continue for up to eighteen (18) months if coverage ends
because:
•

Employment ends, voluntarily or involuntarily, for any reason other than gross
misconduct; or

•

Hours of employment are reduced below the amount required to be considered a full-time
employee or part-time, making an employee ineligible for the plan.

This eighteen (18) month period may be extended an additional eleven (11) months in cases of
disability subject to certain requirements. This eighteen (18) month period may also be extended
an additional eighteen (18) months if other events (such as a divorce or death) occur subject to
certain requirements.
An employee’s spouse and eligible dependents can continue their health coverage for up to
thirty-six (36) months if coverage ends because:
•

The employee dies while covered by the plan;

•

The employee and his/her spouse become divorced or legally separated;

•

The employee becomes eligible for Medicare coverage, but his/her spouse has not yet
reach age sixty-five (65); or

•

The employee’s dependent child reaches an age which makes him or her ineligible for
coverage under the plan.

Rights similar to those described above may apply to retirees, spouses and dependents if the
employer commences a bankruptcy proceeding and those individuals lose coverage.
Crete Academy will notify employees or their dependents if coverage ends due to termination or a
reduction in work hours. If an employee becomes eligible for Medicare, divorced or legally
separated, die, or when a dependent child no longer meets the eligibility requirements, the
employee or a family member are responsible for notifying the School within thirty (30) days of
the event. Crete Academy will then notify the employee or his/her dependents of the employee’s
rights.
Health coverage continuation must be elected within sixty (60) days after receiving notice of the
end of coverage, or within sixty (60) days after the event causing the loss, whichever is later.
There are certain circumstances under which coverage will end automatically. This happens if:
•

Premiums for continued coverage are not paid within thirty (30) days of the due date;
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•

The employee (or his/her spouse or child) become covered under another group health plan
which does not contain any exclusion or limitation with respect to any pre-existing
condition the employee (or the employee’s spouse or child, as applicable) may have;

•

Crete Academy stops providing group health benefits;

•

The employee (or the employee’s spouse or child) become entitled to Medicare; or

•

The employee extended coverage for up to twenty-nine (29) months due to disability and
there has been a final determination that the employee is no longer disabled.

Retirement Benefits
Employees at additional Crete Academy schools will be given the option to participate in the
organization’s 403(b) program.
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PERSONNEL EVALUATION AND RECORD KEEPING
Employee Reviews and Evaluations
Each employee will receive periodic performance reviews conducted by the SL/PRINCIPAL.
Performance evaluations will be conducted annually. The frequency of performance evaluations
may vary depending upon length of service, job position, past performance, changes in job duties,
or recurring performance problems.
Performance evaluations may review factors such as the quality and quantity of the work
performed, knowledge of the job, initiative, work attitude, and attitude toward others. The
performance evaluations are intended to make employees aware of their progress, areas for
improvement, and objectives or goals for future work performance. Favorable performance
evaluations do not guarantee increases in salary or promotions. Salary increases and promotions
are solely within the discretion of the School and depend upon many factors in addition to
performance. After the review, an employee will be required to sign the evaluation report simply
to acknowledge that it has been presented to them, that they have discussed it with the
SL/PRINCIPAL, and that they are aware of its contents.
Newly hired employees may have their performance goals reviewed by the SL/PRINCIPAL within
the first ninety (90) days of employment.
Salary and potential for advancement will be based largely upon job performance. On a periodic
basis, the SL/PRINCIPAL will review employee job performance with an employee in order to
establish goals for future performance and to discuss your current performance. Crete Academy’s
evaluation system will in no way alter the at-will employment relationship.
Personnel Files and Record Keeping Protocols
At the time of employment, a personnel file is established for you. Please keep the SL/PRINCIPAL
advised of changes that should be reflected in your personnel file. Such changes include: change
in address, telephone number, marital status, number of dependents and person(s) to notify in case
of emergency. Prompt notification of these changes is essential and will enable the School to
contact you should the change affect your other records.
You have the right to inspect documents in your personnel file, as provided by law, in the presence
of a School representative, at a mutually convenient time. You also have the right to obtain a copy
of your personnel file as provided by law. You may add your comments to any disputed item in
the file. Crete Academy will restrict disclosure of your personnel file to authorized individuals
within the School. A request for information contained in the personnel file must be directed to the
SL/PRINCIPAL. Only the SL/PRINCIPAL or designee is authorized to release information about
current or former employees. Disclosure of information to outside sources will be limited.
However, the School will cooperate with requests from authorized law enforcement or local, state
or federal agencies conducting official investigations or as otherwise legally required.
Credible complaints of substantiated investigations into or discipline for egregious misconduct
will not be expunged from an employee’s personnel file unless the complaint is heard by an
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arbitrator, administrative law judge, or the Board and the complaint is deemed to be false, not
credible, unsubstantiated or a determination was made that discipline was not warranted.
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HOLIDAYS, VACATIONS AND LEAVES
Holidays
Staff members are paid on a twelve (12) month basis, although School-based employees, other
than School-based operations employees, only work during the school year. During the school
year, School-based staff members are only paid for days worked on days that the school is open
unless this policy specifically provides for paid time off. Please consult your School’s site calendar
for holidays, variations in breaks and intersessions during the school year.
Each school year, Crete Academy will be closed on the following days, which are paid holidays
for all Salaried Crete Academy employees:
• Labor Day
• Veterans’ Day
• Thanksgiving Break
• Winter Break
• Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
• Presidents’ Day
• Cesar Chavez Day
• Spring Break
• Memorial Day
Please note that the Crete Academy holiday calendar is subject to change annually. Salary Schoolbased staff members, with the exception of school-based operations employees, have no paid
vacation other than paid holidays and sick days. Employees who observe religious holidays not
listed above shall communicate the need for additional days off with his or her School Leader or
manager.
Unpaid Leave of Absence
Crete Academy recognizes that special situations may arise where an employee must leave his or
her job temporarily. At its discretion, the School may grant employees leaves of absence. Any
unpaid leave of absence must be approved in advance by the School.
The granting of a leave of absence always presumes the employee will return to active work by a
designated date or within a specific period.
During a Family and Medical Leave Act, California Family Rights Act leave, and/or Pregnancy
Disability Leave, the employee’s medical and dental benefits will remain in force, provided the
employee pays the appropriate premiums. Otherwise, benefits are terminated the month any other
type of leave begins. If an employee fails to return from a leave and is subsequently terminated,
the employee is entitled to all earned but unused vacation pay, provided that the vacation pay was
earned prior to the commencement of leave. No vacation time is accrued during any type of unpaid
leave of absence.
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PTO
Each employee at Crete is granted one Personal Time Off (PTO) day or an hourly equivalent, per calendar
year after the completion of three months of work. The PTO day must be requested in writing, using the
PTO Form, submitted to the employee’s supervisor no less than one business week before the requested
PTO date. If a salaried employee elects not to make use of the PTO day, they will receive a $250 stipend
at the end of the school year.
Hourly employees will be eligible for PTO after three months of employment. The PTO accrual rate will
be equivalent to the hourly employee’s normal rate. The PTO day must be requested in writing, using the
PTO Form, submitted to the employee’s supervisor no less than one business week before the requested
PTO date. If an hourly employee elects not to make use of the PTO day, they will receive a $250 stipend
at the end of the school year.
Sick Leave
To help prevent loss of earnings that may be caused by accident or illness, or by other emergencies,
Crete Academy offers paid sick leave to its employees. Sick leave may be taken to receive
preventive care (including annual physicals or flu shots) or to diagnose, treat, or care for an existing
health condition. Employees may also use sick leave to assist a family member (i.e., children,
parents, spouses/domestic partners, grandparents, grandchildren, siblings, or any individual related
by blood or affinity whose close association with the employee is the equivalent of a family
relationship) who must receive preventative care or a diagnosis, treatment, or care for an existing
health condition. Employees may also take paid sick leave to receive medical care or other
assistance to address instances of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
Paid sick leave is available to all School employees who work at least two (2) hours per week for
at least thirty (30) days within the span of a single calendar year from the commencement of
employment. All eligible full-time employees shall be credited with forty-eight (48) hours of sick
leave at the beginning of each work year. Part time employees credited with 24 hours of sick leave
at the beginning of each work year.
Sick leave must be taken by employees in increments of two (2) hours. All employees are limited
to using forty-eight (48) hours of sick leave each work year.
If employee is absent longer than three (3) days due to illness, medical evidence of employee’s
illness and/or medical certification of employee’s fitness to return to work satisfactory to the
School may be required. The School will not tolerate abuse or misuse of sick leave. If the School
suspects abuse of sick leave, the School may require a medical certification from an employee
verifying the employee’s absence.
Once an employee has exhausted sick leave, the employee may continue on an unpaid medical
leave depending upon the facts and circumstances of the employee’s basis for leave beyond
accrued sick leave. Employee requests for unpaid medical leave must be approved in advance by
the School.
Family Care and Medical Leave
This policy explains how the School complies with the federal Family and Medical Leave Act
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(“FMLA”) and the California Family Rights Act (“CFRA”), both of which require the School to
permit each eligible employee to take up to twelve (12) workweeks (or twenty-six (26) workweeks
where indicated) of FMLA leave in any twelve (12) month period for the purposes enumerated
below. For purposes of this policy, all leave taken under FMLA or CFRA will be referred to as
“FMLA leave.”
•

Employee Eligibility Criteria
To be eligible for FMLA leave, the employee must have been employed by the School
for a total of at least twelve (12) months, worked at least 1,250 hours during the twelve
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(12) month period immediately preceding commencement of the FMLA leave, and work
at a location where the School has at least fifty (50) employees within seventy-five (75)
miles.
•

Events That May Entitle an Employee To FMLA Leave
The twelve (12) week (or twenty-six (26) workweeks where indicated) FMLA allowance
includes any time taken (with or without pay) for any of the following reasons:
1.

To care for the employee’s newborn child or a child placed with the employee for
adoption or foster care. Leaves for this purpose must conclude twelve (12) months
after the birth, adoption, or placement. If both parents are employed by the School,
they will be entitled to a combined total of twelve (12) weeks of leave for this
purpose.

2.

Because of the employee’s own serious health condition (including a serious health
condition resulting from an on-the-job illness or injury) that makes the employee
unable to perform any one or more of the essential functions of his or her job (other
than a disability caused by pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions,
which is covered by the School’s separate pregnancy disability policy).
a. A “serious health condition” is an illness, injury (including, but not limited to,
on-the-job injuries), impairment, or physical or mental condition of the
employee or a child, parent, or spouse of the employee that involves either
inpatient care or continuing treatment, including, but not limited to, treatment
for substance abuse.
b. “Inpatient care” means a stay in a hospital, hospice, or residential health care
facility, any subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care, or any
period of incapacity. A person is considered an “inpatient” when a health care
facility formally admits him/her to the facility with the expectation that he/she
will remain at least overnight and occupy a bed, even if it later develops that
such person can be discharged or transferred to another facility and does not
actually remain overnight.
c. “Incapacity” means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular
daily activities due to a serious health condition, its treatment, or the recovery
that it requires.
d. “Continuing treatment” means ongoing medical treatment or supervision by a
health care provider.

3.

To care for a spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent with a serious health
condition or military service-related injury. When an employee is providing care to
a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin who is a covered Armed Forces
servicemember with a serious injury or illness, the employee may take a
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maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks of FMLA leave in a single twelve (12) month
period to provide said care.
4.

•

•

For any “qualifying exigency” because the employee is the spouse, son, daughter,
or parent of an individual on active military duty, or an individual notified of an
impending call or order to active duty, in the Armed Forces.

Amount of FMLA Leave Which May Be Taken
1.

FMLA leave can be taken in one (1) or more periods, but may not exceed twelve
(12) workweeks total for any purpose in any twelve (12) month period, as described
below, for anyone, or combination of the above-described situations. “Twelve
workweeks” means the equivalent of twelve (12) of the employee’s normally
scheduled workweeks. For a full-time employee who works five (5) eight-hour days
per week, “twelve workweeks” means sixty (60) working and/or paid eight (8) hour
days.

2.

In addition to the twelve (12) workweeks of FMLA leave that may be taken, an
employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of a covered
Armed Forces servicemember shall also be entitled to a total of twenty-six (26)
workweeks of FMLA leave during a twelve (12) month period to care for the
servicemember.

3.

The “twelve-month period” in which twelve (12) weeks of FMLA leave may be
taken is the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the commencement
of any FMLA leave.

4.

If a holiday falls within a week taken as FMLA leave, the week is nevertheless
counted as a week of FMLA leave. If, however, the School’s business activity has
temporarily ceased for some reason and employees are generally not expected to
report for work for one or more weeks, such as the Winter Break, Spring Break, or
Summer Vacation, the days the School’s activities have ceased do not count against
the employee’s FMLA leave entitlement. Similarly, if an employee uses FMLA
leave in increments of less than one (1) week, the fact that a holiday may occur
within a week in which an employee partially takes leave does not count against
the employee’s leave entitlement unless the employee was otherwise scheduled and
expected to work during the holiday.

Pay during FMLA Leave
1.

An employee on FMLA leave because of his/her own serious health condition must
use all accrued paid sick leave at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid FMLA
leave period. If an employee is receiving a partial wage replacement benefit during
the FMLA leave, the School and the employee may agree to have School-provided
paid leave, such as sick time, supplement the partial wage replacement benefit
unless otherwise prohibited by law.
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•

2.

An employee on FMLA leave for childcare or to care for a spouse, domestic partner,
parent, or child with a serious health condition may use any or all accrued sick leave
at the beginning of any otherwise unpaid FMLA leave.

3.

If an employee has exhausted his/her sick leave, leave taken under FMLA shall be
unpaid leave.

4.

The receipt of sick leave pay or State Disability Insurance benefits will not extend
the length of the FMLA leave. Sick pay accrues during any period of unpaid FMLA
leave only until the end of the month in which unpaid leave began.

5.

Employees who will be taking California Family Rights Act/baby-bonding leave
will receive two (2) workweeks (10 days) of forty-percent (40%) pay.

Health Benefits
The provisions of the School’s various employee benefit plans govern continuing
eligibility during FMLA leave, and these provisions may change from time to time. The
health benefits of employees on FMLA leave will be paid by the School during the leave
at the same level and under the same conditions as coverage would have been provided if
the employee had been continuously employed during the leave period. When a request for
FMLA leave is granted, the School will give the employee written confirmation of the
arrangements made for the payment of insurance premiums during the leave period.
If an employee is required to pay premiums for any part of his/her group health coverage,
the School will provide the employee with advance written notice of the terms and
conditions under which premium payments must be made.
Crete Academy may recover the health benefit costs paid on behalf of an employee during
his/her FMLA leave if:

•

1.

The employee fails to return from leave after the period of leave to which the
employee is entitled has expired. An employee is deemed to have “failed to return
from leave” if he/she works less than thirty (30) days after returning from FMLA
leave; and

2.

The employee’s failure to return from leave is for a reason other than the
continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition that entitles the
employee to FMLA leave, or other circumstances beyond the control of the
employee.

Seniority
An employee on FMLA leave remains an employee and the leave will not constitute a
break in service. An employee who returns from FMLA leave will return with the same
seniority he/she had when the leave commenced.

•

Medical Certifications
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•

3.

An employee requesting FMLA leave because of his/her own or a relative’s serious
health condition must provide medical certification from the appropriate health care
provider on a form supplied by the School. Absent extenuating circumstances,
failure to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within fifteen (15)
days of the School’s request for certification) may result in denial of the leave
request until such certification is provided.

4.

The School will notify the employee in writing if the certification is incomplete or
insufficient and will advise the employee what additional information is necessary
in order to make the certification complete and sufficient. The School may contact
the employee’s health care provider to authenticate a certification as needed.

3.

If the School has reason to doubt the medical certification supporting a leave
because of the employee’s own serious health condition, the School may request a
second opinion by a health care provider of its choice (paid for by the School). If
the second opinion differs from the first one, the School will pay for a third,
mutually agreeable, health care provider to provide a final and binding opinion.

4.

Recertifications are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time estimated
by the health care provider. Failure to submit required recertifications can result in
termination of the leave.

Procedures for Requesting and Scheduling FMLA Leave
1.

An employee should request FMLA leave by completing a Request for Leave form
and submitting it to the SL/PRINCIPAL. An employee asking for a Request for
Leave form will be given a copy of the School’s then-current FMLA leave policy.

2.

Employees should provide not less than thirty (30) days’ notice for foreseeable
childbirth, placement, or any planned medical treatment for the employee or his/her
spouse, domestic partner, child, or parent. Failure to provide such notice is grounds
for denial of a leave request, except if the need for FMLA leave was an emergency
or was otherwise unforeseeable.

3.

Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable
planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the School’s operations.

4.

If FMLA leave is taken because of the employee’s own serious health condition or
the serious health condition of the employee’s spouse, domestic partner, parent or
child, the leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule when
medically necessary, as determined by the health care provider of the person with
the serious health condition.

5.

If FMLA leave is taken because of the birth of the employee’s child or the
placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care, the minimum
duration of leave is two (2) weeks, except that the School will grant a request for
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FMLA leave for this purpose of at least one day but less than two (2) weeks’
duration on any two (2) occasions.

•

•

6.

If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that
is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment for the employee or a family
member, the employee may be transferred temporarily to an available alternative
position for which he or she is qualified that has equivalent pay and benefits and
that better accommodates recurring periods of leave than the employee’s regular
position.

7.

The School will respond to an FMLA leave request no later than five (5) business
days of receiving the request. If an FMLA leave request is granted, the School will
notify the employee in writing that the leave will be counted against the employee’s
FMLA leave entitlement. This notice will explain the employee’s obligations and
the consequences of failing to satisfy them.

Return to Work
1.

Upon timely return at the expiration of the FMLA leave period, an employee (other
than a “key” employee whose reinstatement would cause serious and grievous
injury to the School’s operations) is entitled to the same or a comparable position
with the same or similar duties and virtually identical pay, benefits, and other terms
and conditions of employment unless the same position and any comparable
position(s) have ceased to exist because of legitimate business reasons unrelated to
the employee’s FMLA leave.

2.

When a request for FMLA leave is granted to an employee (other than a “key”
employee), the School will give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement
at the termination of the leave (with the limitations explained above).

3.

Before an employee will be permitted to return from FMLA leave taken because of
his/her own serious health condition, the employee must obtain a certification from
his/her health care provider that he/she is able to resume work.

4.

If an employee can return to work with limitations, the School will evaluate those
limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employee as required by law. If
accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from
the School.

Limitations on Reinstatement
1.

Crete Academy may refuse to reinstate a “key” employee if the refusal is necessary
to prevent substantial and grievous injury to the School’s operations. A “key”
employee is an exempt salaried employee who is among the highest paid 10% of
the School’s employees within seventy-five (75) miles of the employee’s worksite.
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2.

•

A “key” employee will be advised in writing at the time of a request for, or if earlier,
at the time of commencement of, FMLA leave, that he/she qualifies as a “key”
employee and the potential consequences with respect to reinstatement and
maintenance of health benefits if the School determines that substantial and
grievous injury to the School’s operations will result if the employee is reinstated
from FMLA leave. At the time it determines that refusal is necessary, the School
will notify the “key” employee in writing (by certified mail) of its intent to refuse
reinstatement and will explain the basis for finding that the employee’s
reinstatement would cause the School to suffer substantial and grievous injury. If
the School realizes after the leave has commenced that refusal of reinstatement is
necessary, it will give the employee at least ten (10) days to return to work
following the notice of its intent to refuse reinstatement.

Employment during Leave
No employee, including employees on FMLA leave, may accept employment with any
other employer without the School’s written permission. An employee who accepts such
employment without the School’s written permission will be deemed to have resigned from
employment at the School.

Pregnancy Disability Leave
This policy explains how the School complies with the California Pregnancy Disability Act,
which requires the School to give each female employee an unpaid leave of absence of up to four
(4) months per pregnancy, as needed, for the period(s) of time a woman is actually disabled by
pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions.
•

Employee Eligibility Criteria
To be eligible for pregnancy disability leave, the employee must be disabled by pregnancy,
childbirth, or a related medical condition and must provide appropriate medical
certification concerning the disability.

•

Events That May Entitle an Employee to Pregnancy Disability Leave
The four (4) -month pregnancy disability leave allowance includes any time taken (with or
without pay) for any of the following reasons:

•

1.

The employee is unable to work at all or is unable to perform any one or more of
the essential functions of her job without undue risk to herself, the successful
completion of her pregnancy, or to other persons because of pregnancy or
childbirth, or because of any medically recognized physical or mental condition that
is related to pregnancy or childbirth (including severe morning sickness); or

2.

The employee needs to take time off for prenatal care.

Duration of Pregnancy Disability Leave
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Pregnancy disability leave may be taken in one or more periods, but not to exceed four
months total. “Four months” means the number of days the employee would normally work
within four months. For a full-time employee who works five (5) eight (8) hour days per
week, four (4) months means 693 hours of leave (40 hours per week times 17 1/3 weeks).
For employees who work more or less than forty (40) hours per week, or who work on
variable work schedules, the number of working days that constitutes four (4) months is
calculated on a pro rata or proportional basis. For example, for an employee who works
twenty (20) hours per week, “four months” means 346.5 hours of leave entitlement (20
hours per week times 17 1/3 weeks). For an employee who normally works forty-eight
(48) hours per week, “four months” means 832 hours of leave entitlement (48 hours per
week times 17 1/3 weeks).
At the end or depletion of an employee’s pregnancy disability leave, an employee who has
a physical or mental disability (which may or may not be due to pregnancy, childbirth, or
related medical conditions) may be entitled to reasonable accommodation. Entitlement to
additional leave must be determined on a case-by case basis, taking into account a number
of considerations such as whether an extended leave is likely to be effective in allowing the
employee to return to work at the end of the leave, with or without further reasonable
accommodation, and whether or not additional leave would create an undue hardship for
the School. The School is not required to provide an indefinite leave of absence as a
reasonable accommodation.
•

•

Pay during Pregnancy Disability Leave
1.

An employee on pregnancy disability leave must use all accrued paid sick leave at
the beginning of any otherwise unpaid leave period.

2.

Following the exhaustion of sick leave, employees shall receive up to six (6)
weeks of fifty percent (50%) pay.

3.

The receipt of pay, or state disability insurance benefits, will not extend the length
of pregnancy disability leave.

4.

Sick leave accrues during any period of unpaid pregnancy disability leave only
until the end of the month in which the unpaid leave began.

Health Benefits
Crete Academy shall provide continued health insurance coverage while an employee is
on pregnancy disability leave consistent with applicable law. The continuation of health
benefits is for a maximum of four (4) months in a twelve (12)-month period. Crete
Academy can recover premiums that it already paid on behalf of an employee if both of
the following conditions are met:
1.

The employee fails to return from leave after the designated leave period expires.
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2.

•

The employee’s failure to return from leave is for a reason other than the following:
•

The employee is taking leave under the California Family Rights Act.

•

There is a continuation, recurrence or onset of a health condition that entitles
the employee to pregnancy disability leave.

•

There is a non-pregnancy related medical condition requiring further leave.

•

Any other circumstance beyond the control of the employee.

Seniority
An employee on pregnancy disability leave remains an employee of the School and a leave
will not constitute a break in service. When an employee returns from pregnancy disability
leave, she will return with the same seniority she had when the leave commenced.

•

•

Medical Certifications
1.

An employee requesting a pregnancy disability leave must provide medical
certification from her healthcare provider on a form supplied by the School. Failure
to provide the required certification in a timely manner (within fifteen (15) days of
the leave request) may result in a denial of the leave request until such certification
is provided.

2.

Recertifications are required if leave is sought after expiration of the time estimated
by the healthcare provider. Failure to submit required recertifications can result in
termination of the leave.

Requesting and Scheduling Pregnancy Disability Leave
1.

An employee should request pregnancy disability leave by completing a Request
for Leave form and submitting it to the SL/PRINCIPAL. An employee asking for a
Request for Leave form will be referred to the School’s then current pregnancy
disability leave policy.

2.

Employee should provide not less than thirty (30) days’ notice or as soon as is
practicable, if the need for the leave is foreseeable. Failure to provide such notice
is grounds for denial of the leave request, except if the need for pregnancy disability
leave was an emergency and was otherwise unforeseeable.

3.

Where possible, employees must make a reasonable effort to schedule foreseeable
planned medical treatments so as not to unduly disrupt the School’s operations.
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•

4.

Pregnancy disability leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced leave
schedule when medically advisable, as determined by the employee’s healthcare
provider.

5.

If an employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced leave schedule that
is foreseeable based on planned medical treatment, the employee may be
transferred temporarily to an available alternative position for which he or she is
qualified that has equivalent pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring
periods of leave than the employee’s regular position.

6.

The School will respond to a pregnancy disability leave request within ten (10) days
of receiving the request. If a pregnancy disability leave request is granted, the
School will notify the employee in writing and leave will be counted against the
employee’s pregnancy disability leave entitlement. This notice will explain the
employee’s obligations and the consequences of failing to satisfy them.

Return to Work
1.

Upon timely return at the expiration of the pregnancy disability leave period, an
employee is entitled to the same position unless the employee would not otherwise
have been employed in the same position at the time reinstatement is requested. If
the employee is not reinstated to the same position, she must be reinstated to a
comparable position unless one of the following is applicable:
a. The employer would not have offered a comparable position to the employee if
she would have been continuously at work during the pregnancy disability
leave.
b. There is no comparable position available, to which the employee is either
qualified or entitled, on the employee’s scheduled date of reinstatement or
within sixty (60) calendar days thereafter. The School will take reasonable steps
to provide notice to the employee if and when comparable positions become
available during the sixty (60) day period.
A “comparable” position is a position that involves the same or similar duties
and responsibilities and is virtually identical to the employee’s original position
in terms of pay, benefits, and working conditions.

2.

When a request for pregnancy disability leave is granted to an employee, the School
will give the employee a written guarantee of reinstatement at the end of the leave
(with the limitations explained above).

3.

In accordance with Crete Academy policy, before an employee will be permitted
to return from a pregnancy disability leave of three (3) days or more, the employee
must obtain a certification from her healthcare provider that she is able to resume
work.
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4.

•

If the employee can return to work with limitations, the School will evaluate those
limitations and, if possible, will accommodate the employee as required by law. If
accommodation cannot be made, the employee will be medically separated from
the School.

Employment during Leave
No employee, including employees on pregnancy disability leave, may accept employment
with any other employer without the School’s written permission. An employee who
accepts such employment without written permission will be deemed to have resigned from
employment.

Industrial Injury Leave (Workers’ Compensation)
Crete Academy, in accordance with State law, provides insurance coverage for employees in case
of work-related injuries. The workers’ compensation benefits provided to injured employees may
include:
•

Medical care;

•

Cash benefits, tax-free to replace lost wages; and

•

Vocational rehabilitation to help qualified injured employees return to suitable
employment.

To ensure you receive any worker’s compensation benefits to which you may be entitled, you
will need to:
•

Immediately report any work-related injury to the SL/PRINCIPAL;

•

Seek medical treatment and follow-up care if required;

•

Complete a written Employee’s Claim Form (DWC Form 1) and return it to the
SL/PRINCIPAL; and

•

Provide the School with a certification from your health care provider regarding the need
for workers’ compensation disability leave as well as your eventual ability to return to work
from the leave.

It is the School’s policy that when there is a job-related injury, the first priority is to ensure that the
injured employee receives appropriate medical attention. Crete Academy, with the help of its
insurance carrier has selected medical centers to meet this need. Each medical center was selected
for its ability to meet anticipated needs with high quality medical service and a location that is
convenient to the School’s operation.
•

If an employee is injured on the job, he/she is to go or be taken to the approved medical
center for treatment. If injuries are such that they require the use of emergency medical
systems (“EMS”) such as an ambulance, the choice by the EMS personnel for the most
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appropriate medical center or hospital for treatment will be recognized as an approved
center.
•

All accidents and injuries must be reported to the SL/PRINCIPAL and to the individual
responsible for reporting to the School’s insurance carrier. Failure by an employee to report
a work-related injury by the end of his/her shift could result in loss of insurance coverage
for the employee. An employee may choose to be treated by his/her personal physician at
his/her own expense, but he/she is still required to go to the School’s approved medical
center for evaluation. All job-related injuries must be reported to the appropriate State
Workers’ Compensation Bureau and the insurance carrier.

•

When there is a job-related injury that results in lost time, the employee must have a
medical release from the School’s approved medical facility before returning to work.

•

Any time there is a job-related injury, the School’s policy requires drug/alcohol testing
along with any medical treatment provided to the employee.

Military and Military Spousal Leave of Absence
Crete Academy shall grant a military leave of absence to any employee who must be absent from
work due to service in the uniformed services in accordance with the Uniformed Services
Employment and Re-Employment Rights Act of 1994 (“USERRA”). All employees requesting
military leave must provide advance written notice of the need for such leave, unless prevented
from doing so by military necessity or if providing notice would be impossible or unreasonable.
If military leave is for thirty (30) or fewer days, the School shall continue the employee’s health
benefits. For service of more than thirty (30) days, employee shall be permitted to continue their
health benefits at their option through COBRA. Employees are entitled to use accrued vacation or
paid time off as wage replacement during time served, provided such vacation/paid time off
accrued prior to the leave.
Except for employees serving in the National Guard, Crete Academy will reinstate those
employees returning from military leave to their same position or one of comparable seniority,
status, and pay if they have a certificate of satisfactory completion of service and apply within
ninety (90) days after release from active duty or within such extended period, if any, as required
by law. For those employees serving in the National Guard, if he or she left a full-time position,
the employee must apply for reemployment within forty (40) days of being released from active
duty, and if he or she left part-time employment, the employee must apply for reemployment
within five (5) days of being released from active duty.
An employee who was absent from work while fulfilling his or her covered service obligation
under the USERRA or California law shall be credited, upon his or her return to the School, with
the hours of service that would have been performed but for the period of absence from work due
to or necessitated by USERRA-covered service. Exceptions to this policy will occur wherever
necessary to comply with applicable laws.
Crete Academy shall grant up to ten (10) days of unpaid leave to employees who work more than
twenty (20) hours per week and who are spouses of deployed military servicemen and
Employee Handbook

Page 53 of 56

servicewomen. The leave may be taken when the military spouse is on leave from deployment
during a time of military conflict. To be eligible for leave, an employee must provide the School
with (1) notice of intention to take military spousal leave within two (2) business days of receiving
official notice that the employee’s military spouse will be on leave from deployment, and (2)
documentation certifying that the employee’s military spouse will be on leave from deployment
during the time that the employee requests leave.
Bereavement Leave
Staff members are entitled to up to five (5) days unpaid leave in the event of the death of an
immediate family member. For the purposes of this policy only, immediate family member shall
include a spouse, child, parent or sibling. A staff member who wishes to take bereavement leave
should notify his or her SL/PRINCIPAL immediately.
Jury Duty or Witness Leave
Crete Academy encourages staff members to fulfill their civic responsibilities by performing jury
duty when required. If a staff member is called to serve for jury duty, s/he must bring his or her
notice to the SL/SOM immediately upon receipt of the notice. Depending on the operational needs
of the School, Crete Academy may request that staff members attempt to reschedule or be excused
from jury duty.
For all exempt employees, the School will pay for time off if an employee is called to serve on a
jury provided the employee continues to perform work duties as assigned. For all non-exempt
employees, the School will pay for up to three (3) days if you are called to serve on a jury.
Staff members are expected to report to work whenever the court schedule permits, such as if they
are released early from jury duty on any day(s). Crete Academy will continue to provide health
insurance for the full term of the jury duty absence while the staff member remains employed by
Crete Academy. Staff members will not be terminated or penalized for an absence due to jury duty
and staff members also may accept any fees paid to jurors by the court.
Voting Time Off
If an employee does not have sufficient time outside of working hours to vote in an official statesanctioned election, the employee may take off enough working time to vote. Such time off shall
be taken at the beginning or the end of the regular working shift, whichever allows for more free
time and the time taken off shall be combined with the voting time available outside of working
hours to a maximum of two (2) hours combined. Under these circumstances, an employee will be
allowed a maximum of two (2) hours of time off during an election day without loss of pay. When
possible, an employee requesting time off to vote shall give the SL/PRINCIPAL at least two (2)
days' notice.
School Appearance and Activities Leave
As required by law, Crete Academy will permit an employee who is a parent or guardian (including
a stepparent, foster parent, or grandparent) of school children, from kindergarten through grade
twelve (12), or a child enrolled with a licensed child care provider, up to forty (40)
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hours of unpaid time off per child per school year (up to eight (8) hours in any calendar month of
the school year) to participate in activities of a child’s school or childcare. If more than one (1)
parent or guardian is an employee of Crete Academy, the employee that first provides the leave
request will be given the requested time off. Where necessary, additional time off will also be
permitted where the school requires the employee(s) appearance.
The employee requesting school leave must provide reasonable advanced notice of the planned
absence. The employee must use accrued but unused paid leave (e.g., vacation or sick leave) to be
paid during the absence.
When requesting time off for school activities, the employee must provide verification of
participation in an activity as soon as practicable. When requesting time off for a required
appearance, the employee(s) must provide a copy of the notice from the child’s school requesting
the presence of the employee.
Bone Marrow and Organ Donor Leave
As required by law, eligible employees who require time off to donate bone marrow to another
person may receive up to five (5) workdays off in a 12-month period. Eligible employees who
require time off to donate an organ to another person may receive up to thirty (30) workdays off
in a twelve (12) month period.
To be eligible for bone marrow or organ donation leave (“Donor Leave”), the employee must have
been employed by the School for at least ninety (90) days immediately preceding the Donor Leave.
An employee requesting Donor Leave must provide written verification to the School that he or
she is a donor and that there is a medical necessity for the donation of the organ or bone marrow.
An employee must first use five (5) days of accrued paid leave for bone marrow donation and two
(2) weeks of accrued paid leave for organ donation. If the employee has an insufficient number of
paid leave days available, the leave will otherwise be paid.
Employees returning from Donor Leave will be reinstated to the position held before the leave
began, or to a position with equivalent status, benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of
employment. The School may refuse to reinstate an employee if the reason is unrelated to taking a
Donor Leave. A Donor Leave is not permitted to be taken concurrently with an FMLA/CFRA
Leave.
Victims of Abuse Leave
Crete Academy provides reasonable and necessary unpaid leave and other reasonable
accommodations to employees who are victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
Such leave may be taken to attend legal proceedings or to obtain or attempt to obtain any relief
necessary, including a restraining order, to ensure the employee’s own health, safety or welfare,
or that of the employee’s child or children. Employees may also request unpaid leave for the
following purposes:
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•
•
•
•

Seek medical attention for injuries caused by domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.
Obtain services from a domestic violence shelter, program, or rape crisis center.
Obtain psychological counseling for the domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking.
Participate in safety planning, such as relocation, to protect against future domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.

To request leave under this policy, an employee should provide Crete Academy with as much
advance notice as practicable under the circumstances. If advance notice is not possible, the
employee requesting leave under this policy should provide Crete Academy one (1) of the
following certifications upon returning back to work:
1. A police report indicating that the employee was a victim of domestic violence, sexual
assault, or stalking.
2. A court order protecting the employee from the perpetrator or other evidence from the
court or prosecuting attorney that the employee appeared in court.
3. Documentation from a licensed medical professional, domestic violence or sexual assault
counselor, licensed health care provider, or counselor showing that the employee’s absence
was due to treatment for injuries or abuse from domestic violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.
Employees requesting leave under this policy may choose to use accrued paid leave. In addition,
Crete Academy will provide reasonable accommodations to employees who are victims of
domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking for the employees’ safety while at work. To request
an accommodation under this policy, an employee should contact the SL/PRINCIPAL.
Returning from Leave of Absence
Employees cannot return from a medical leave of absence without first providing a sufficient
doctor’s return to work authorization.
When business considerations require, the job of an employee on leave may be filled by a
temporary or regular replacement. An employee should give the SL/PRINCIPAL thirty (30) days’
notice before returning from leave. Whenever the School is notified of an employee’s intent to
return from a leave, the School will attempt to place the employee in his former position or in a
comparable position with regard to salary and other terms and conditions for which the employee
is qualified. However, re-employment cannot always be guaranteed. If you need further
information regarding Leaves of Absence, be sure to consult the SL/PRINCIPAL.
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DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT
Rules of Conduct
The following conduct is prohibited and will not be tolerated by the School. This list of prohibited
conduct is illustrative only and applies to all employees of the School; other types of conduct that
threaten security, personal safety, employee welfare and the School’s operations also may be
prohibited. Further, the specification of this list of conduct in no way alters the at- will employment
relationship as to at-will employees of the School. If an employee is working under a contract with
the School which grants procedural rights prior to termination, the procedural terms in the contract
shall apply.
1.
2.
3.
4.

5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

Insubordination - refusing to perform a task or duty assigned or act in accordance with
instructions provided by an employee’s manager or proper authority.
Inefficiency - including deliberate restriction of output, carelessness or unnecessary
wastes of time or material, neglect of job, duties or responsibilities.
Negligence or improper conduct leading to damage of Crete Academy property.
Unauthorized soliciting, collecting of contributions, distribution of literature, written or
printed matter is strictly prohibited on School property by non-employees and by
employees. This rule does not cover periods of time when employees are off their jobs,
such as lunch periods and break times. However, employees properly off their jobs are
prohibited from such activity with other employees who are performing their work tasks.
Damaging, defacing, unauthorized removal, destruction or theft of another employee’s
property or of School property.
Fighting or instigating a fight or threatening violence on School premises.
Violations of the drug and alcohol policy.
Using or possessing firearms, weapons or explosives of any kind on School premises.
Gambling on School premises.
Tampering with or falsifying any report or record including, but not limited to, personnel,
absentee, sickness or production reports or records, specifically including applications for
employment and timecards.
Recording the clock card, when applicable, of another employee or permitting or
arranging for another employee to record your clock card.
Unauthorized use of telephones, mail system or other Crete Academy equipment.
Use of profane, abusive or threatening language in conversations with other employees
and/or intimidating or interfering with other employees.
Conducting personal business during business hours and/or unauthorized use of telephone
lines for personal calls.
Excessive absenteeism or tardiness excused or unexcused.
Posting any notices on School premises without prior written approval of management,
unless posting is on a School bulletin board designated for employee postings.
Immoral or indecent conduct.
Conviction of a criminal act.
Engaging in commercial activity, including outside employment, that conflicts with the
interests of Crete Academy.
Engaging in sabotage or espionage (industrial or otherwise)
Violations of the sexual harassment policy.
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22. Failure to report a job-related accident to the employee’s manager or failure to take or
follow prescribed tests, procedures or treatment.
23. Violation of safety or health rules
24. Smoking in prohibited areas.
25. Sleeping during work hours.
26. Release of confidential information without authorization.
27. Any other conduct detrimental to other employees or the School’s interests or its efficient
operations.
28. Refusal to speak to supervisors or other employees.
29. Dishonesty.
30. Failure to possess or maintain the credential/certificate required of the position.
For employees who possess an employment contract which provides for other than at-will
employment, the procedures and process for termination during the contract shall be specified in
the contract.
Off-Duty Conduct
While the School does not seek to interfere with the off-duty and personal conduct of its
employees, certain types of off-duty conduct may interfere with the School legitimate business
interests. For this reason, employees are expected to conduct their personal affairs in a manner that
does not adversely affect the School or its own integrity, reputation, or credibility. Illegal or
immoral off-duty conduct by an employee that adversely affects the School’s legitimate business
interests or the employee’s ability to perform his or her work will not be tolerated.
While employed by the School, employees are expected to devote their energies to their jobs with
the School. For this reason, second jobs are strongly discouraged. The following types of additional
employment elsewhere are strictly prohibited:
•

Additional employment that conflicts with an employee’s work schedule, duties, and
responsibilities at our School.

•

Additional employment that creates a conflict of interest or is incompatible with the
employee’s position with our School.

•

Additional employment that impairs or has a detrimental effect on the employee’s work
performance with our School.

•

Additional employment that requires the employee to conduct work or related activities on
the School’s property during the employer’s working hours or using our School’s facilities
and/or equipment; and

•

Additional employment that directly or indirectly competes with the business or the
interests of our School.

Employees who wish to engage in additional employment that may create a real or apparent
conflict of interest must submit a written request to the School explaining the details of the
additional employment. If the additional employment is authorized, the School assumes no
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responsibility for it. Crete Academy shall not provide workers’ compensation coverage or any
other benefit for injuries occurring from or arising out of additional employment. Authorization to
engage in additional employment can be revoked at any time.
Termination of Employment
Should it become necessary for you to terminate your at-will employment with the School, please
notify the SL/PRINCIPAL regarding your intention as far in advance as possible. At least two (2)
weeks’ notice is expected whenever possible.
When you terminate your at-will employment, you will be entitled to all earned but unused
vacation pay. If you are participating in the medical and/or dental plan, you will be provided
information on your rights under COBRA.
Employment References
All outside inquiries regarding employment references for current or former Crete Academy staff
members must be directed to the SL or SOM. Staff members are strictly prohibited from
responding to such inquiries.
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INTERNAL COMPLAINT REVIEW
The purpose of the “Internal Complaint Review Policy” is to afford all employees of the School
the opportunity to seek internal resolution of their work-related concerns. All employees have free
access to the SL/PRINCIPAL or Board of Directors to express their work-related concerns.
Specific complaints of unlawful harassment, discrimination, and retaliation are addressed under
the School’s “Policy Prohibiting Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation.”
This policy is not applicable to discipline issues involving employees.
Internal Complaints
(Complaints by Employees Against Employees)
This section of the policy is for use when a School employee raises a complaint or concern about
a co-worker.
If reasonably possible, internal complaints should be resolved at the lowest possible level,
including attempts to discuss/resolve concerns with the immediate supervisor. However, in the
event an informal resolution may not be achieved or is not appropriate, the following steps will be
followed by the SL/PRINCIPAL or designee:
1.

The complainant will bring the matter to the attention of the SL/PRINCIPAL as soon as
possible after attempts to resolve the complaint with the immediate supervisor have failed
or if not appropriate; and

2.

The complainant will reduce his or her complaint to writing, indicating all known and
relevant facts. The SL/PRINCIPAL or designee will then investigate the facts and provide
a solution or explanation;

3.

If the complaint is about the SL/PRINCIPAL, the complainant may file his or her complaint
in a signed writing to the President of the School’s Board of Directors, who will then confer
with the Board and may conduct a fact-finding or authorize a third party investigator on
behalf of the Board. The Board President or investigator will report his or her findings to
the Board for review and action, if necessary.

This policy cannot guarantee that every problem will be resolved to the employee’s satisfaction.
However, the School values each employee’s ability to express concerns and the need for
resolution without fear of adverse consequence to employment.
Policy for Complaints Against Employees
(Complaints by Third Parties Against Employees)
This section of the policy is for use when a non-employee raises a complaint or concern about a
School employee.
If complaints cannot be resolved informally, complainants may file a written complaint with the
office of the SL/PRINCIPAL or Board President (if the complaint concerns the SL/PRINCIPAL) as
soon as
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possible after the events that give rise to the complainant’s concerns. The written complaint
should set forth in detail the factual basis for the complaint.
In processing the complaint, SL/PRINCIPAL (or designee) shall abide by the following process:
1.

The SL/PRINCIPAL or designee shall use his or her best efforts to talk with the parties
identified in the complaint and to ascertain the facts relating to the complaint.

2.

In the event that the SL/PRINCIPAL (or designee) finds that a complaint against an
employee is valid, the SL/PRINCIPAL (or designee) may take appropriate disciplinary
action against the employee. As appropriate, the SL/PRINCIPAL (or designee) may also
simply counsel/reprimand employees as to their conduct without initiating formal
disciplinary measures.

3.

The SL/PRINCIPAL’s (or designee’s) decision relating to the complaint shall be final
unless it is appealed to the Board of Directors. The decision of the Board shall be final.

General Requirements
1.

Confidentiality: All complainants will be notified that information obtained from the
complainants and thereafter gathered will be maintained in a manner as confidential as
possible, but in some circumstances absolute confidentiality cannot be assured.

2.

Non-Retaliation: All complainants will be advised that they will be protected against
retaliation as a result of the filing of any complaints or participation in any complaint
process.

3.

Resolution: The Board (if a complaint is about the SL/PRINCIPAL) or the SL/PRINCIPAL
or designee will investigate complaints appropriately under the circumstances and pursuant
to the applicable procedures, and if necessary, take appropriate remedial measures to
ensure effective resolution of any complaint.
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AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK
This Employee Handbook contains the employment policies and practices of the School in effect
at the time of publication.
Crete Academy reserves the right to amend, delete or otherwise modify this Handbook at any
time provided that such modifications are in writing and duly approved by the employer.
Any written changes to the Handbook will be distributed to all employees. No oral statements
can in any way alter the provisions of this Handbook.
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CRETE ACADEMY
TEMPORARY TELEWORK POLICY
TO ADDRESS COVID-19 REMOTE WORKING CONDITIONS
Purpose
Crete Academy (the “School”) recognizes approved teleworking as a necessary work arrangement while the
School is closed during the ongoing coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic. This policy details conditions
and requirements which apply to all temporary telework assignments during the School’s closure due to
COVID-19.
Definition
Teleworking allows employees to work at home or in an approved remote location for all or part of their
regular workweek. Teleworking is not an entitlement, nor is it a school-wide benefit. This temporary
arrangement in no way alters or changes the terms and conditions of employment with the School, and the
promulgation of this Policy creates no employee rights in relation to teleworking. Furthermore, the School
has the right to refuse to make telework available to an employee and to terminate a telework assignment
without cause at any time in its sole and unreviewable discretion.
General Requirements
Employees shall not telework unless they receive advance written approval from the School. Employees
shall make arrangements with their supervisor and co-workers to address on-site job demands that arise,
including returning to the work site to perform certain job duties as needed or as directed by their supervisor.
Employees shall be responsible for following all School policies and procedures when teleworking.
Employees shall also be solely responsible for the performance of their telework duties; assistance from
third parties is strictly prohibited.
Nonexempt employees will be required to (1) record all hours worked as assigned by the School and (2) take
and document applicable meal/rest periods. Nonexempt employees must also receive written approval from
a supervisor prior to working additional hours or overtime. Failure to comply with timekeeping and work
hours requirements may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination from employment.

Eligibility Considerations
Consideration will be given to employees who work in positions adaptable for telework assignments,
particularly those who have demonstrated work habits and performance well-suited to successful
teleworking. In the sole discretion of the School and its management, the following eligibility factors will
be considered:
•
•

The employee has a position where effective communication can be accommodated electronically;
The employee’s telework assignment will not be detrimental to the productivity or work quality of
other employees or the effective operation of the School;
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The employee must be able to perform work from home or an approved remote location without
distractions or unnecessary risk to the security of School data, records, networks, or confidentiality
generally;
The employee’s equipment and software must meet the School’s guidelines/standards, and the
employee’s needs for Information Technology (“IT”) support must be minimal;
Telework sites must be in California;
The employee must be effective at working independently for extended periods of time;
The employee has demonstrated or can demonstrate effective time-management skills by completing
tasks efficiently and within any required deadlines;
The employee must maintain connections with work groups or teams from their remote work
location; and
The employee has no recent or pending corrective or disciplinary actions.

Supervisor Responsibilities
Supervisors managing employees who have been permitted to telework must effectively:
•
•
•
•

Implement the telework policy/guidelines;
Conduct remote supervision;
Understand the technology and tools necessary for successful remote supervision; and
Establish communication protocols with telework employees, including making continued efforts to
involve teleworking employees in office/department events, messages, etc. as applicable to preserve
teamwork.

Supervisors will assess each employee’s progress on a telework assignment periodically to ensure the
employee’s compliance with telework requirements, and address any work-related issues, including
completing evaluations and other performance management as appropriate.
Communication and Accessibility
Employees and supervisors must determine how communication between the teleworking employee, the
worksite, and/or other employees also teleworking will be handled. Employees shall keep their supervisor
and as needed, their co-workers or other School stakeholders (e.g., students and/or parents), informed of
their availability so these individuals know how and when to reach the employee during the employee’s
telework assignment. Employees must be accessible by phone and email at all times to their supervisor, coworkers, School stakeholders, and the School generally during assigned work hours. Employees must notify
their supervisors if they leave their telework site during agreed upon hours, aside from applicable meal and
rest periods. Employees must post their telework schedule on their calendar, including applicable meal and
rest periods. Employees must also remain flexible in their scheduling and shall be available to attend staff
meetings and other meetings as required by their supervisor.
Safety
The telework space is considered an extension of the School’s worksite. Employees will have the same
responsibility for safe practices, accident prevention, and accident/injury reporting as in the regular worksite.
In case of injury, accident, theft, loss, or tort liability related to telework, the employee must immediately
report the event to their supervisor and allow the School or its authorized agent to investigate and/or inspect
the telework site as needed.
Employee Handbook

Page 64 of 56

Employees are responsible for establishing and maintaining a designated, adequate workspace at their
telework location. When the telework location is the employee’s home, the employee is responsible for
ensuring the location is safe (free from hazards and other dangers to the employee or equipment), clean,
professional, and free of distractions (e.g., children, pets, electronic devices, etc.).
Supplies, Equipment, and Furniture
The School will determine, with information supplied by the employee and the supervisor, the appropriate
equipment needs (including hardware, software, modems, phone and data lines, facsimile equipment or
software, and photocopiers) for each telework assignment on a case-by-case basis. The School will not
provide office furniture for the workspace at home.
All necessary technology equipment will be supplied and maintained by the School, subject to availability.
Equipment supplied by the School is to be used for work purposes only. Employees must sign an inventory
of all School property and agree to protect the items from damage or theft. Employees shall not be entitled
to reimbursement for their use of School property. Employees shall be held liable to the School whenever
their wrongful or negligent act or omission causes loss, theft, disappearance, damage to, or destruction of
School property. Upon cessation of a telework assignment, all School property must be returned to the
School.
Reimbursement
The School shall reimburse employees for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the employee carrying
out School business when such expenses are expressly authorized and preapproved by the School.
Employees must notify Director of Operations by email of an intent to be reimbursed to initiate process.
INTERNET REIMBURSEMENT: The School shall reimburse an employee’s costs for internet at
$________ per month, based upon a reasonable percentage of work-related use.
CELL PHONE REIMBURSEMENT: The School shall reimburse an employee’s cell phone bill at $______
per month, based upon a reasonable percentage of work-related use. Phone expenses are limited to the
employee’s share of the plan, taxes, and access fees. (i.e., an employee on a “family plan” may receive
reimbursement only for the cost of their phone line).
Employees who believe their expenses exceed the reimbursement the School provides shall be required to
submit copies of their internet and/or cell phone bill for review. Such bills may be redacted as needed to
remove any private/confidential information.
Information Security and Confidentiality
Employees must never provide any third parties access to the School network or share network access
passwords and must comply with all policies and procedures related to information security and network
access.
Consistent with the School’s expectations of information security for employees working at the office,
teleworking employees must ensure that their telework location is secure and communications provided or
sensitive work performed from the telework location remain confidential, away from the presence of family
members or guests. Any School materials taken home, such as confidential personnel or pupil records, must
be kept in a secure space within the telework location and not be made accessible to any third parties,
including the employee’s family members or guests. Steps which employees may take to increase security
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of School materials/information include use of locked file cabinets and desks, regular password
maintenance, shielding computer monitors, and any other actions appropriate for the position and the
telework location.
Performance Standards
Employees must maintain the same or an improved level of productivity and work quality while teleworking.
If productivity and/or work quality begin to decline, the telework assignment will be reevaluated to
determine if changes can be made or termination of the telework assignment is warranted. Telework allows
a high amount of flexibility for an employee to complete their work in a timely and proper manner, and it is
expected that employees will not abuse this opportunity by allowing their productivity or work quality to
decline.
Professional Boundaries
Employees must maintain appropriate levels of professionalism when interacting remotely with students
and/or student’s family members in full compliance with the School’s “Professional Boundaries:
Staff/Student Interaction” policy and as summarized below:
•
•
•
•
•

Limit communications with students to issues involving School activities or classes only;
Ensure professional communications with students by avoiding conversations of an overly personal,
inappropriate, sexual, offensive, or indecent nature;
Respect the privacy rights of students by ensuring communications and/or documents involving
confidential pupil information are safeguarded appropriately;
Maintain the same degree of formality as would be appropriate when working on-site, including in
manner of speech, tone, method of communication, and appearance and dress, particularly when the
employee may be communicating with students via video chat; and
Continue to comply with any and all School policies, including enforcing appropriate student
behavior and student discipline, child abuse and neglect reporting protocols, and prohibitions on
harassment or other inappropriate conduct.

For a copy of the School’s Policy, please visit www.creteacademy.org . Employees who fail to demonstrate
acceptable professional boundaries during a telework assignment may be subject to disciplinary action, up
to and including termination from employment.
Evaluation and Duration
Evaluation of employee performance during the teleworking assignment may include daily interaction by
video, phone and/or email between the employee and the supervisor, and weekly face-to-face and/or video
meetings whenever possible to discuss work progress and problems, as needed.
The School may modify or terminate telework assignments at any time, with or without cause or advance
notice. Although not required, the School shall endeavor to provide seven (7) days’ notice of the
modification or termination of any telework assignment whenever possible. All telework assignments shall
be subject to termination upon resumption of regular onsite duties at the School following the COVID-19
pandemic.
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Crete Academy Distance Learning Plan
The following plan was developed and is currently being implemented during our school closures to ensure a robust
distance learning program for Crete Academy students. Our goal is to have engaging and effective distance learning
that teaches every participating student to learn new content daily.
The expectation is that all teachers, administrators, students and parents are working together to provide a seamless
transition, from classroom-based learning to remote online learning. Below are specific expectations for each group
of individuals responsible for supporting the needs of Crete students.
Communication
Crete Academy will continue to send out messages and information via Class Dojo and through text message. Please
make sure you are checking Class Dojo daily for updates and information regarding our online learning, which will
include SeeSaw, Class Dojo and Zoom.
In addition to the daily and weekly communication, students and families are asked to pick up packets and school
supplies bi-weekly, every other Friday. The following items will be provided at Friday Pick-ups:
1. Work packets for the upcoming two weeks
2. Student Assessments and grades
3. School supplies: paper, pencils, technology and science materials
4. Meals
5. Art/Craft Kits
6. Crete Store Visit
7. Library Check-out
8. Perfect Attendance Certificates and Prizes
The following dates are scheduled pick up dates:
August 15th - (Family Fair - Saturday) packets thru 8/28
August 28th - packets thru 9/11
September 11th - NWEA Assessment/packets thru 9/25
September 25th - NWEA Assessment/packets thru 10/8
October 8th - (Thursday) - packets thru 10/23
October 23rd – F&P Assessments/Halloween Gift/packets thru 11/6
November 6th – First Trimester Progress Report Pick Up/packets thru 11/20
November 20th – Thanksgiving Packet/packets thru 12/4
December 4th - packets thru 12/18
December 18th – Christmas Gift & Packet/packets thru 1/22
January 22 - DIBELS/F&P/NWEA Assessment/ packets thru 2/5
February 5th - DIBELS/F&P/NWEA Assessment / packets thru 2/19
February 19th - packets thru 3/5
March 5th – Second Trimester Progress Report Pick Up/packets thru 3/19
March 19th - Spring Break Packet/packets thru 4/9
April 9th - packets thru 4/23
April 23rd - DIBELS/F&P/NWEA Assessment/ packet thru 5/7
May 7th - DIBELS/F&P/NWEA Assessment/packets thru 5/21
May 21st – Report cards/packets thru 6/4
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Below is a list of support Contacts by Grade:
1.
TK: Ms. Wright and Mr. Mitchell
2.
K: Ms. Jackson and Mr. Bonner
3.
1st Capra: Ms. Capra and Ms. Mack
4.
2nd Mrs. Bahurinsky and Ms. Devin
5.
2nd Ms. McGregor and Mrs. Mitchell
6.
3rd: Ms. Jessica and Ms. Devin
7.
4th: Mrs. Friedricks and Mr. Bonner
8.
5th: Mrs. Finney and Mr. Mitchell
9.
6th: Ms. Dixon and Ms. Bordenave
Position
Principal
Founder
Director of Curriculum and Instruction
Director of Student Services
Office Manager
Director of Operations
Teaching Fellow
Tutor
TK Teacher
Kindergarten Teacher
First Grade Teacher
Second Grade Teacher
Second Grade Teacher
Third Grade Teacher
Fourth Grade Teacher
Fifth Grade Teacher
Sixth Grade Teacher

Staff Member
Brett Mitchell
Hattie Mitchell
Jennifer Mack
Branden Bonner
Devin Hudson
Terry Bordenave
Paola Pesina
Peter DiGrazia
Alisa Wright
Quianna Jackson
Jessica Capra
Tanesha McGregor
Evelyn Bahurinsky
Jessica Ecung
Samantha
Friedricks
Danielle Finney
Imani Dixon

Email
Bmitchell@creteacademy.org
Hmitchell@creteacademy.org
Jmack@creteacademy.org
Bbonner@creteacademy.org
Dhudson@creteacademy.org
Tbordenave@creteacademy.org
ppesina@creteacademy.org
Pdigrazia@creteacademy.org
Awright@creteacademy.org
qjackson@creteacademy.org
Jcapra@creteacademy.org
Tmcgregor@creteacademy.org
Ebahurinsky@creteacademy.org
Jecung@creteacademy.org
Sfriedricks@creteacademy.org
Dfinney@creteacademy.org
Idixon@creteacademy.org

Roles and Responsibilities of Teachers (Core Subjects, ELD, Intervention):
Report to assigned classroom at Crete Academy by 8:00 am, 7:45 am for Teacher Pow Wow meetings and
provide live instruction beginning at 8:30 am until 12:00 pm and assignments and differentiated student support
from 1:00 pm to 2:00 pm, except for Staff Meeting dates and Professional Development days. In addition, teachers
are to provide one-on-one student support in the form of appointments and one weekly, scheduled check-in per
student, as well as parent support as needed. Teacher office hours are until 4:00.
To kick off the school year, teachers will schedule a Zoom or facetime meeting with each of their students and
their families during the week of August 10th through 14th. 100% outreach, scheduling and contact is expected
by teachers for their class. During the initial meeting with students and their families, teachers are expected
to introduce themselves, welcome the student to their class and answer any questions that the student or their family
may have. Each call should last approximately 5-10 minutes.
Daily and Weekly Schedule
Teachers will create a daily schedule that will be posted on Class Dojo and provided to Crete Administrators and
families at least 24 hours prior to instruction. Schedules are to be emailed to each teacher’s immediate supervisor
(Principal) and to their coach either daily or weekly, depending on how the teacher plans out each week.
The schedule for grades TK and K is as follows:
o 8:00 am to 8:25 am – Teacher Pow Wow – Mondays only
o 8:15 am to 8:30 am – whole school Zoom
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o 8:30 am to 8:45 am - Morning Circle (15 minutes)
o 8:45 am to 9: 20 am - Set Math time for live teaching (35 minutes) 20 minutes of direct instruction

and 15 minutes of intervention with students grouped by level.

o 9:20 am to 9:30 am - Break
o 9:30 am to 10: 05 am - Set ELA time for live teaching (35 minutes) 20 minutes of direct instruction

and 15 minutes for intervention with students grouped by level.
10:05 am to 10:20 am - Set Writing/Handwriting Time: (15 minutes)
10:20 am to 10:35 am - Break and Snack
10:35 am to 11:00 am - Set Social Studies time for live teaching (25 minutes)
11:00 am to 11:30 am – Lunch
11:30 am to 11:55 am - Set Science time for students (25 minutes)
11:55 am to 12:20 pm - Set Guided Reading intervention time for each of skills groups after whole
class lessons (25 minutes)
o 12:20 pm to 1:00 pm - 1:1 student checks each week via phone, face time, zoom or other direct,
real-time communication (5 minutes per student, scheduled the same day and time each week).
o 1:00 pm to 1:15 pm – respond to emails and messages
o 1:15 pm to 1:45 pm – plan for following day instruction
o 2:30 pm to 3:00 pm - Staff Meeting - Wednesdays only
o 3:00 pm to 3:30 pm - Professional Development – Wednesdays only
o
o
o
o
o
o

Instructional additions following the core subjects:
o Fridays include: Thematic teaching based on Monthly Theme and assessments (spelling tests, skills
assessments and unit assessments, F&P, NWEA)
o ELD Intervention - daily for ELD students only
o Gifted and Talented – Fridays
The schedule for grades 1-3 is as follows:
o 8:00 am to 8:25 am – Teacher Pow Wow – Mondays only
o 8:15 am to 8:30 am – Whole school Zoom
o 8:30 am to 8:45 am - Morning Circle (15 minutes)
o 8:45 am to 9: 45 am - Set Math time for live teaching (60 minutes) 40 minutes of direct instruction
and 20 minutes of intervention with students grouped by level.
o 9:45 am to 9:55 am - Break
o 9:55 am to 10: 55 am - Set ELA time for live teaching (60 minutes) 40 minutes of direct instruction
and 20 minutes for intervention with students grouped by level.
o 10:55 am to 11:05 am - Break and Snack
o 11:05 am to 11:50 am - Set Social Studies time via SeeSaw or Class Dojo (45 minutes)
o 11:50 am to 12:20 pm – Lunch
o 12:20 am to 1:05 pm - Set Science time via SeeSaw or Class Dojo (45 minutes)
o 1:05 am to 1:30 pm - Set Guided Reading intervention time for each of skills groups after whole
class lessons (25 minutes)
o 1:30 pm to 2:00 pm - 1:1 student checks each week via phone, face time, zoom or other direct, realtime communication (5 minutes per student, scheduled the same day and time each week).
o 2:00 pm to 2:15 pm – respond to emails and messages
o 2:15 pm to 2:30 pm – plan for following day instruction
o 2:30 pm to 3:00 pm - Staff Meeting - Wednesdays only
o 3:00 pm to 3:30 pm - Professional Development – Wednesdays only
Instructional additions following the core subjects:
o Fridays include: Thematic teaching based on Monthly Theme and assessments (spelling tests, skills
assessments and unit assessments, F&P, NWEA)
o ELD Intervention - daily for ELD students only
o Gifted and Talented – Fridays
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The schedule for grades 4-6 is as follows:
o 8:00 am to 8:25 am – Teacher Pow Wow – Mondays only
o 8:15 am to 8:30 am – Whole School Zoom
o 8:30 am to 8:45 am - Morning Circle (15 minutes)
o 8:45 am to 9: 45 am - Set Math time for live teaching (60 minutes) 40 minutes of direct instruction
and 20 minutes of intervention with students grouped by level.
o 9:45 am to 9:55 am - Break
o 9:55 am to 10: 55 am - Set ELA time for live teaching (60 minutes) 40 minutes of direct instruction
and 20 minutes for intervention with students grouped by level.
o 10:55 am to 11:05 am - Break and Snack
o 11:05 am to 11:50 am - Set Social Studies time via SeeSaw or Class Dojo (45 minutes)
o 11:50 am to 12:20 pm – Lunch
o 12:20 am to 1:05 pm - Set Science time via SeeSaw or Class Dojo (45 minutes)
o 1:05 am to 1:30 pm - Set Guided Reading intervention time for each of skills groups after whole
class lessons (25 minutes)
Note: beginning January 2021, this block will be used for CAASSP Test Prep
o 1:30 pm to 2:00 pm - 1:1 student checks each week via phone, face time, zoom or other direct, realtime communication (5 minutes per student, scheduled the same day and time each week).
o 2:00 pm to 2:15 pm – respond to emails and messages
o 2:15 pm to 2:30 pm – plan for following day instruction
o 2:30 pm to 3:00 pm - Staff Meeting - Wednesdays only
o 3:00 pm to 3:30 pm - Professional Development – Wednesdays only
Instructional additions following the core subjects:
o Fridays include: Thematic teaching based on Monthly Theme and assessments (spelling tests, skills
assessments and unit assessments, F&P, NWEA)
o ELD Intervention - daily for ELD students only
o Gifted and Talented – Fridays
In addition to providing the minimum required instructional minutes, teachers will also be responsible for:
• Actively responding to messages, emails and calls from parents and staff on the same day as receipt
• Checking internal emails daily and respond same-day if before 5pm or within 24 hours of receipt of the
• correspondence if after 5pm
• Requiring students to upload their work, daily: TK-6th via SeeSaw
• Completing Parent/Teacher Conferences
• Providing assessments and grades for all students.
• Setting up assignments on MobyMax, Seesaw, Spelling City and other online curricular platforms specific
to individual student needs and be available to support failed lessons through the chat feature
• Taking attendance daily, by 8:45 am
• Working with assigned administrator to resolve any issues or gain additional support
Roles and Responsibilities of Students:
• Continue to apply all Crete Core Values to the daily routine: Character, Responsibility,
Equality, Teachability and Excellence.
• Dress in school uniform during online instruction. On Fridays, student may wear a college shirt, but
if no college shirt is present, student must dress according to the school dress code.
• Meet 1:1 with teacher for weekly check-in at designated time
• Read and familiarize themselves with the class schedule, prior to the start of their day
• Participate in all online and videoed lessons with their teacher and classmates and ask questions and
contribute to the discussion
• Submit and upload daily work to Seesaw
• Sign up for tutoring, if needed
• Read, sign and abide by the Technology expectations
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Roles and Responsibilities of Parents:
• Check Class Dojo, Text messages from school and Seesaw daily for all updates and information
• Read and familiarize themselves with their child(ren)’s class schedule each day and check child(ren)’s work
daily for accuracy
• Support their child(ren) with online learning by ensuring their devices are charged each night, Student is
dressed in their uniform daily, student has a quiet workspace, student has eaten breakfast and gotten dressed
for the day (just like a normal school day) and ensure child(ren) are going to bed at or before 8 pm (all
ages)
• Ensure child(ren) are dressed according to the Crete dress code during all online instruction. Fridays are
optional college day and students may wear a college shirt, but if not college shirt is present, then student
must dress according to the school dress code.
• Sign up for tutoring if student needs extra support or just to enhance their daily learning
• Reach out to your assigned administrator or teacher to your child(ren)’s classroom for any support i.e.
technical, instructional or other needs
• Read to your child every day of the week, a book of their choice, regardless of the grade (TK-6th)
• Reach out to any administrator for mental health, housing, medical, vision, dental or parenting questions,
needs or resources.
• Read, sign and abide by the Technology expectations
Roles and Responsibilities of Administrators:
• Be available to teachers, other staff, students and parents, daily between 7:30 am and 4:00 pm
• Report to Crete Academy on assigned days
• Make bi-weekly calls to assigned classroom (see classroom assignments listed above) for family check-ins
• Devise systems to support and enhance online distance learning i.e. zoom, attendance protocols, weekly
meetings and check-ins, surveys and communication
• Provide resources to teachers to enhance their instruction
• Review attendance notes from teachers daily, and provide support to families as needed
• Communicate updates, changes and necessary information on a regular basis to families, staff and other
stakeholders
• Ensure all families have the proper equipment to support online distance learning i.e. laptops, hotspots and
other school supplies
• Ensure appropriate and ongoing training is provided for teachers and staff, as needed
• Remain knowledgeable of Crete’s plan, any new guidelines and policies.
• Office Manager will assist in the following during the hours of 7:30 am to 4pm: enrollment information, all
family communication of upcoming important dates, technology needs, attendance, and student records.
Online Learning Platforms
Grades TK-6th: Zoom, Class Dojo, Spelling City, Seesaw, MobyMax
Assessments, Progress Monitoring and Report Cards
Teachers will continue to monitor student progress through daily instruction, checks for understanding and online
assessments. Such assessments will be used to determine trimester grades for each student. Students will be
provided a report card at the end of each trimester that will be discussed and reviewed with parents during Parent
Teacher Conferences. Students who do not participate in online learning will receive incompletes for any days, or
work missed during the virtual learning period.
Attendance
Attendance will continue to be a top priority for all Crete students. Your child’s attendance is critical at this time and
should be not compromised because of distance learning. Attending all Zoom and video instructional sessions and
participating in all lessons is critical to your child being able to successfully matriculate to the next grade
prepared, and able to successfully complete the work.
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Absences
All students are expected to be logged in at 8:15 a.m., as school will begin daily at 8:15 a.m., for morning
announcements. Every student should be present and prepared for their classroom zoom at 8:30 a.m. Students who
log on after 8:30 a.m. will be marked tardy. Students who do not log on for the entire zoom session will be marked
absent. Parents will receive a phone call any time your student is marked absent. If your child is sick and will not be
in attendance on any particular day or for a specific lesson or will only be available for part of the lesson, please
notify the front office at: 323-791-1600.
Tardies
Tardiness is disruptive to the zoom session and places a burden on the teacher as well as the student who is entering
class after morning activities have begun. Anytime a student arrives late to class, valuable instructional time is
lost. School begins at 8:15 a.m., and students who are not in their zoom classroom, when instruction begins will be
considered tardy. Tardies are marked as excused, unexcused or truant. Parents/guardians shall email or write a note
of explanation when they have knowledge of their child’s tardiness or absence. Any unexcused tardy in excess of 30
minutes will be counted toward truancy.
Additional Attendance Distance Learning Policies
Attendance is the most important factor in a student’s academic progress. Making sure your student is prepared and
punctual for all online classes will give them the best chances of success. The following are attendance distance
learning guidelines provided by LAUSD:
•
Each teacher will have updated roster for parent/guardian contacts
Teachers take daily attendance at the beginning of class
•
•
Office will provide daily notification to parents/guardians of absences
Tiered Reengagement Strategies (TRS)
Tiered Reengagement Strategies will be implemented for any students who are absent from distance learning for
more than 3 school days or 60 percent of the instructional days in a week
Administration will send a letter to the parent/guardian of any student who is absent for more than 3 school days or
60 percent of the instructional days in a week informing them of the risks and consequences for excessive
absences.
As Part of TRS, Admin will review weekly attendance reports and contact families to offer support and bolster
attendance for students (Housing, Technology, Scheduling, Troubleshooting, Counseling etc.)
If after focused efforts attendance does not improve, parent/guardians will be notified of truancy consequences for
not having their student in class.
Attendance Incentives
Crete Academy acknowledges students with good attendance and this year will be no exception. Perfect Attendance
Certificates, participation in special activities, prizes, attendance assemblies and other rewards and special
recognitions are used to motivate all students and reward those with good attendance. This year we will
give Disneyland Tickets to students with perfect attendance for the entire year.
Truancy Policy
Crete Academy will adhere to the following policy for Truancy during distance learning. The following is an
extension of our on-site truancy policy.
1. If a student, at the beginning of their enrollment for that year, has five (5) unexcused absences to
start the school year they will be disenrolled. Upon being disenrolled, students must return any
loaned technology within three (3) business days or their parents will have the debt referred to a
collection agency.
2. If a student has three (3) unexcused absences for the year they will receive a call and a letter from
school administration in an attempt to engage and offer support for better attendance. The student
will also be notified of the attendance expectations of the school in order for them to attain
academic success, appropriate socio-emotional development, and matriculation to the next grade
level.
3. If a student has seven (7) unexcused absences for the year, an in-person or virtual meeting will be
required with the parent/guardian and student to discuss further reengagement strategies and
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supports. Families will also be notified that they can be reported as truant to the school district and
local agencies and authorities if attendance doesn’t improve.
4. If a student has ten (10) unexcused absences for the year, they will be classified as a habitual truant
and can be reported as a habitual truant to the school district and local agencies and authorities. The
student will also be subjected to school discipline measures up to dismissal.
Additional Student Support, Tutoring, Intervention and Student Support and Progress Teams (SSPT)
In order to address any learning loss over the past six months, Crete Academy is offering tutoring to all students who
sign up. Tutoring is offered by our Teaching Fellows, Monday through Friday, following the daily instruction by
teachers. Any student may sign up for tutoring at any time throughout the school year and they will be provided with
30-45 minutes of additional instruction with a Crete Teaching Fellow.
In addition to self-referrals for tutoring, teachers and support staff may make recommendations for specific students
to enroll in tutoring. Teachers will use initial assessment data to make tutoring recommendations at the beginning of
the school year, for any student performing below grade level in ELA or math. Following each assessment period or
based upon anecdotal data and in-class assessments, teachers will continue to make recommendations for tutoring.
NWEA, F&P and in-class assessment data will be compiled monthly to assess individual student learning. Students
will be grouped depending on their performance of each such assessment. During daily live instruction in ELA and
math, teachers will group students based upon skill level, according to assessment data, and provide learning content
and experiences designed to address the specific needs of each group.
Any student performing far below grade level after the initial assessment, performing below grade level and not
making progress according to subsequent assessments and students who regress or show no growth on
subsequent assessments will be provided intervention by the teacher and recommended for tutoring. If no significant
growth is made following such interventions, an SSPT will be initiated by the teacher and developed
in conjunction with school leadership and the student’s family.
The administrative team will review student assessment data, SSPTs weekly for 4-6 weeks to gauge individual
student progress. If no such progress is made or significant progress is not made and all parties (teacher, student and
parents) have fulfilled their designated role and assignments according to the SSPT, then the SSPT group may
request an assessment from LAUSD for an Individualized Education Program (IEP).
Use of Devices and Hotspots
Students will be using Crete Academy laptops, iPads and hotspots in grades TK-6th for all online learning. Such
devices and hotspots will be distributed to any family needing one to ensure continuity of learning. Parents are
responsible for adhering to Crete Academy’s Technology Policies and in accordance with the Crete Academy
Technology Agreement that was signed, in order to receive a device. Parents are also responsible for monitoring
their child(ren)’s activity online and filtering any content outside of schoolwork. If you have any issues with
technology, please submit a tech request to one of the following individuals listed below:
Technical Support (Zoom, SeeSaw and Class Dojo):
Ms. Devin: dhudson@creteacademy.org
Ms. Bordenave: tbordenave@creteacademy.org
If you are in need of a device or internet access, please reach out to Mr. Mitchell at: 626-429-3639 or
bmitchell@creteacademy.org
Wellness Center Services
Each family will participate in an initial wellness screening with the Director of Wellness Mr. B, in order to assess
needs around physical, emotional, and social well-being. Mr. B will contact you for your initial screening in August.
If you’re in need of services before taking an initial screening, please fill out the Wellness Referral form which will
be provided to you at the family fair. Follow up meetings and/or resources will be provided as needed.
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Counseling and Support Services
We recognize that this is a tough time for everyone. Wellness aids with housing, clothing, groceries,
therapy/counseling, etc. If you would like counseling or any other services for any member of your family from an
MFT or MSW, please reach out to Branden Bonner at: bbonner@creteacademy.org.
Additional Online Resources for Students:
Khan Academy: https://www.khanacademy.org/
Sesame Street: https://www.sesamestreet.org/
PBS Kids: http://pbskids.org
Starfall.com: https://www.starfall.com/h/
How Stuff Works: https://www.howstuffworks.com/
Exploratorium: https://www.exploriatorium.edu/
Stop, Breathe & Think: https://www.stopbreathethink.com/kids
We appreciate your patience during this virtual learning time. The entire team at Crete is looking forward to
providing your child(ren) with a robust and rigorous online learning experience. Please contact any member of our
staff, should you need anything to ensure a meaningful online learning experience for your child.
School Nutrition
A description of how the LEA will provide meals for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced- price meals for
pupils participating in both in-person instruction and distance learning, as applicable.
Crete Academy will notify all parents via Call-em All, Dojo, and letter that their child(ren) who are enrolled are
eligible for free breakfast and lunch meals as Crete Academy is a Community Eligibility Provision site. Parents will
pick up breakfast and lunches by driving up to the cafeteria twice a week on Mondays and Wednesdays between the
hours of 2:00 pm and 4:00 pm. Student meals are for multiple days and will be served cold with heating
instructions.
Drive Thru Pick up 2:00 pm – 4:00 pm ( Meals are for all students who attend Crete Academy)
Mondays – Meals are for Mondays, Tuesday
Wednesdays – Meals are for Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Fridays
If the holiday falls on the delivery day, then the delivery will be the following day (i.e. Holiday on Monday then
delivery on Tuesday).
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APPENDIX A
HARASSMENT/DISCRIMINATION/RETALIATION COMPLAINT FORM
It is the policy of the School that all of its employees be free from harassment, discrimination, and
retaliation. This form is provided for you to report what you believe to be harassment,
discrimination, or retaliation so that the School may investigate and take appropriate disciplinary
or other action when the facts show that there has been harassment, discrimination, or retaliation.
If you are an employee of the School, you may file this form with the SL/PRINCIPAL or
Board President.
Please review the School’s policies concerning harassment, discrimination, and retaliation for a
definition of such unlawful conduct and a description of the types of conduct that are considered
unlawful.
Crete Academy will undertake every effort to handle the investigation of your complaint in a
confidential manner. In that regard, the School will disclose the contents of your complaint only
to those persons having a need to know. For example, to conduct its investigation, the School will
need to disclose portions of your factual allegations to potential witnesses, including anyone you
have identified as having knowledge of the facts on which you are basing your complaint, as well
as the alleged offender.
In signing this form below, you authorize the School to disclose to others the information you have
provided herein, and information you may provide in the future. Please note that the more detailed
information you provide, the more likely it is that the School will be able to address your complaint
to your satisfaction.
Charges of harassment, discrimination, and retaliation are taken very seriously by the School both
because of the harm caused by such unlawful conduct, and because of the potential sanctions that
may be taken against the offender. It is therefore very important that you report the facts as
accurately and completely as possible and that you cooperate fully with the person or persons
designated to investigate your complaint.
Your Name:

Date:

Date of Alleged Incident(s):
Name of Person(s) you believe harassed, or discriminated or retaliated against, you or someone
else:
List any witnesses that were present:
Where did the incident(s) occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual
detail as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal
statements; what did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):

I acknowledge that I have read and that I understand the above statements. I hereby authorize the
School to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its investigation.
I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature of Complainant

Date:

Print Name
Received by:

Date:

APPENDIX B
INTERNAL COMPLAINT FORM
Your Name:

Date:

Date of Alleged Incident(s):
Name of Person(s) you have a complaint against:
List any witnesses that were present:
Where did the incident(s) occur?

Please describe the events or conduct that are the basis of your complaint by providing as much factual detail
as possible (i.e. specific statements; what, if any, physical contact was involved; any verbal statements; what
did you do to avoid the situation, etc.) (Attach additional pages, if needed):

I hereby authorize the School to disclose the information I have provided as it finds necessary in pursuing its
investigation. I hereby certify that the information I have provided in this complaint is true and correct and
complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I further understand providing false information in this regard
could result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Signature of Complainant

Date:

Print Name

To be completed by School:
Received by:

Date:
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Certified Public Accountants serving
K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors of
Crete Academy
Los Angeles, California
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Crete Academy (the “Charter”) which comprise the
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Crete Academy as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 15, 2021, on
our consideration of the Charter’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Charter’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

San Diego, California
December 15, 2021
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CRETE ACADEMY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Capital assets
Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Capital assets, net
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Loans payable
Total liabilities
Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Total net assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

$

$

$

302,408
654,855
21,860
979,123

172,029
(120,228)
51,801
1,030,924

116,444
61,436
96,223
274,103

756,821
756,821
1,030,924

CRETE ACADEMY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Without Donor
Restrictions
SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Federal and state support and revenues
Local control funding formula, state aid
Federal revenues
Other state revenues
Total federal and state support and revenues
Local support and revenues
Payments in lieu of property taxes
Grants and donations
Other local revenues
Total local support and revenues
Donor restrictions satisfied
Total Support and Revenues

$

1,397,855 $
417,092
241,966
2,056,913
481,431
128,500
19,254
629,185
35,975
2,722,073

EXPENSES
Program services
Supporting services
Management and general
Fundraising
Total Expenses

With Donor
Restrictions

Total

-

$

(35,975)
(35,975)

1,397,855
417,092
241,966
2,056,913
481,431
128,500
19,254
629,185
2,686,098

1,923,209

-

1,923,209

193,109
122
2,116,440

-

193,109
122
2,116,440

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

605,633

(35,975)

569,658

Net Assets - Beginning

151,188

35,975

187,163

Net Assets - Ending

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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756,821 $

- $

756,821

CRETE ACADEMY
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program
Services
EXPENSES
Personnel expenses
Certificated salaries
Non-certificated salaries
Payroll taxes
Other employee benefits
Total personnel expenses
Non-personnel expenses
Books and supplies
Insurance
Facilities
Professional services
Interest expense
Depreciation
Fees to authorizing agency
Other operating expenses
Total non-personnel expenses
Total Expenses

$

$

Supporting Services
Management
and General
Fundraising

711,735 $
235,025
84,844
111,762
1,143,366
158,945
22,129
204,634
221,566
121,832
50,737
779,843
1,923,209

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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28,171 $
47,373
5,174
7,640
88,358
6,638
1,766
5,969
53,023
5,384
29,479
1,163
1,329
104,751
193,109

$

Total

- $
122
122
122

$

739,906
282,398
90,018
119,402
1,231,724
165,583
23,895
210,603
274,711
5,384
29,479
122,995
52,066
884,716
2,116,440

CRETE ACADEMY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in operating assets
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$

569,658

29,479
(446,993)
(13,297)
7,656
61,436
207,939

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(3,864)
(3,864)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Draws or proceeds from loans payable
Principal payments on loans payable
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

9,935
(81,977)
(72,042)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

132,033

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning

170,375

Cash and cash equivalents - Ending

$

302,408

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE
Cash paid for interest

$

5,384

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity
Crete Academy (the “Charter”) was formed as a nonprofit public benefit corporation on April 28, 2016 for the
purpose of operating as a California public school located in Los Angeles, California. The Charter was numbered
by the State Board of Education in March 2017 as California Charter No. 1854. Crete Academy’s mission is to
deliver an educational program to students who are homeless, living in poverty, that will meet their physical,
mental and emotional needs, while developing strong character and critical thinking skills so that each child is
prepared for college and beyond. Classes began in August 2017 for students in grades transitional kindergarten
through sixth.
Crete Academy is authorized to operate as a charter school through the Los Angeles Unified School District (the
“authorizing agency” or “LAUSD”). On November 15, 2016, the Board of Directors of LAUSD approved a charter
petition for the Charter for a five-year term beginning July 1, 2017 and expiring on June 30, 2022. Funding
sources primarily consist of state apportionments, in lieu of property tax revenues, and grants and donations from
the public.
B. Basis of Accounting
The Charter’s policy is to prepare its financial statements on the accrual basis of accounting; consequently,
revenues are recognized when earned rather than when cash is received and certain expenses and purchases
of assets are recognized when the obligation is incurred rather than when cash is disbursed.
C. Financial Statement Presentation
The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958 dated August 2016, and the provisions of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) “Audit and Accounting Guide for Not-for-Profit Organizations” (the
“Guide”). ASC 958-205 was effective July 1, 2018. Under the Guide, Crete Academy is required to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
Net assets without donor restrictions – These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from
operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services, raising contributions,
and performing administrative functions.
Net assets with donor restrictions – These assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are received
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or permanently, until the
donor restriction expires (that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is
accomplished) the net assets are restricted. When a restriction expires, restricted net assets are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions.
As a public charter school, the Charter also accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies
and procedures of the Department of Education’s California School Accounting Manual presented in Procedure
810 Charter Schools. Fund accounting is not used in the Charter’s financial statement presentation.
D. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures, such as
depreciation expense and the net book value of capital assets. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Functional Expenses
The costs of providing services have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities and
detailed in the statement of functional expenses. Certain costs and expenses have been allocated between
program and supporting services based on management’s estimates.
F. Contributions
Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged and recorded as net assets without donor restrictions
or net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions.
Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.
Gifts of cash and other assets are reported with donor restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished,
net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the
statement of activities as “net assets released from restrictions.” Donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction support.
Contributions restricted for the acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment are reported as net assets without
restriction upon acquisition of the assets and the assets are placed in service.
Non-cash contributions of goods, materials, and facilities are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution.
Contributed services are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution if they are used to create or enhance a
non-financial asset or require specialized skills, are provided by someone possessing those skills, and would have
to be purchased by the organization if not donated.
G. In Lieu of Property Taxes Revenue
Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of March 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on December 10 and April 10. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before
August 31. The County bills and collects the taxes for the authorizing agency. In lieu of distributing funds out of
property tax proceeds, the authorizing agency makes payments to Crete Academy. Revenues are recognized by
the Charter when earned.
H. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Crete Academy considers all highly liquid deposits and investments with an original maturity of less than ninety
days to be cash equivalents.
I.

Investments
The Charter’s method of accounting for most investments is the fair value method. Fair value is determined by
published quotes when they are readily available. Gains and losses resulting from adjustments to fair values are
included in the accompanying statement of activities. Investment return is presented net of any investment fees.

8

CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
J. Receivables and Allowances
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. An
allowance for doubtful accounts is established, as necessary, based on past experience and other factors which,
in management’s judgment, deserve current recognition in estimating bad debts. Such factors include the
relationship of the allowance for doubtful accounts to accounts receivable and current economic conditions.
Based on review of these factors, the Charter establishes or adjusts the allowance for specific revenue sources
as a whole. At June 30, 2021, an allowance for doubtful accounts was not considered necessary as all accounts
receivable were deemed collectible
K. Capital Assets
Crete Academy has adopted a policy to capitalize asset purchases over $2,500. Lesser amounts are expensed.
Donations of capital assets are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are
reported as net assets without donor restrictions. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the property and equipment or the related lease terms.
L. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet the criteria for recognition in the current period
and when resources are received by the organization prior to the incurrence of expenses. In subsequent periods,
when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the statement
of financial position and revenue is recognized.
M. Income Taxes
Crete Academy is a 509(a)(1) publicly supported nonprofit organization that is exempt from income taxes under
Section 501(a) and 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by the Internal Revenue Service as
other than a private foundation. The Charter is exempt from state franchise or income tax under Section 23701(d)
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. As a school, the Charter is not required to register with the
California Attorney General as a charity.
The Charter’s management believes all of its significant tax positions would be upheld under examination;
therefore, no provision for income tax has been recorded. The Charter’s information and/or tax returns are
subject to examination by the regulatory authorities for up to four years from the date of filing.
N. Fair Value Measurements
The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). A financial instrument’s
level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets.
Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in
active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.
Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.
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CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 1 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
O. New Accounting Pronouncement
Leases
In February 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The objective of the ASU is to increase
transparency and comparability in financial reporting by requiring balance sheet recognition of leases and note
disclosure of certain information about lease arrangements. The new FASB ASU topic on leases consists of five
subtopics: overall, lessee, lessor, sale and leaseback transactions, and leveraged lease arrangements. ASU No.
2016-02 is applicable to any entity that enters into a lease. The new lease standard is effective for private
nonprofits with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. The Charter will determine the impact on the
financial statements once required to implement in the 2022-23 fiscal year.
NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2021, consists of $302,408 held in non-interest bearing bank accounts.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, an organization’s deposits may not be returned to it.
Crete Academy does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. The FDIC insures up to $250,000 per
depositor per insured bank. As of June 30, 2021, $52,408 of Crete Academy’s bank balance was exposed to custodial
credit risk as there were deposits over $250,000 in accounts at one or more banks.
NOTE 3 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2021, consists of the following:
Local control funding sources, state aid
Federal sources
Other state sources
In lieu property tax payments
Other local sources
Total Accounts Receivable

$

$

472,344
70,871
92,954
14,998
3,688
654,855

NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS
A summary of activity related to capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2021 consists of the following:
Balance
July 1, 2020
Property and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment
Transportation equipment
Total property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Capital Assets, net

$

$

39,991 $
28,556
15,370
84,248
168,165
(90,749)
77,416 $

10

Additions
- $
3,864
3,864
(29,479)
(25,615) $

Disposals

Balance
June 30, 2021
- $
- $

39,991
32,420
15,370
84,248
172,029
(120,228)
51,801

CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 5 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accounts payable as of June 30, 2021, consists of the following:
Salaries and benefits
Deferred summer compensation
Due to authorizing agency
Credit card liability
Vendor payables
Total Accounts Payable

$

$

37,822
23,242
500
31,739
23,141
116,444

NOTE 6 – DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue as of June 30, 2021, consists of $61,436 from state funding sources.
NOTE 7 – LOANS PAYABLE
A summary of activity related to loans payable during the year ended June 30, 2021 consists of the following:

Charter revolving loan
Line of credit
Shuttle loan #1
Shuttle loan #2
Total Loans Payable

Balance
July 1, 2020
$
100,006 $
20,753
24,102
23,404
$
168,265 $

Draws
- $
9,935
9,935 $

Payments
49,998
16,287
7,837
7,855
81,977

Balance
June 30, 2021
$
50,008
14,401
16,265
15,549
$
96,223

Charter Revolving Loan
On June 16, 2017, the Charter was approved to borrow $250,000 through the Charter Revolving Loan Fund Program
administered by the California School Finance Authority (CSFA). The loan is to be repaid over a five-year period
ending March 2022. The revolving note bears an annualized interest rate equal to the “prime rate” of 0.98%. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Charter made payments of $51,308, which included $49,998 of principal and
$1,310 of interest expense. As of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance on the loan was $50,008. Repayment
obligations on the charter revolving loan includes total payments of $50,346 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022,
which includes $50,008 in principal and $338 in interest.
Line of Credit
In June 2019, the Charter was approved for a line of credit of $75,000 with Wells Fargo financial institution. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Charter had $9,935 in draws and made payments of $16,287. As of June
30, 2021, the liability associated with the line of credit was $14,401.
Shuttle Loans #1 and #2
In September 2017, the Charter entered into two separate loan agreements for the purchase of two (2) shuttle vans.
The shuttle vans are utilized for student transportation. The corresponding assets are recorded within capital assets
as transportation equipment. Shuttle #1 was purchased for $42,746 and the cost of shuttle #2 was $41,505. Loans
for shuttle #1 and shuttle #2 include an annual interest rate of 4.86% for six-year terms with minimum monthly
payments of $685.60 and $665.74, respectively.

11

CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 7 – LOANS PAYABLE (continued)
Shuttle Loans #1 and #2 (continued)
Future repayment obligations on the shuttle loans are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2022
2023
2024
Total minimum lease payments
Less: Interest
Total

Shuttle #1
Shuttle #2
8,227 $
7,989 $
8,227
7,989
1,371
1,331
17,825
17,309
(1,560)
(1,760)
$
16,265 $
15,549 $
$

Total
16,216
16,216
2,702
35,134
(3,320)
31,814

NOTE 8 – NET ASSETS
As of June 30, 2021, the Charter did not hold any net assets with donor restrictions. Certain designations or reserves
have been made for the use of net assets without donor restrictions either by the board, management or by nature of
the financial assets held by the Charter. At June 30, 2021, the Charter’s net assets without donor restrictions consist
of the following:
Net investment in capital assets
Required cash reserve (LAUSD 5% of expenses)
Undesignated
Total Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

$

$

19,987
105,822
631,012
756,821

In accordance with Crete Academy’s charter petition with the Los Angeles Unified School District, the Charter is
required to maintain cash reserves equal to five percent of total expenditures.
NOTE 9 – LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
The following table reflects the Charter’s financial assets as of June 30, 2021, reduced by amounts not available for
general expenditure within one year. Financial assets are considered not available for general use when illiquid or
not convertible to cash within one year, consist of assets held for others, or are held aside by the governing board for
specific contingency reserves. Any board designations could be drawn upon if the board approves that action. Crete
Academy maintains a line of credit (as mentioned in Note 7) which has been drawn upon to ensure financial assets
are available as general expenditures and other obligations become due.
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, current portion
Prepaid expenses
Total Financial Assets, excluding noncurrent
Contractual or donor-imposed restrictions
Required cash reserve
Financial Assets available to meet cash needs
for expenditures within one year
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$

$

302,408
654,855
21,860
979,123
(105,822)

$

873,301

CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 10 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS
In accordance with California Education Code 47605, charter schools have the option of participating in certain
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained by agencies of the State of California if an election to
participate is specified within the charter petition. Within the current charter petition, the Charter has not made the
election and therefore, does not participate in the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) or the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) pension programs. The Charter retains the option to
elect to participate in CalSTRS at a future date.
As established by federal law, all public-sector employees must be covered by social security or an alternative plan
if an existing employer retirement plan such as CalSTRS and CalPERS is not available. The Charter offers both social
security and a 403(b) employee funded plan. All employees are covered by Medicare and social security and all fulltime employees are eligible to participate in the 403(b) plan. A participant of the 403(b) plan may make an election
to defer compensation and have it contributed to this plan. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Charter
made payments totaling $76,438 for Medicare and social security and paid $14,972 toward other employee benefits.
NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Charter School Authorization
As mentioned in Note 1A, Crete Academy is approved to operate as a public charter school through authorization by
the Los Angeles Unified School District. As such, the Charter is subject to the risk of possible non-renewal or
revocation at the discretion of its authorizing agency if certain criteria for student outcomes, management, and/or
fiscal solvency are not met.
Governmental Funds
Crete Academy has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any required reimbursements would not be material.
Joint Powers Agency (JPA)
During the year ended June 30, 2021, Crete Academy participated in a joint venture with CharterSafe. CharterSafe
arranges for insurance coverage related to property, general liability, automobile, worker’s compensation, and other
miscellaneous liability coverage specific to the operation of a charter school. The relationship between the Charter
and the JPA is such that the JPA is not financially inter-related to the Charter for financial reporting purposes.
Premiums totaled $36,932 for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Operating Lease
On July 12, 2018 Crete Academy entered into a lease agreement to occupy space located at 6103 Crenshaw
Boulevard in Los Angeles, California. The facility is utilized by the Charter for instructional services in order to meet
the educational goals established by the Charter. The two-year term covered by the lease agreement commenced
on August 1, 2018 and will end July 31, 2020. The agreement calls for base rent of $13,000 per month. In May 2020,
the Charter entered into a lease amendment to extend the term for two years commencing August 1, 2020 and ending
July 31, 2022 with base rent of $13,250 per month for Year 1 and $13,500 per month for Year 2. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021, rent payments attributed to this facility lease agreement amounted to $158,750. Future
minimum lease payments are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2022
2023
Total
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Payments
$
161,750
13,500
$
175,250

CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 12 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Authorizing Agency
The Charter makes payments to the authorizing agency, LAUSD, to provide required services for special education
and other purchased services in addition to fees for oversight. Total fees for oversight amounted to $15,735 and total
payments for special education and other services amounted to $107,260 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
Interested Parties
The Executive Director and Founder, Hattie Arrington Mitchell, is married to the Principal and Co-Founder, Brett
Mitchell.
NOTE 13 – DONATED GOODS AND SERVICES
During the year, many parents, administrators and other individuals donated significant amounts of time and services
to Crete Academy in an effort to advance the Charter’s programs and objectives. These services have not been
recorded in the Charter’s financial statements because they do not meet the criteria required by generally accepted
accounting principles.
NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Crete Academy has evaluated subsequent events for the period from June 30, 2021 through December 15, 2021,
the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
On July 9, 2021, the Governor of California approved Assembly Bill 130 (AB 130). Effective July 1, 2021, AB 130
added a provision within the California Education Code whereby all charter schools whose term expires on or between
January 1, 2022, and June 30, 2025, inclusive, shall have their term extended by two years. As a result, the new term
expiration date to the charter petition mentioned in Note 1A is June 30, 2024.
Management did not identify any other transactions or events that require disclosure or that would have an impact
on the financial statements.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CRETE ACADEMY
LEA ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 30, 2021
Crete Academy, located in Los Angeles, California, was formed as a nonprofit public benefit corporation on April 28,
2016 and numbered by the State Board of Education in March 2017 as Charter No. 1854. The Charter is authorized
by the Los Angeles Unified School District. Classes began in August 2017 for grades TK through 6. During 2020-21,
the Charter served approximately 155 students in grades TK to 6.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Name

Office

Term Expiration

Sergio G. Martus, MPP, MBA and JD

President

April 2021

Ursula Worsham, M.S and Ed.D

Secretary

November 2020

Lynnzi Brianza

Member

March 2021

Carson Bruno

Member

September 2020

Dennis Johnson, Ed.D

Member

August 2020

Archana Patel

Member

September 2020

ADMINISTRATION
Hattie Mitchell
Executive Director
Brett Mitchell
Principal

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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CRETE ACADEMY
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Grade Span
Kindergarten*
Grades 1 through 3
Grades 4 through 6

2020-21
Number of
Days

Status

178
178
178

Complied
Complied
Complied

*Includes Transitional Kindergarten (TK)

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.
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CRETE ACADEMY
RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT (UNAUDITED ACTUALS) WITH
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021
There were no adjustments to reconcile net position reported in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund on the Annual
Financial and Budget Report (Unaudited Actuals) to net assets per the audited financial statements for the year end
ended June 30, 2021.

See accompanying notes to supplementary information.

17

CRETE ACADEMY
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021
NOTE 1 – PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES
A. LEA Organization Structure
This schedule provides information about the local education agency (LEA or charter school), including the
Charter’s authorizing agency, grades served, members of the governing body, and members of the
administration.
B. Schedule of Instructional Time
This schedule presents information on the number of instructional days offered by the Crete Academy and
whether the Charter complied with the provisions of Education Code Section 47612.
C. Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report (Unaudited Actuals) with Audited Financial
Statements
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile net position for the Charter Schools Enterprise
Fund reported on the Annual and Financial Budget Report (Unaudited Actuals) to net assets on the audited
financial statements.
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS

Certified Public Accountants serving
K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of
Crete Academy
Los Angeles, California
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Crete Academy (the “Charter”) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Charter’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 15, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Charter’s internal control over
financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis of designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Charter’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Charter’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Charter’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

San Diego, California
December 15, 2021
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Certified Public Accountants serving
K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE
Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of
Crete Academy
Los Angeles, California
Report on State Compliance
We have audited Crete Academy’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 2020-21
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5,
California Code of Regulations, section 19810, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Crete Academy’s
state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, as identified below.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Crete Academy's state programs based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of the 2020-21 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted
below. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Crete Academy's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the requirements referred
to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Crete Academy's compliance with those
requirements.
Opinion on State Compliance
In our opinion, Crete Academy complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that are applicable to the state programs noted in the following table below for the year ended June 30,
2021.
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Procedures Performed
In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine Crete
Academy’s compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following:
Procedures
Performed

Description
Local Education Agencies
Attendance and Distance Learning
Teacher Certification and Misassignments
Kindergarten Continuance
Instructional Time
Instructional Materials
Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers
Classroom Teacher Salaries
Early Retirement Incentive
GANN Limit Calculation
School Accountability Report Card
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
Comprehensive School Safety Plan
District of Choice
School Districts, County Offices of Education and Charter Schools
California Clean Energy Jobs Act
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Charter Schools
Independent Study – Course Based
Attendance
Mode of Instruction
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based Instruction
Charter School Facility Grant Program

Yes
Not applicable
Not applicable
Yes
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable*
Yes
Yes
Not applicable
Yes
Yes
Not applicable
Not applicable
Yes

*Crete Academy began classes in August 2017; therefore, the Charter was not eligible to receive California Clean
Energy Jobs Act funding.

San Diego, California
December 15, 2021
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND
QUESTIONED COSTS

CRETE ACADEMY
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified
No
None Reported
None

Federal Awards
The Charter did not expend more than $750,000 in federal awards;
therefore, a Federal Single Audit under OMB Uniform Grant Guidance
is not applicable.
State Awards
Internal control over state programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
state programs:
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No
None Reported
Unmodified

CRETE ACADEMY
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
FIVE DIGIT CODE
20000
30000

AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
Inventory of Equipment
Internal Control

There were no audit findings related to the financial statements during 2020-21.
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CRETE ACADEMY
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
FIVE DIGIT CODE
10000
40000
42000
43000
60000
61000
62000
70000
71000
72000

AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
Attendance
State Compliance
Charter School Facilities Programs
Apprenticeship: Related Supplemental Instruction
Miscellaneous
Classroom Teacher Salaries
Local Control Accountability Plan
Instructional Materials
Teacher Misassignments
School Accountability Report Card

There were no audit findings and questioned costs related to state awards during 2020-21.
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CRETE ACADEMY
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
There were no audit findings reported in the 2019-20 fiscal year.
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RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CRETE ACADEMY
A California Public Benefit Corporation
Board Resolution 11
RESOLUTION APPROVING CHARTER MATERIAL REVISION – CRETE
ACADEMY
WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic, Delta Variant and Omicron are widespread throughout
the county and district.
WHEREAS, the Crete Academy administration believes it is in the best interest of the school
community and the broader South Los Angeles community to delay the return to school
following the Winter Recess period, to help stop spread the of the COVID-19 virus and
associated viruses.
WHEREAS, the Crete Academy administration is recommending to delay the return to school
following the Winter Recess period from January 6, 2022 to January 10, 2022 to allow for
baseline testing on January 6, 2022 and request that the school community quarantine prior to
returning to school on January 10, 2022.
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of Crete Academy (the “Charter School”) finds it
in the best interest of Crete Academy to amend its 2021-2022 school calendar to reflect the
above stated changes and prevent the spread of the COVID-19 virus.
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Crete Academy shall amend its 2021-2022
school calendar to account for the COVID-19 pandemic and its longstanding effects.
BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Crete Academy authorizes its Chief Executive Officer,
Hattie Mitchell, to amend the 2021-22 school calendar to reflect January 6, 2022 and January 7,
2022 as non-instructional days, decreasing the total number of instructional days for Crete
Academy from 180 to 178.
BE IT RESOLVED FURTHER, that Crete Academy directs the Chief Executive Officer to work
with the various stakeholders to communicate such changes and provide the necessary supports,
resources and information to mitigate any inconvenience or barriers such change may cause.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Directors has adopted the above resolution by the
following vote at a regular Board meeting this 7th day of February 2022.
AYES:
NOS:
ABSTENTIONS:
By:____________________________
Ursula Winston, Secretary

LOS ANGELES UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
CHARTER SCHOOLS DIVISION
th

333 South Beaudry Avenue, 20 Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90017
Office: (213) 241-0399 ♦ Prop. 39: (213) 241-5130 ♦ Fax: (213) 241-2054

MEGAN K. REILLY

Interim Superintendent

VERONICA ARREGUIN

Chief Strategy Officer

JOSÉ COLE-GUTIÉRREZ

Director, Charter Schools Division

CHARTER SCHOOL COMPLIANCE MONITORING
2021-2022
Dear Charter School Governing Board President and Charter School Leaders:
As part of its oversight responsibility set forth in California Education Code § 47604.32, the LAUSD,
through the Charter Schools Division (CSD), monitors each charter public school’s compliance with
applicable legal, charter, and policy requirements. The CSD’s compliance oversight process
encompasses three important actions by each charter school:
(1) School Administrator’s Certification: As the CSD continues its focus on ensuring that the wellbeing of students remains first and foremost, by October 29, 2021, (designed to be aligned with
the six-week deadline for Child Abuse Mandated Reporter training) as part of the school’s Q1
electronic submission of documents, we request that the school site administrator submit the
attached certification confirming the school’s implementation of safety measures at the beginning
of the school year. This beginning of the year certification by the school administrator informs
the governing board and supports the school in ensuring that critical organizational and
management systems are in place as the school year begins, as these requirements greatly impact
students, staff, and the public. Please return the entire document with only the school
administrator’s columns completed, along with the administrator’s signature no later than
October 29, 2021.
(2) Certification of Board Compliance Review: As in previous years, and as part of the Governing
Board’s fulfillment of its fiduciary governance responsibility to ensure that the charter school
complies with all applicable laws and other requirements, it is critical that the school’s Governing
Board periodically review, discuss, monitor, and modify, if necessary, the school’s policies and
systems for compliance with such requirements. Please complete and sign the final
certification at the end of the attached document, Compliance Monitoring and Certification of
Board Compliance Review 2021-2022, and return the entire document, (including the
administrator’s certification from the first submission). Please include the relevant Board
agenda(s) and minutes as evidence of the Governing Board’s review of these items and
submit to the Charter Schools Division via Dropbox no later than January 14, 2022.
The CSD is very much aware and acknowledges that governing boards provide fiduciary
oversight and hire a leader (or leaders) to execute day-to-day operations and appropriately
delegated functions. Moreover, the charter school’s governing board is the first line of charter
school oversight. As part of the District’s oversight process, this certification is intended to serve
as a formal acknowledgement from charter school governing boards of their review and
appropriate due diligence in these key areas as part of their own organizational oversight function.
As stated in the LAUSD Policy and Procedures for Charter Schools, “While LAUSD is
responsible to provide oversight of its charter schools and the entities managing charter schools,
the primary oversight of each charter school must first and foremost be performed by the charter
school’s own governing board. The governing board of a charter school has an ongoing
FORM REV. 9/23/21
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responsibility to oversee the operations of its charter school(s), ensuring that every charter school
it oversees is providing a high-quality educational program for students enrolled, is successfully
fulfilling the terms of their charter, is fiscally sound, and complies with applicable laws,
regulations, and court orders.” This annual certification also provides charter governing boards an
opportunity to confirm with their school leadership that systems are/remain in place to fulfill these
critical requirements that impact students, staff, and the public.
(3) Documentation of Compliance: As we have historically done, the CSD will review documentation
of compliance with several key legal requirements as part of this year’s annual performance-based
oversight visit to each charter school. To facilitate effective and efficient compliance review on
the day of the visit, please adhere to the guidance provided in the Annual Performance-Based
Oversight Visit Preparation Guide 2021-2022 for the preparation of the school’s compliance
documentation. Please ensure that this documentation is current, complete, and accurate. The
“Supporting Documentation” column of the table in the attached Compliance Monitoring and
Certification of Board Compliance Review 2021-2022 may provide useful support and assistance
in this endeavor.
We appreciate your continued collaboration and cooperation as we work together so that all youth
achieve in healthy and safe environments. Should you have questions, please contact your assigned
CSD administrator.
Best wishes,

José Cole-Gutiérrez
Director, Charter Schools Division
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COMPLIANCE MONITORING AND
CERTIFICATION OF BOARD COMPLIANCE REVIEW
2021-2022
School Name: CRETE ACADEMY
Board President Name:

SERGIO MARTUS

Charter Management Organization:

Crete Academy

LAUSD Loc. Code:

1854

INSTRUCTIONS: This Compliance Monitoring and Certification Checklist needs to be submitted
twice but both certifications must be completed on the same form.
First submission should be completed by checking each appropriate box (Compliant OR In Process)
for items 1-23; school administrator needs sign and date the certification page and submitted all pages
no later than October 29, 2021 via Dropbox.
Second submission needs to be completed by checking each appropriate items 1-23 under the board
certification column, Board Chair needs to sign the certification page and submit with supporting
documentation such as the Board Agenda where item was discuss, Board Minutes and Board Agenda
approving the minutes no later than January 14, 2022 via Dropbox.
Note: Checklist boxes cannot be left uncheck for any of the items unless you indicated Not Applicable
(N/A). Compliance Certification with wet signatures must remain at the school site and be available
for review upon request by the oversight team at any time.
SCHOOL ADMIN.

Compliance Requirements*
1. The charter school maintains timely and current
verification of criminal background and TB
clearances for all employees (including
substitutes, part-time staff, and temporary
employees) and contracting entities (service
providers, vendors, and independent
contractors). See, e.g., Ed. Code §
47605(b)(5)(F); Ed. Code §§ 45122.1 and
45125.1; Ed. Code § 49406; Ed. Code § 44237.
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Supporting
Documentation

COMPLIANT

REQUIREMENT
IN PROCESS

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Documentation
that the school has
at least one DOJconfirmed
Custodian of
Records
Completed and
signed
“Certification of
Clearances,
Credentialing and
Mandated
Reporter Training
2021-2022” form
Page 1 of 8

Compliance Requirements*

2. Teachers (including but not limited to English
language arts, social studies, science, and
mathematics) hold an EL Certification and a
valid Commission on Teacher Credentialing
Certificate, permit, or other documents
equivalent to that which a teacher in other
public schools would be required to hold per
federal and state law, ESSA. See Ed. Code §
47605(l).

2a. The administration and board have a system in
place for reporting applicable employee
misconduct to the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing.
3. The Charter Schools Division has been
provided with, and parents have access to, the
school’s most current contact information for
each Governing Board member and the 20212022 Board meetings calendar. See current
FORM REV. 9/23/21

Supporting
Documentation
Completed and signed
“Criminal Background
Clearance
Certification” for each
faculty and staff
member to certify
criminal background
clearance prior to
employment.
Certification of timely
DOJ and TB
clearances by all
contracting entities.
Documentation of
compliance with
applicable volunteer
clearance
requirements,
including tuberculosis
(TB) risk
assessment/clearance
requirements. Ed Code
§ 49406; Health &
Safety Code §§
121525, 121535,
121545, and 121555.
For each certificated
staff member:
Credential(s) are
appropriate for the
position(s) to which
the person has been
assigned, and are in
alignment with Ed.
Code § 47605(l) and
other applicable law
Master schedule that
shows all
assignment(s) of each
certificated staff
member.
Internal human
resources procedures

SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Accurate and updated
school contact
information
Accurate and updated
list/roster of
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Compliance Requirements*
Federal, State, and District Required
Language for Independent Charter School
Petitions (New and Renewal) and Material
Revisions (FSDRL).

Supporting
Documentation
Governing Board
members and contact
information
Calendar of Governing
Board meeting dates
and location(s)

4. Charter school complies with the pre- and
post-lottery and enrollment forms
guidelines. See Admissions Requirements and
Materials (August 2011).

Lottery form and
enrollment packet

5. Charter school shall ensure that staff receives
annual training on the charter school’s
health, safety, and emergency procedures,
and shall maintain a calendar for, and conduct,
emergency response drills for students and
staff including, but not limited to:
a. Health, Safety and Emergency
Preparedness Plan (School Safety Plan)
(see, e.g., Ed Code §§ 32280-32289)
b. Child Abuse Mandated Reporter training
as outlined in Ed. Code § 44691; Penal
Code § 11165.7
c. Blood borne Pathogens training (see 8
CCR § 5193)
d. Pupil Suicide Prevention Policy, as
outlined in Ed. Code, § 215

Comprehensive
Health, Safety, and
Emergency Plan
Documentation of
emergency drills and
preparedness training
Documentation of
timely and compliant
Child Abuse Mandated
Reporter training
Documentation of
annual Blood borne
Pathogens training
Documentation of
Pupil Suicide
Prevention Policy
training
Participation in
District and site level
co-location meetings

6. Co-location Charters only- The school
administrator and governing board
acknowledges and understands that the
independent charter school follows applicable
District policy, including the District School
Safety Plan, as a co-location school.

7. The charter school has either implemented the
LAUSD Master Plan for English Learners
and Standard English Learners or updated
and implemented its own master plan in
accordance with English Language Master
Plan requirements. See current FSDRL and
2021-2022 Welcome Letter.
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SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Review of Policy
Bulletin-5532.1
Meeting with local
district site principal
for additional
information and
questions
EL Certification Form

EL Master Plan has
been updated (if the
school has not adopted
the LAUSD EL Master
Plan)
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Compliance Requirements*
8. The charter school’s school climate and
student discipline systems and procedures
align with LAUSD’s Discipline Foundation
Policy and School Climate Bill of Rights.
See current FSDRL.

9. Charter School shall maintain all data
involving placement, tracking, and monitoring
of student suspensions, expulsions, and
reinstatements, and make such outcome data
readily available to the LAUSD upon request.
The charter school submits student suspension
and expulsion data to the Office of Data and
Accountability on a monthly basis. See current
FSDRL.
10. Charter School ensures that any and all school
communications, including the Parent
Student Handbook, are consistent with the
provisions of school’s approved charter as
well as applicable law (e.g., translation
required in the target language if Charter
School has 15% of more of Stakeholders who
speak that language.)
11. The charter school’s occupancy and use of
facilities shall be in compliance with
applicable building codes, standards and
regulations adopted by the city and/or county
agencies responsible for building and safety
standards, including but not limited to, the
Americans with Disabilities Act. See 42
U.S.C.A. § 12182; Ed. Code § 47610; see also
current FSDRL.

12. The charter school complies with all federal
and state laws related to public entities,
including, but not limited to:
• Ralph M. Brown Act, Gov. Code §§
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Supporting
Documentation
Description of the
school-wide student
behavior and
discipline system that
aligns with Discipline
Foundation Policy and
School Climate Bill of
Rights
Evidence of the tiered
behavior intervention,
alternatives to
suspension, and school
positive behavior
support that the school
provides
Monthly suspension
and
expulsion reports

SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Parent Student
Handbook

Current and
appropriate Certificate
of Occupancy or
equivalent;
documentation of
compliance with firelife-safety
requirements; other
required
documentation (for
any school site not
located on District
property)
Board meeting
agendas and minutes
for the past 12 months
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Compliance Requirements*
•
•
•

54950, et seq.
Political Reform Act of 1974, Gov. Code
§§ 81000, et seq.
California Public Records Act, Gov. Code
§ 6250, et seq.
Conflicts of Interest, Gov. Code § 1090.
See current FSDRL.

Supporting
Documentation

SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Verification of
compliant public
posting of Board
agendas, including on
the school website
Evidence of Brown
Act training
Forms 700

13. The charter school ensures that its Articles of
Incorporation are current and appropriate for
the operation of the charter school.

14. By-laws are current and consistent with
approved charter, Governing Board-approved,
and signed by the Governing Board secretary.
15. The charter school meets the provisions of
eligibility and/or is a participant of state and
federal programs and/or grants, which may
include but not limited to, the following: Title
I, II, III, and other programs, child nutrition
programs, Proposition 20 – State Lottery (e.g.,
Gov. Code § 8880.4), Education Protection
Act (Proposition 30), Special Education (Ed.
Code § 56000, et seq.), Ed. Code § 47614.5,
and all other federal and state programs in
which the charter school participates.
16. The charter school implements Uniform
Complaint Procedure (UCP) policies and
procedures with appropriate corresponding
forms and documents, readily available to
stakeholders at the school site and on the
school’s website, that are compliant with
federal and state requirements., See, e.g.,
guidance provided at
http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/cp/uc/
17. The charter school, as a recipient of federal
reimbursement for the National School
FORM REV. 9/23/21

School policy for
responding to Public
Records Act requests
Corporate papers,
including any and all
Articles of
Incorporation (initial
documents and any
subsequent
amendments), for
entities affiliated with
the charter school
Current and signed
Board-approved
bylaws
{See “Fiscal Review”
in the Annual
Performance-Based
Oversight Visit
Preparation Guide for
list of documentation
to be provided to the
CSD Fiscal Team]

The governing board
has reviewed the
school’s:
• UCP policies
•

UCP
procedures

•

UCP forms

Local School Wellness
Policy, including
Page 5 of 9

Compliance Requirements*
Lunch/Breakfast program and/or as a school
on District property, has adopted a Local
School Wellness Policy. See 42 U.S.C.A. §
1751, et seq.; 42 U.S.C.A. § 1771, et seq.
Note: Even if the charter school is not
participating in the National School Lunch or
Breakfast program, and is not located on
District property, development and adoption
of an equivalent Wellness Policy likely would
benefit the school and its students.
18. The governing board oversees the
development of and approves/adopts the
stakeholder engagement process, goals,
actions, measurable outcomes, and
expenditures in the school’s Learning Local
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and
annual update in consultation with teachers,
staff, administrators, parents, and students.
See Ed. Code § 47606.5.
19. The charter school ensures compliance
with the LAUSD’s Keeping Parents
Informed: Charter Public School
Transparency Resolution of January 12,
2016, which includes documents available
both manually and electronically, and if the
charter school occupies a building on the
AB300 list (seismic safety survey), it has
posted a notice of such status in its main
office. Ed. Code §§ 17280 to 17317.
20. The charter school ensures that it is in
compliance with all applicable state law
regarding students experiencing homelessness
and foster youth, including but not limited to
the provisions of Ed. Code §§ 48853, 48853.5,
49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2 and 48850, as
amended from time to time.

21. Schools Serving Grade 9 only: The charter
school complies with all applicable
requirements of Ed. Code § 51224.7.
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Supporting
Documentation
evidence of
stakeholder input in
the development of the
policy and annual
progress report

SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Documentation of
stakeholder
engagement, including
Board Meeting
Agendas, Board
Minutes, LCAP, and
related documents
(e.g., Annual Update,
and Budget Overview
for Parents).
Documentation of
discussion by the
Governing Board
including Board
Meeting Agendas and
Board Minutes and
review that
documentation is
available both
manually and
electronically
Documentation of
compliance with the
requirements, which
may include but is not
limited to, the name of
the charter school’s
designee and the
partial credit policy, if
applicable
Documentation of the
adoption of the charter
school’s established
policy in compliance
with Education Code
section 51224.7,
including the Board
Meeting Agendas and
Board Minutes
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Compliance Requirements*
22. The charter school complies with all
applicable requirements of Ed. Code, § 215:
Pupil Suicide Prevention Policies. (Schools
serving Grades 7-12). If the charter school is
co-located on District property (Prop 39), the
charter school must comply with the District’s
policy (BUL: 2637.4 Suicide Prevention,
Intervention, and Postvention) and must
access training via the District’s website
through MyPLN.

Supporting
Documentation
Documentation of the
adoption of the charter
school’s policy as
outlined in Ed. Code, §
215, including the
Board Meeting
Agendas and Board
Minutes

23. For High Schools Only: The charter school
has obtained WASC accreditation and UCOP
Doorways Course Approval.

Charter school
approvals are listed on
the WASC website
and UCOP Doorways
website

24. The charter school complies with all
applicable requirements of Ed. Code §§ 231.5
and 231.6 regarding sexual harassment
notifications (Schools serving Grades 9-12).

Verification of pupils
being notified in
accordance with
applicable legal
requirements (Ed.
Code §§ 231.5 and
231.6), displaying a
poster in bathrooms
and locker rooms at
the schoolsite.
Documentation of the
charter school’s
online posting(s)
containing all the
required information
set forth in Education
Code section 221.61.

25. Charter school must comply with all online
posting requirements related to the filing of a
Title IX complaint pursuant to Education
Code section 221.61.

26. Charter school must comply with all Title IX
federal requirements including the adoption
and publishing of grievance procedures. These
procedures are intended to provide for the
prompt and equitable resolution of student and
employee complaints set forth in 34 C.F.R. §
106.8.

FORM REV. 9/23/21

SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022

Documentation of the
charter school’s
adoption and
publishing of its
grievance procedures
including the Board
Meeting Agenda(s)
and Board Minute(s).
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Compliance Requirements*
27. The charter school complies with all
applicable requirements of Ed. Code §
56040.3 pertaining to school-purchased
technology devices for individuals with
exceptional needs.

FORM REV. 9/23/21

Supporting
Documentation
Documentation of
compliance with the
requirements, which
may include but is not
limited to, how
students were provided
access to devices in
order to receive a free
appropriate public
education.

SCHOOL ADMIN.

BOARD
CERTIFICATION
BY
JANUARY 14, 2022
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CERTIFICATION OF SCHOOL ADMINISTRATOR’S
COMPLIANCE REVIEW
(By Friday, October 29, 2021)
The undersigned hereby certifies that, on

10/29/2021

the School Administrator of

Date(s)

Crete Academy
Name of Charter School

reviewed the school’s compliance with legal, charter, and District policy requirements.

Brett Mitchell
Printed Name of School Administrator

Signature of School Administrator

Date Signed

CERTIFICATION OF BOARD COMPLIANCE REVIEW
(By Friday, January 14, 2022)

The undersigned hereby certifies that, on

, the Governing Board of
Date(s)

Name of Charter School

reviewed the school’s compliance with legal, charter, and District policy requirements.
This certification includes the following relevant documentation:
Board Agenda where item was discussed
Board Minutes
Board Agenda Approving the Minutes

Printed Name of Governing Board Chair

FORM REV. 9/23/21

Signature of Governing Board Chair

Date Signed
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Assessments organized by teacher-white is highest growth per class- green is highest achievement
DIBELS

F&P (# of reading levels
passed from beginning
of school to now)

STAR Math Highest Growth

STAR Early Literacy/Reading
(Fall to Winter Growth)

Wright

LEXIA
Nethaniel (77)
Luna (22)
Nethaniel Garcia

Turner

Maliyah Webster

Dominic Moore (143)

Mason (184)

Jose Mejia

Elle Lewis (132)

Jose (164)

Bryce Bruce
Mason Cox
Ryan

Legend Burrell (C)

Mason Cox

Dylan Calderon

Leoul Diop (141)

Leoul (216)

Damiya Martin (128)

Alexander (148)

David Morales
Mack

Bahurinsky

Noah Ibarra
Elena Godinez
Tino Sanchez

Rhylin Kiper
Lexie Mariano (83)

Kalia Course (201)

Brandon Cruz (70)

Kemma Durant (157)

Rebekkah Story Ross
(455)
Kassey Dean (360)

Elena Godinez
Rebekkah Story Ross

Kalia Course (7)
Noah Ibarra (6)
Rebekkah Story Ross
(6)
Rebekkah Story Ross (J)
Kalia Course (J)

Rebekkah Story Ross (87th)

Rebekkah Story Ross (88th)

Rebekkah Story Ross

Kai’lyn Ward

Mahki Butler (2)

Kingsley Burrell (105)

Damian Cruz (238)

Damian Cruz

Leah Hodge (88)

Christian Valadez (197)

Zechariah Webster

Kingsley Burrell (N)

Damian Cruz (61st)
Sydney Amaya (61st)

Camden Watkins (88th)

Neveah Wickware
Chastity Paul

Xaiya Austin (2)

John Howard (135)

MyLove Johns (189)

Daniel Camacho

KhaLynn Roberson (108)

Lazontra Willimas (163)

Damian Camacho

Genesis Garcia-Estrada
(O)

Ramses Williams (92nd)

Ramses Williams (70th)

Ramses Williams

Miley Nelson (4)
Joey Sanchez (4)
Amber Gresham(4)

Jadyn Tyler (127)

Autumn Becket (110)

Thalia Harris

Ziyah Carter (161)

Zachary Ivey (193)

Joshua Gonzalez

Mya Jackson
Nevaeh Wickware
Camden Watkins
Ecung

Moore

Thalia Harris
Perlman

Finney

Bonner

(85th)

Kevon Lee

(71st)

Thalia Harris

Kaellie Frazier (4)
Kelman Farrier (4)

Antonio Orellana (200)

Stephonie Turner (161)

Antonio Orellana

Zoey Mayfield (140)

Itzelle Platero-Nava (130)

Timothy Harris, Jr

Kelman Farrier (R)
Kaellie Frazier (R)

Kaellie Frazier (60th)

Mark Fuertes (88th)

Antjuan Houston
Kayden Perry

Leandro Campos (3)
Kevin Valadez (3)

Samuel Mendoza (94)

Kaden Daniels (122)

Luis Gonzalez

Luis Gonzalez (71)

Kaylie Cortez (123)

Marvin Bambury

(98th)

Andrew Ramirez

(90th)

Bubba Mitchell (Z)

Andrew Ramirez

Keyan Saifie

Maya Evans (4)
Zahara McGee (4)

Aiden Rodgers (44)

Maya Evans (67)

Eduardo Camacho

Travis Harrison (30)

Kynadie Poole (57)

Zahara McGee

Curshun Nelson (Z)
Japera Jiles (Z)
Beatrice Totty (Z)
Nathalie Victorio (Z)
Valeria Fuentes (Z)

Beatrice Totty (88th)

Curshun Nelson (82nd)

Japera Jiles
Nathalie Victorio
Eduardo Camacho

STAR Assessments organized by teacher
highlighting growth in green and proficiency in yellow.
Note: K-2 takes early literacy --- 3-6 takes reading --- 1-6 takes math

STAR Reading

STAR Early Literacy

STAR Math

